Q

TIME

5:30

5:35

5:40

5:45
5:50
5:55

6:00

6:05

6:10
6:20

6:25
6:30

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2024
5:30 P.M.

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING

COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM
# TOPIC

1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
September 17, 2024, Regular Meeting

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 1, 2024, AGENDA

~ W

PuBLIC COMMENT
—Will last up to 1-hour dependent on number of sp

5 PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON &;&OSED
AMENDMENTS TO THE PERSONNEL ORDINANCE @

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Pés\ENTAHON

~N O

VAYA UPDATE @
8 WATAUGA COUNTY SCHOOLS LOoTT! %ND CIP FuNDs
REQUESTS . (\6’

PARKING DECK FINAL CHAN@EDER REQUEST

10 PROPOSED RESOLUTIONQ&PORT OF NAMING THE HWY 105
BRIDGE OVER THE Vy ANGA RIVER IN MEMORY OF K-9 DEPUTY
LOGAN SHANE Fox\\

11 PARKS AND @z&nm OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST
12 MIsCELL S ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

E
A &%mber Meeting Schedule
3

©

nouncements
1

1 LOSED SESSION
C)(b Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)

15 PossIiBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION

6:
%@@ 16 ADJOURN
Q)@

xO

PRESENTER

O
o

CHAIRMAN TURNBOW
MR. DERON GEOUQUE

Ms. HoLLY JONES
MR. DUSTIN BURLESON
DR. CHRIS BLANTON

MR. BiLL DixoN

MAJOR REDMON

MR. CRAIG LANDS
MR. DERON GEOUQUE

PAGE

11
13

15

113
129
145

147

165

171

177

179

179
180

181



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Q®
September 17, 2024, Regular Meeting .Q)Q
<O .
©
q,b‘
Q
Vv
N
X,
OOO
b\
Qé
N
<
i)
<
Q.
O
g\
>
\2@
’\\0
P
<
Koz
O
\\Q)
0@
,00
O
O



100124 BCC Meeting

MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS §
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2024 Q

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, Q
September 17, 2024, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Wataug((j.
County Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. @

Chairman Turnbow called the meeting to order at 5:35 P.M. The following were presep-i/b&

PRESENT: Larry Turnbow, Chairman q/Q
Charlie Wallin, Vice-Chairman <O N
Todd Castle, Commissioner N
Braxton Eggers, Commissioner X
Ray Russell, Commissioner OC)
Andrea Capua, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager, %3
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Boar

. _ 2.
Commissioner Eggers opened with a prayer and Vlcb airman Wallin, led the Pledge of
Allegiance. %)

&

APPROVAL OF MINUTES Q,‘b

Chairman Turnbow called for additions @gor corrections to the September 3, 2024, regular
minutes and closed session minutes. .« (\
Q\

Commissioner Russell, seco ddbby Vice-Chairman Wallin, moved to approve the
September 3, 2024, regular meﬁ%ﬁg minutes as presented.

O
\Q\\ VOTE: Aye-5
Q Nay-0

<

Commissioner &dssell, seconded by Vice-Chairman Wallin, moved to approve the
September 3@24, closed session minutes as presented.

C)Q\\ VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0
,00

cggPROVAL OF AGENDA
)

"\30 Chairman Turnbow called for additions and/or corrections to the September 17, 2024, agenda.

)

@6 County Manager Geouque requested to remove both the Vaya and NCDOJ presentations from the
agenda and reschedule both to the October 1, 2024, meeting.




Bidders Naghe (GC) MBI Bar Construction | Greene Construction
\\@'ase Bid $2,106,708.00 $2,724,000.00 $3,716,727.00
_@"  Rank 1 2 3
Atgpa\\l-tbrnatives
ing Seam
Oé&rten Roof $26,435.00 $66,000.00 23,282.00%
Exposed Fastener
;\»Q .DCorten Roof $22,913.00 $57,000.00 $19,956.00
@0 Additional Parking $11,586.00 $18,000.00 $17,400.00
@ Rock Removal $400.00 $450.00 $438.62
Soil Removal $40.00 $60.00 $54.83
Select Fill $40.00 $60.00 $54.83

100124 BCC Meeting

Vice-Chairman Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Eggers, moved to approve the September 17,
2024, agenda as amended.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PuBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

(L"‘@

PROPOSED LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR APPHEAL THCARE GRANT ApPLIGATION

On behalf of Ms. Jennifer Greene, Ms. Kelly Walsh with AppHealthCare, p

ted a proposed

letter of support for AppHealthCare in their application to Health Resources and Service

Administration (HRSA) to expand primary care, substance use disord

health care in Watauga County.

*

@Qa ent, and behavioral

O
Commissioner Castle, seconded by Commissioner Russell, mm@,}é approve the letter of support

%)
VOTE: Aye- 60\
: Ny 5@

as presented.

BiID AWARD REQUEST FOR HOWARD@B%B PARK PROJECT
N\

Mr. Wright Tilley, Executive Directo

Watauga County Tourism Development Authority

(TDA), and Mr. Case Neal, Destinatioq Design, presented an update on the Howard Knob Park
project. Mr. Neal stated that plsésg@uded updating the entry signage and fencing, expanding the

parking lot to add additional s
the shelter, enclosing the po

Canyon Skywalk.

; use native landscaping and natural boulder walls, enhancing

bte restrooms, providing accessible parking, picnic, and sidewalk
continuous, as well as % dition of an overlook, 80 feet in diameter, inspired by the Grand

The following bigﬁ_’_ re received:




S
e

100124 BCC Meeting

Alternative Subtotal $60,934.00 $141,000.00 $60,638.00

Base Bid +
Alternatives $2,167,642.00 $2,865,000.00 $3,777,365.00

Mr. Neal stated that, due to the unknown about of rock removal needed, the contingency amount

X

for this project has been set at 20%. Mr. Neal requested approval of MBI Builders, LLC as th%(b

lowest responsive bidder for the Howard Knob Park project, including the alternates. The projec
required no County funding as it would be paid by the TDA and grant funding. Mr. Tilley @

that the park would be a premier anchor point of the Northern Peaks Trail. b‘
Commissioner Russell, seconded by Vice-Chairman Wallin, moved to accept the b'@(om MBI
Builders, LLC for the Howard Knob Park project as presented. <O R
VOTE: Aye-5 \'\
Nay-0 &

O

REQUEST TO USE HUMAN SERVICES GRASSY AREA ’@AR KING STREET FOR
LocAL CLOTHING MARKETS

Mr. Trevor Shue, owner of Lucky Dog Vintage Market, %@tasted to utilize the grassy area at the
Human Services Complex on Poplar Grove Connector@gost a local clothing market. Mr. Shue
recently held a successful market on September 7, 2 and was hoping to hold additional markets
on November 16, 2024, February 15, 2025, Mar : 2025, and May 10, 2025. Set up would be
from 9:00 to 10:30 A.M. with the market begs r@\g at 11:00 A.M. and running until 6:00 P.M. (or
as daylight allowed). An hour after the clgsesof the market would be needed for breakdown and
clean up, which would be no later than £ .M. The terms would be similar as before requiring
a signed license agreement and a $§ e each time. County Attorney Capua asked questions
related to the finalizing of the i%\ t.

Commissioner Castle, secon y Commissioner Eggers, moved to approve the use of the space
as requested contingent an executed license agreement as prepared by the County Attorney.

Cb.QO VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0
O

RURAL %&ATING ASSISTANCE (ROAP) GRANT APPLICATION REQUEST

Mr. tg Hughes, Appal CART Director, gave a brief status update beginning with the news that

ere projecting the use of $494,000 from their fund balance to cover expenses in Fiscal Year

) 2025. Mr. Hughes stated that they were working to bring costs down. Mr. Hughes shared

ow Appal CART benefits those who ride as well as those who commute in local traffic. Ridership

in FY 2024 was 1,516,410. Mr. Hughes stated that the double decker bus should arrive in January
2025.

Mr. Hughes presented the Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) grant application for FY
2025. Watauga County was awarded $185,401 which did not require a local match. This was a



100124 BCC Meeting

small decrease from the past year. The decrease was due to changes in the census as the amounts
were determined by population. The funding total would be split into three categories.

The Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance Program (EDTAP) allocation, in the amount Q®
of $73,258, which was split among the Department of Social Services (DSS) and Project on Aging Q
(POA), AppalCART, and Watauga Opportunities. The Employment (EMPL) allocation, in th .(b
amount of $14,667, to Watauga Opportunities to provide transportation for their clients_tdD
employment and job training. The Rural General Public (RGP) allocation, in the amou

$97,476, used primarily to provide rural trips in the mornings and afternoon to and from I%g‘o .

Vice-Chairman Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Russell, moved to apprqv%he Rural
y¥Ar

Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) grant application for FY 2025 as presented b . Hughes.
4
VOTE: Aye-5 N
Nay-0 O(}'
WATAUGA COUNTY ARTS COUNCIL xO

Ms. Amber Bateman, Watauga Arts Council Director, sta t three years ago a pathway to
public arts in the community project began and the continues with the Blue Ridge

Conservancy on the Middle Fork Greenway. A mural lanned for the tunnel under Hwy 321
near Mystery Hill and an encroachment agree was needed with the North Carolina
Department of Transportation (NCDOT). Ms. an presented a proposed resolution stating

that the County was in support of the project iZadopted, NCDOT would draft the encroachment
agreement which would be between the Blu ge Conservancy, Watauga County Arts Council,
and the NCDOT. Ms. Bateman shared t e mural would contain a QR code of which the video
content would be controlled by the A% uncil.

Commissioner Russell, secon(@g@ Commissioner Eggers, moved to approve the resolution as
presented and authorize N(;Ig to draft an encroachment agreement.

\
\@ VOTE: Aye-5
Q Nay-0

VALLE CR HISTORICAL PRESERVATION COMMITTEE PRESENTATION

Mr. Wa \Browning, Chairman of the Valle Crucis Historical Preservation Committee,
intro% Ms. Julie Gates, with the Valle Crucis Community Council, and Mr. Gardner Hoover,
W'tbb, alle Crucis Community Park, who discussed the status of the current Valle Crucis
dgrnentary School including the County-owned Valle Landing property. Multiple letters were
%:esented with some requesting to keep portions of the facility and others requesting the Board

,@ aximize the efforts for flood mitigation.
<
%) Ms. Gates stated that there was a total of 16 acres and the area was a tourist draw and hub and
@ home to residents. It was on the historic registry and wanted it to stay what the community loves.

Ms. Gates stated that the old school building needed engineer review to determine if it was



100124 BCC Meeting

reasonable for preservation, improvement, or repurpose. Ms. Gates stated that the review wouldn’t

happen until the kids were out of the school and asked the County to give the Community Council

time to review the structure and submit a plan prior to deciding on what to do with the property @
(including the structure). Ms. Gates asked for a non-binding Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) showing good faith. Ms. Gates stated that the Council supports long-term flood mitigation Q
as well as Andy Hill with Mountain True. 603
Mr. Hoover stated that the Valle Crucis Park had grown to its current 28 acres over the year(@
stated that by conveying the property to the Park, Dutch Creek flooding could be mitig d
would be available for Park and public use with the Valle Landing portion being re@to its
state of nature. q/

Ms. Gates stated that there were two requests being made. The first was for th @&es, excluding
the structure, be conveyed to Valle Crucis Park. The second was approve a MOU with the
Community Council allowing time to properly evaluate the school building~and have time to put
together a plan prior to the County deciding on what to do with the str@.lre.

After lengthy discussion, Chairman Turnbow asked for a ¢ ﬁfCrPtee to be formed including
himself, Commissioner Eggers, the County Attorney, Co Manager, and School Board
representatives to have an in-depth discussion regarding rrent (soon to be old) Valle Crucis
School property and facility. Mr. Turnbow stated that ped the committee could report back
to the Board by the October 15 meeting or in Nove

‘.OO
Tax MATTERS Qg)

A. Monthly Collections Report(\O_)

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administraé‘, presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of
August 2024. The report was ented for information only and, therefore, no action was
required.

N\
B. Refunds an@ eases

Mr. Larry Warrergg_g Administrator, presented the Refunds and Releases Report for August 2024
for Board apprqval
%) TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK

Commis@ﬁer Eggers, seconded by Vice-Chairman Wallin, moved to approve the Refunds and
Rele%Report for August 2024 as presented.

{0
C) VOTE: Aye-5
Q Nay-0
&
: ¢’ DSsmou
Mr. Tom Hughes, Social Services Director, presented the State’s Memorandum of Understanding

(MOU) with the County pertaining to the Social Services Department. Mr. Hughes stated that he



100124 BCC Meeting

did not feel the State was upholding their end, in part, by not offering training. Mr. Hughes stated

that his office would continue to do their jobs and stated that they did well on their audits. A big

issue was that the MOU was written in a one-size-fits all manner and, unfortunately, it would result @
in Watauga County falling below 95% with just one error. County Attorney Capua stated that this Q
MOU was binding and would be considered contractual. Mr. Hughes stated that one-third of the Q

state had not signed it. Mr. Hughes stated that the sanctions were scary. If the County didn’t mee .03

the State standards, the State would hold funding. ‘

After lengthy discussion, no action was taken due to lack of a motion. q,b‘@
EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS (19
A. Request for CRS Recorder AIS Upgrade y\<0 °

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, requested approval for the@p‘enditure of $24,980
for the upgrade of the AIS recording system with Carolina Recording ems for recorders at the
Primary and Back-up PSAPs. Adequate E-911 funds were availableds FY 2024-2025 to cover the

expense. 6

Commissioner Russell, seconded by Commissioner @ moved to approve the Carolina
Recording Systems AIS recording systems upgrade in % ount of $24,980.

VOTE: AR®
7"
B. Request for Tower Shelters Q)Q‘

Mr. Will Holt requested approval of t(é&d from VFP (state contract) in the amount of $995,640
for 4 tower shelters for the VIPER-~y@hulcast Radio System project. Engineered Tower Solutions
(ETS) would provide the civil ruction on-site, which included the 3 “build on-site” shelters
and the erection of those bui@n s. Adequate funds were budgeted to cover the expense.

N
Vice-Chairman Wallj onded by Commissioner Russell, moved to authorize the expenditure
of $995,640 for 4 towg€r shelters from VFP.

%' VOTE: Aye-5
@6 Nay-0
AN

C. @%uest to Surplus Fire Marshal Vehicle

m@%l Holt requested the 2018 Ford F-150 assigned to the Fire Marshal be declared surplus.

vehicle had reached the end of its service life due to a major, mechanical issues that was too
. Q@ostly to repair. A replacement vehicle has already been secured.

N\

@Q Commissioner Eggers, seconded by Vice-Chairman Wallin, moved to surplus the 2018 Ford F-

@ 150 assigned to the Fire Marshal.

VOTE: Aye-5

Nay-0



100124 BCC Meeting

PARKS AND RECREATION OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST

Ms. Keron Poteat, Parks and Recreation Director, requested approval to travel out-of-state to @
Hilton Head, South Carolina, for the 2024 Special Olympics North America Tennis & Pickleball Q
Championships. No County funds would be spent with the exception of Ms. Poteat’s time. (bQ

Commissioner Castle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Wallin, moved to approve the out-of-statﬁf_)‘

travel.
VOTE: Aye-5 ™
Nay-0 Q(l/
MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS G)"
N

A. Watauga County School Resource Officers

Xe°
County Manager Geouque stated that the school system had reapplied@%e grants to reduce the
cost of providing School Resource Officers (SRO) in Watauga Coety. The current cost to the
County, providing SRO’s in the school system, was $692,886.41 With grant funds offsetting the
cost by $206,000.65. If awarded, the new application would e an additional $102,502.68 in
grant funding, lowering the County’s cost. The savings w Ilow the County to place an SRO
in the Blowing Rock Elementary School and allow the T of Blowing Rock to no longer fund
the SRO position. The recent resignation of th ing Rock Elementary School’s SRO
presented a good time to transition the position fr% e Town to the County.

The grant application was not guaranteed; h r, the Town of Blowing Rock has agreed to fund
a Sheriff’s Office SRO position until the @gd of FY 2024-2025. The County would provide the
funding going forward. Should grant # e awarded during the FY 2024-2025 time period, the
County would reduce the Town of Blewing Rock’s portion by the grant allocation for that one
position. At the end of FY 20 5 the full cost would be borne by the County. During the
transition period of the Courg%ﬁng an SRO, the Town of Blowing Rock, with assistance from
the Sheriff’s Office, woul inue to provide an officer at the school. Funds to cover the hiring
of the Sherriff’s Oﬁice\& would come from the grant and Town of Blowing Rock for the

remainder of FY 20@@25.

Commissioner %éll, seconded by Commissioner Castle, moved to approve the Sheriff’s Office

hiring an adgig¥ehal SRO position which would be for the Blowing Rock Elementary School with
the agree n terms as presented.
{\0 VOTE: Aye-5
(D' Nay-0

O

. QQ B. Request for Declaration of Surplus and Sale - WCSO K-9
N

@Q County Manager Geouque, on behalf of Major Kelly Redmon, Watauga County Sheriff’s Office,
@ requested to have “Maverick” a K-9 police dog declared as surplus and to authorize to sell to its
handler, Sergeant Aaron Watson. Major Redmon has indicated that due to Maverick’s health

issues, the K-9 must be retired for use by the Sheriff’s Office. General Statutes allow for the dog



100124 BCC Meeting

to be sold for a negotiated price by order of the Board of Commissioners. For staff to carry out
the order, the Board must adopt a resolution and advertise the sale for ten (10) days prior to the
sale. Major Redmon requested the dog be declared surplus and sold for a fee of $1.00 to its handler.
Since the K-9 has been trained for duty, it would be best for an experienced handler to have
ownership. Upon completion of the ten-day notice, Maverick will be presented to Sergeant

Watson who will bare all future expenses related to the medical, care, and housing of Maverick. 603

Vice-Chairman Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Eggers, moved to declare the K-9 police@
Maverick, surplus, adopt the resolution, and direct staff to advertise for ten (10) days prltﬁ‘
sale.

VOTE: Aye-5 Q
N 5
N

C. Request to Schedule a Public Hearing to Allow Citizen C%m nt on Proposed

*

Amendments to the Personnel Ordinance O

County Manager Geouque presented proposed amendments to th atauga County Personnel
Ordinance and requested a public hearing be scheduled for the % er 1, 2024, meeting to allow
citizen comments on the amendments.

Tuesday, October 1, 2024, at 5:30 P.M. to allow citi omment on proposed amendments to the

Commissioner Eggers, seconded by Commissioner SQ@bmoved to schedule a public hearing on
Watauga County Personnel Ordinance.

VO@*Aye-S
N -
O

D. Boards and Commlssmnsgfbg

County Manager Geouque pre@ed the following:

Watauga County Libram@é}ard

The Watauga Coung)Mrary Board has recommended the appointment of Ms. Cheryl Angel to
replace Ms. Sa sil who resigned. Since Ms. Basil’s term expired in August 2024, if
appointed, Ms: r)%él would begin her first term when appointed and it would expire in 2027.

Commiss Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Russell, moved to waive the second reading
and ap Ms. Cheryl Angel to the Watauga County Library Board with a term to expire in 2027.

C)fb VOTE: Aye-5

Q Nay-0

Q\.\Q Recreation Commission

@@

Mr. Bob Pudney, Beech Mountain Town Manager, has recommended the appointment of Mr. Sean
Royall as the Town’s representative on the Watauga County Recreation Commission. If
appointed, Mr. Royall’s term would end in 2027.

X

*



100124 BCC Meeting

Chairman Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Eggers, moved to waive the second reading and
appoint Mr. Sean Royall as the Town of Beech Mountain’s representative on the Watauga County
Recreation Commission with a term to expire in 2027. Q®

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0 ojtbg
E. Announcements @

County Manager Geouque announced the following: Qq/b‘

e The High Country Council of Governments’ 49" Annual Banquet is sch duaffor Friday,
October 4, 2024, from 6:00 to 9:00 P.M. in the Grandview Ballroom atﬂ\é@Northwest End
Zone, Appalachian State University. X

e The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners @ACC) sent a reminder
encouraging all Commissioners to Vote on NCACC Legi*@/e Goals During Upcoming
Steering Committee Meetings. Please see the informagion™included in the packet. The
email was also forwarded to the Board so you have @to all of the links.

ADJOURN Q,a}
Commissioner Castle, seconded by Vice-Chairr@i’%/allin, moved to adjourn the meeting at

8:07 P.M. Qg,
Q@E: Aye-5

¢ Nay-0

75

Larry Turnbow, Chairman %,

ATTEST: AnitaJ. FOQI@ to the Board

10



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 1, 2024, AGENDA Q®
o
<O R
©
q,b‘
Q
Vv
No*
X,
OOO
b\
Qé
N
%)
i)
<
Q.
O
g\
>
\2@
’\\0
P
<
Ny
O
\\Q)
0@
<
5

11



100124 BCC Meeting

12



100124 BCC Meeting
AGENDAITEM 4:

PuBLIC COMMENT Q®

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: "bQ
(,j.
Public Comment will last up to 1-hour dependent upon the number of speakers. @
N4
V
N
Xe°
OOO
b\
S
N
%)
o
9
<
Q.
O
O
@@
NS
’\\0
N
<
Ao
S
A\
0@
S
«©

13



100124 BCC Meeting

14



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 5:

PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO Q®
THE PERSONNEL ORDINANCE

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 60‘)

A public hearing has been scheduled on the proposed amendments to the Watauga C(@,&
Personnel Ordinance. Mr. Geouqgue will review the proposed changes to the current ance.

At the conclusion of the public hearing, Board approval is requested to adopt the a ents as
presented.

15



100124 BCC Meeting

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

0P

HEARING TO ALLOW COMMENTS ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUG/&.) ’

THE WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC

COUNTY PERSONNEL ORDINANCE. THE PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HEbl?

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2024, AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ B ROOM
LOCATED IN THE WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDI@T 814 WEST
KING STREET, BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA. A COPY @}"THE PROPOSED

AMENDMENTS IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW ON THE\'@)UNTY’S WEBSITE AT

HTTP://WATAUGACOUNTY.ORG AND IN THE W%@GA COUNTY MANAGER’S

OFFICE. FOR INFORMATION OR QUESTIONS, P E CALL (828) 265-8000.

\Q
&
O
(b&\
Q\Q Lowry Turnbow
O CHAIRMAN
N
Q\\’
Y
Q)é
AN
R
<3
e

16


http://wataugacounty.org/

100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE L. DEFINITIONS. ...ttt sttt st e s be s s b e s s e b e e s sbe e s sabe s sabessbesssbesssbbessabesans 1
ARTICLE Il. ORGANIZATION OF PERSONNEL SYSTEM .....ooiii it 4
SECTION 1.
SECTION 2.
SECTION 3.
SECTION 4.
SECTION 5.
SECTION 6.
ARTICLE IlI.
] =lon 1 [0) N R Y o o ] = 1 ] [ (1/ ....................
] =lon 1 [0 N U = = R
SECTION3.  COMPOSITION OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN ......ccocovivrierienieneene, ,\ .............................
SECTION4.  USE OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN .....ocoiiiiiiticiiciecteesieciesteesre e s e Xeee e sresae e e sneenesraens
SECTIONS5. REQUEST FOR RECLASSIFICATION ....viciiiiiiiiiiirieiiiestiesseesresssresssrnsssnneens
SECTIONG6.  ADMINISTRATION OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN..
SECTION7. MAINTENANCE OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN ...... @
SECTION 8.  HIRING RATE/STARTING SALARY ....ccovvieteiteeteitecte e ere st sre v e Q .....................................................
SECTION9. PAYMENT AT A RATE WITHIN THE SALARY GRADE.............A \' ........................................................
SECTION 10. PAY RATES IN PROMOTION, DEMOTION, TRANSFER, AN&LASSIFICATION
SECTION 11. PAY FOR PERFORMANCE INCREASES.........cccovvvrieiennnn. \ ..................................................................
SECTION 12. PAY FOR PERFORMANCE AT MAXIMUM OF SALA@NGE ............................................................
SECTION 13. PAY FOR PART-TIME WORK........ccovvvrvenennn.
SECTION 14. SALARY OF DSS COMPETITIVE SERVICE TR
SECTION 15, OVERTIME....cciciiiteeiestestesteseesteseeseesreseessennens
SECTION 16. ON-CALL/CALL BACK COMPENSATION D . reveeteereeteeteitessessestessessessessessessessessessesesessesessesessesesesses 12
SECTION 17, K-GO PAY o el e ettt ettt ettt st te e te s ba e be e tesae et 14
SECTION 18. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS......cciieiteogeee e ¥ cteitieeteestesttesteessesseeateesseassesteessessssssssasssssessssssesssessssssesssesesasesnns 14
SECTION19. PAYROLL PROCEDURE............. Q ..................................................................................................... 14
SECTION 20. IMPROPER OR UNLAWFUL P, '\&LL DEDUCTIONS.....ccttiteitieeteeetesteesteesresteesteessesteesteeresseesseesesneesseanns 14
ARTICLE IV. RECRUITMENT A&MPLOYMENT .......................................................................... 16
SECTION1. STATEMENT OF EQMALEMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY POLICY ..uviiiiiiiiiesiesie e e e sie st se e e e 16
SECTION2. JOB ADVERTI LT 16
SECTION 3.  APPLICATI [V = 1@ 1\ 1= N RPN 16
SECTION4.  APPLICATI RACKING. ... .cttitteeteeeteeteete e bt steesteeebeateesteebesaeeateebesseeabaessesaseatsenbesssaateansesssastaensesseaseanns 16
SECTIOND.  SELEGIDNT ... oottt ettt e et e et e et e s te e besteeste e beeaeeetsebeaseesbaesteeseesbsenbsensestseabeensesseeteensessaeateanns 17
SECTION 6 E (@)% 1= SO PO SRRSO ORI 17
SECTION 7. %TION, TRANSFER AND DEMOTION ....uiiiiitieitieie et eeteseesteeste s aesteestesseesteestassaesbeensassaessaensesneas 17
SECTION 8. éOBATIONARY PERIOD- EMPLOYMENT, TRANSFER, PROMOTION, AND DEMOTION .................... 18
SECTION %@\MERICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT (ADA) ...ttt 19
ARTIC@. CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT ...ttt sttt 20
S N VAV L R = = SR 20
ION 2. GIFTS AND FAVORS ....octiiiitiitiiteite st stestestestestestestestestestestestestestestestesteatesaeatestesteateateatessestestestestessessessenns 20
CTION 3.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY .....uiiiticiiitie sttt ettt ettt sttt et et steesbeeaastaesbaentesraenreenns 20
SECTION4.  POLITICAL ACTIVITY RESTRICTIONS......ccititieiteiiestieeteseesteestesteesteesseaseestesssesssesssessesnsessssssessessesasesnns 21
,’\30 (o i (o] R T O 1 b s ] = = Y =T 0 ) Y = Vi TSR 22
@ SECTIONG.  LIMITATION ON EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES ....ccitiitiiieite et eee e eeteeeesteesteeaesteestesaestaesteennessaessaenns 22
@ SECTIONT7.  TRAVEL POLICY ..ottt ettt ettt sttt e st te e e st e e te e aaesbe e beeaeesbeebeentaebeeateensesbaeateentesseenteenns 22
N SECTION 8. EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY ...tiiitiiitiitie it eitestte st eetesteesteessestaestaessesssastesasesssasssessssnsessssssesssessesssesnns 28
SECTIONS.  HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE ......ceititestestestestestestestestessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessensenses 29
SECTION 10. VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE .......cctittitestestestestessessestessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessesessessessesesesses 31
SECTION 11. ALCOHOL AND CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY ....occiiiiiiesiesiese e e e se e ste e see e sse e sne e 33

17




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION 12. EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM......ccui ittt ctie sttt ee sttt te e te e steesteeaesbeesteeaesbaestaennesraeateenns 44
SECTION 13. COMPUTER USE POLICY ....oiitieitiiie ettt tee sttt tee sttt s aestaeetessaesbaeateeaeasbeetaensasbaeatesnsestaeateansessannseenns 45
SECTION 13. CELLPHONE AND PAGER POLICY ...oitiitiitistestestestestestestessestessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessenses 51
SECTION 14, TOBACCO USE POLICY ....cciiiiiitiitisiestestestesestestestestestestestestastestessessessestessessestessessessessessessessessessessessensenses 51 Q
ARTICLE VI. USE OF COUNTY PROPERTY AND TIME ..ottt 53 Q
] =lon 1 [0) VI S o T SR 5 ‘03
SECTION 2. WEHICLES ... .ot itiiitt et itte et eete st eeteeetesteesteebesteesteebesaeesteesesseaatseteaaeesbaebeaseasbsenbsensastsenteensesseeteensessanaseanns 5%3 ¢
ARTICLE VIL. TYPES OF LEAVE ...ttt sttt st st s st s s @
SECTION 1.
SECTION 2.
SECTION 3.
SECTION 4,
SECTION 5.
SECTION 6.
SECTION 7.
SECTION 8.
SECTION 9.
SECTION 10.  SICK LEAVE .....ui ittt ettt te sttt et va et st svaesaesnnesne e 0 ................................................... 57
SECTION 11. SICK LEAVE TRANSFER ....c.ccoueetieitiiiesteenresiesteesresieesreensesine s Ae \. ...................................................... 58
SECTION 12. SICK LEAVE RETIREMENT CREDIT ...ccvviiiiriniirinenieesieens 6 .......................................................... 58
SECTION 13. SICK LEAVE - SEPARATED EMPLOYEES .......cccevvvvveenee. \QP ............................................................... 58
SECTION 14. VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVEbQ .................................................................... 59
SECTION 15. FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE .......ccccvvvvvrnene. @ ......................................................................... 62
SECTION 16. LEAVE WITHOUT PAYsQ ............................................................................... 65
SECTION 17. WORKERS' COMPENSATION LEAVE ............ 0 .................................................................................... 65
SECTION 18. MILITARY LEAVE ....cccovvvvevecesieceecieen,s 7«0 RN 66
SECTION19. CIVIL LEAVE......cocooiiiectiecieeieeiean, @Q ........................................................................................... 67
SECTION 20. EDUCATIONAL LEAVE. ... ..ottt et ettt ettt tte sttt e st e e te e teesteeebeeseasbeebeenaasbeeateensesbaeateensesteeaseenns 67
SECTION21. FUNERAL LEAVE ........c.ccocu....., Q ..................................................................................................... 58
SECTION22. BREAKS ...coeveiveerie e, ‘\<\ ......................................................................................................... 68
ARTICLE VIII: SEPARATION, D LINARY ACTION AND REINSTATEMENT .....cccccoveee. 69
SECTION L. TYPES OF SEPARATIENN.......ooitiitiitiiteite st e s et te et e st et e st e te st e st e st e s testestesbesbesbestesteatestestesteseeatesteateneeares 69
SECTION 2.
SECTION 3.
SECTION 4,
SECTION 5.
SECTION 6.
SECTION 7.
SECTION 8.
ARTICLE RIEVANCE PROCEDURE
SECTIQNT.  POLICY oottt 75
SECWUIBN 2. COVERAGE .....ctiteteteitestestestestestestestessessestestessessessessessessestessessessessessessessessessessestessessessestessessessessessensenses 75
[T N S = = o o3 =1 T = = 75
CTION4.,  PERSONNEL ADVISORY COMMITTEE ......ccittitittiestestestestestestestessessessessessessessessessessesesesesesesesesesnes 76
SECTIONS.  FINAL DECISION ON THE GRIEVANCE ......ccoiitieitiitieiteeeteceesteesteaaesteestesaesteesseessesssessesnsessasssssssessesssesnns 76
SECTIONG.  MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS........cuciieitieteitiesteeitestesteeetesteesteestestaesteestesseesteeasesssastseasssnsesssssseassessenasesnns 77
SECTION7. OTHER REMEDIES PRESERVED ........ccoiieitiitieiteeiteitesteestesteesteessessaasteesseassestesasesssassssasesnsessssssessessesasesnns 77
ARTICLE X. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ... oottt sttt sttt st st s be s s sran s snre s 78
SECTION L. INSURANCE BENEFITS ..cutiiiiiteiteitestestestestes e stestestessessessessestassessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessensenses 78
SECTION 2.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS ..cuiitiitiiteitestestestestestestestessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessesenses 78
SECTION 3.  WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS ...viitiitiitestestestestestesteste e stestestessestestessestestessessessessessessessessessenses 80

18




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION 4.  LONGEVITY COMPENSATION ...uiiitiiiitieitieittiesttesstissbtssatssssssasbessbassssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssens 80
SECTIONS.  SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT INCOME PLANS AVAILABLE TO LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS... 81
SECTIONG.  OTHER FLEXIBLE BENEFITS.....uiictiiteeetictecteesteestesteesteetsssesstestsssesstesstsssesssesssssesssessssssssssessssssssssesssesnes 82
ARTICLE XI. PERSONNEL RECORDS AND REPORTS ....ooo ittt s s 83
SECTION1. PERSONNEL RECORDS IMAINTENANCE .......cciitetteitiesteeitesteesteestessessteestessessbessssssesssessssssesssessssssssssesasesnes 83 Q
SECTION2.  INFORMATION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ....oioveiitiete ettt sttt st asstesstssassbasstesneesraesneenes 8 o‘b
SECTION 3.  ACCESS TO PERSONNEL RECORDS.......ccuiiiiiiitii ittt st stts s bes s be s st sbas s s bassbassabassbbsssbasssbasssbassabessraean ¢
SECTION4.  CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION ...ccttiiitititis it e st e steessbes bt s sibs s ebbsssbassabassabassbbsssbasssbasssbassabassbasssbassnses
SECTIONS. RECORDS OF FORMER EMPLOYEES.......c.cciitiiiiicitie ittt sttt sb s sbas st s b s sba s s ba s sbassabassbasssbagantes i
SECTIONG6. REMEDIES OF EMPLOYEES OBJECTING TO MATERIAL INFILE .....ocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiccreccee g A 84
SECTION7.  PENALTY FOR PERMITTING ACCESS TO CONFIDENTIAL FILE BY UNAUTHORIZED PE@G ......... 84
SECTION8.  PENALTY FOR EXAMINING AND/OR COPYING CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL WITHOL(IL
AUTHORIZATION ..ot itee et eeteseesteeete e steesasstesstessasssesstesssessessssssssssesssessssssessssssssssesssssssssesssessansessssssessreess Wonsveessesssnsvenns 84
SECTIONS. DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS REGULATED ....cuecotiiteectecte ettt Q)\ ....................... 84
APPENDIX A: WATAUGA COUNTY POSITION CLASSIFICATION PAY\P'L%I .......................... 86
APPENDIX B: OBSERVED BEHAVIOR - REASONABLE SUSPICIOQ .................................... 87
APPENDIX C: AUTHORIZATION FOR USE AND DISCLOSURE’@PROTECTED HEALTH
INFORMATION ... Q)ﬁ} ..................................................... 88
APPENDIX D: WATAUGA COUNTY REINSTATEMEN&?&QEEMENT ........................................ 89
APPENDIX E: EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPOdI‘Qg{LITIES UNDER FMLA.......ccooveiveeee 90

e
O
g\
00}
N
S
O

19




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS

1 Appointing Authority. Any board, elected official or position with legal or delegated authority to q&
make hiring decisions. N

2. Class. A position or group of positions having similar duties and responsibilities requiring similar Q
qualifications, which can be properly designated by one title indicative of the nature of the wo%o
performed, and which carry the same salary grade. @

3. Classified Employee. An employee occupying a position that is subject to the position clastiication
pay plan. Q

4. Compensatory Time. Time earned at a rate of time and one-half by a non-e emglémployee for
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek or in the case of law enf'o\z.gnent in excess of
171 hours in a 28-day cycle.

5. Competitive Service Employee. An employee of the Department of@GAI Services subject to the
State Personnel Act. o

6. Demotion. The reassignment of a classified employee for ,is\u'lplinary or performance related
reasons, or as a result of restructuring within a County ent, to a position or classification
having a lower salary grade than the employee’s currenb 10n or classification.

7. Department Head. The highest level of supervisti@top administrative official of a department of
county government. "00

8. Disciplinary Action. An action which nclude written warnings, suspension, demotion and
dismissal taken only for cause againsbs loyees based on personal misconduct or unsatisfactory
work performance. . (\

9. Exempt Employee. Full and e employees who are exempt from the overtime and minimum
wage provisions of the Fair r Standards Act.

10. General County Em . A County employee assigned to a department not subject to the State

Personnel Act. \Q

11. Grievance. chaim or complaint based upon an event or condition allegedly caused by
misinter re%gon, unfair application, or employment conditions. A grievance may involve alleged
safety ealth hazards, unsatisfactory physical facilities, surroundings, materials or equipment,
unfaig@y discriminatory supervisory or disciplinary practices, unjust treatment by fellow workers,
ur&mable work requirements, or any other inequity relating to conditions of employment.

12. Qliring Rate. The salary paid an employee when hired into County service, normally the beginning
O(b' rate of a grade and below midpoint.

. Q@B Internal Hiring. The re-assignment of an employee to an existing position after following the
@\} internal hiring process. For internal hiring, the vacant position is posted three (3) days throughout all

of the County departments prior to any external advertisement.

)

N 14. Maximum Salary Rate. The maximum salary authorized by the pay plan for an employee within an

assigned salary grade.

20




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Sig

O %7.
8\3
%)

100124 BCC Meeting

Non-Exempt Employee. Full- and part-time employees who have been classified as “Non-Exempt”
from the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act and who must be paid for overtime

hours worked or given compensatory time off in accordance with guidelines in this Ordinance. ,&
Overtime is paid or compensatory time off given to non-exempt employees for hours worked in Q
excess of 40 hours per week. Exception - The official work period for sworn law enforcement and Q
detention officers is 168 hours over a period of 28 consecutive days. (b

Department, usually outside the normal or routine functions of the County. Length of emplo
can be short term or an indefinite period of time. Employee is paid on an hourly rate
approved by the County Manager or his/her designee. This category of employee is QB‘b
employee benefits.

*
Non-Regular Employee. An employee hired under special circumstances in a General C@Eﬁ)

le for

Pay Range Revision. The raising and lowering of the salary range for one or ni(\ﬁg)peuflc classes of
positions within the classification plan.

Pay for Performance Increase. An increase in salary within the @fa’ salary grade, based on
meritorious service and on performance of duties for the assigned p03|

Performance Appraisal System. A system designed to \wment each employee’s work
performance as it relates specifically to work objectives f position as generally defined in the
position’s job description.

Position. A group of current duties and responsi @j assigned by competent authority, requiring
the full or part-time employment of one person, he existence of a position or its identity does not
depend upon its being occupied by an emplo@b

Position Classification Pay Plan. A plaMapproved by the Board of County Commissioners that
assigns classes (positions) to the app te salary grades.

Position Classification Pay Plan(%/lsmn The uniform raising and lowering of the salary grade for
every grade within the Positi @i‘rassmcatlon Pay Plan.

Probationary EmplqueC")A classified employee appointed to a regular position, who serves a
probationary perlodo

Promaotion. AQange in employment status to a higher class that involves more complex or difficult
duties and @onsibilities or greater accountability and is assigned a higher salary grade.

in job content such as duties, difficulty, required skills, responsibility of the work performed

C) . . - .
Rec ation. The reassignment of an existing position from one class to another based on
ch
ange in market conditions.

Reduction in Force (RIF). The elimination of or reduction of a position or some portion of a position
based on the needs of the organization, workload, or availability of funding.

Regular Employee. A classified employee who has satisfactorily completed a 6-month probationary
period, trainee progression or reinstatement of qualified employee, and has been approved for regular
status by his Department Head and County Manager or his/her designee. (a) Full-Time - An
employee appointed to a classified position that is regularly scheduled to work at least 30 hours a
week. (b) Part-Time Employee - An employee appointed to a classified position who is regularly
scheduled to work at least 20 hours but less than 30 hours per work week. Regular employees in all

21




28.

29.

30.

3L

32.

33.

34.

35.

100124 BCC Meeting

departments and agencies must be dismissed for cause and are informed in writing of their appeal

rights.

Salary Grade. A range of minimum, midpoint, and maximum pay rates assigned to all classified Q
positions. For the purpose of this definition, the words “grade,” “salary range,” and “range” are used

interchangeably. ’(?DQ

Separation. The resignation, reduction in force, disability, death, retirement or dismissal @zfr;)
employee.

Temporary Employee. An employee appointed to a temporary position. (l/b‘

Time Off Earned (TOE). Employees who are exempt from the Fair Labor Standards(Azt may accrue
time off earned for time worked in excess of 40 hours per week as approve ¢heir supervisor.
Time off earned shall accrue at the rate of one hour for each hour worked'm, cess of 40 hours
during a normal workweek. (,)\"

Trainee. A Department of Social Services Competitive Service err@yee appointed to a regular
position in any class for which the Office of State Personnel ha: orized "trainee™ appointments.
The trainee must be appointed to the regular position when @ gain the acceptable training and
experience.

Transfer. The reassignment of a classified employee f ne position or department to another. A
classified employee under this status would not b pt from Article IX.

Voluntary Demotion. Willingly accepting o%ﬁéing to move to a position or classification having
a lower salary grade than the employee’s?~ t position or classification.

Work-Against. In departments W@employees are subject to the State Personnel Act, the
appointing authority may appoig employee in a work against situation. When qualified
applicants are unavailable and is no trainee provision for the classification of the vacancy, the
appointing authority may }?@nt an employee below the level of the regular classification in a
“work against” appointme his appointment is for the purpose of allowing the employee to gain
the qualifications n for the full class through on the job experience. A work against
appointment may made when applicants are available who meet the training and experience
requirements f @ full class in the position being recruited. During the duration of the work
against appoinQent, the employee is on probationary status.

22




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE Il. ORGANIZATION OF PERSONNEL SYSTEM

SECTION1. PURPOSE |

The purpose of this ordinance is to establish a personnel system that will promote a fair and effective means
of employee recruitment and selection, develop and maintain an effective and responsible work force, a
provide the means for removal of unsatisfactory employees. This ordinance is established under_th
authority of G.S. 153A, Article 5, and G.S. 126 of the General Statutes of North Carolina.

| SECTION2.  COVERAGE P |

ol V4
\d

This personnel ordinance and all rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto sha qﬂnding on all
County employees, except as provided in this section. An employee violating any of,\ tovisions of this
un

ordinance shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, as well as prosecutlon

er civil or criminal

laws which have been violated. 0
A All employees in the County's service shall be subject to this policydnless specifically identified
below. O
B. The following officials and employees are exempt: \Q)é
Board of County Commissioners 6
Advisory, Special Boards and Commissions <
Elected Officials O
County Manager (O

County Attorney Q)
Consultants Q‘
<

Non-Regular Employees
Temporary employees

Volunteers (b&
The following employees?d%h be subject to this policy, except as specifically identified below:

1. Employees of rth Carolina Cooperative Extension Service shall be subject to Article I,
Section 3, Arti , Sections 8 and 14, Article V1, and Article VII, Section 1.

2. Employges df the Register of Deeds are exempt from Article 1V, Sections 2-8; Article VIII and
Artigle

3. loyees of the Sheriff's Office are exempt from Article 1V, Sections 2-8; Article VII, Section
Article VIII and Article IX.

(OQ. The Supervisor of Elections is exempt from Avrticle IV, Sections 2-8; Article VIII and Article IX.

O 5. Competitive Service Employees shall be covered by all articles and sections except where noted.

In the event that the Ordlnance confllcts with the State Personnel Act the State Personnel Act
shall prevail.
Senvices:

6. The Tax Administrator’s appointment shall be governed by G.S. 105-294.

o

N

23




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION 3. MERIT PRINCIPLE |

All appointments and personnel actions hereunder shall be made solely on the basis of merit and fitness ’\&
without regard to an individual's race, color, sex, gender, age, disability, national origin, political affiliation or Q
religious affiliation. All regular positions requiring the performance of the same duties and fulfillment of the
same responsibilities shall be assigned to the same class and the same salary grade. ((503

SECTION4.  RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS (cy,
N

Classification Pay Plan and shall make and confirm appointments when so specified by law. oard may
change the ordinances and benefits as deemed necessary.
,‘fo 2

SECTIONG. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COUNTY MANAGER \ |

The County Manager shall be responsible to the Board of Commissioner@ the administration of the

personnel program. Department Head level positions including the Depq%?em&ymnager Department of
Social Services Director, Emergency Services Director, Finance ;% ector, Human Resources Director,

The Board of County Commissioners shall establish personnel policies and rules, includ@Position

Information Technologies Director, Maintenance Director peration Services Director, Parks
and Recreation Director, Planning and Inspections Director, Proj Aging Director, Tax Administrator,
and Veteran's Services Officer; shall be appointed, suspended moved by the County Manager with the
approval of the Board of County Commissioners. iZother positions in departments under the
Commissioner's general control shall be appointed, s ded or removed by the County Manager in
accordance with the terms of this ordinance and in ac nce with G.S. 153A-82. An official copy of the
Personnel Ordinance and rules shall be availablg=ydhe County Manager’s Office. Any questions on the
applicability or interpretation of the Ordinance’s gidelines or rules shall be directed to the County Manager
or his/her designee before proceeding. . 6_)
RN

SECTION6.  RESPONSIBILITY OF,;"@E\PERSGNNEL—QFHGER HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR
\

The Human Resources Director, i i shall assist the County Manager in
the preparation and maint of the Position Classification Pay Plan and perform such other duties in
connection with a moder onnel program, as the Manager shall require. The County Manager or his/her
designee shall perform@ the following duties and responsibilities:

A Apply, |§ et and carry out this policy and the policies adopted hereunder, and any situations not
cover ein.

|sh and maintain records of all County employees’ service to include name, grade, title of
ition, salary, employment status, history and other relevant employment data.

(() Develop and administer such recruiting programs as may be necessary to obtain an adequate supply
Q of competent applicants to meet the needs of the County.
<

Encourage and exercise leadership in the development of effective personnel administration within
the various County departments, and to make available the facilities of the personnel office to this
end.

24




100124 BCC Meeting

E. Investigate, when necessary, the operation and effect of this policy and of the policies made there
under, and report their findings and recommendations to the Board of Commissioners.

F. Make recommendations to the Board of Commissioners regarding the personnel functions, as well as Q \t
revisions to the personnel system, as they may consider appropriate. Q

G. Issue and publish administrative directives, supplements, interpretations and necessary prescrib%,
forms and reports for any personnel matters for the proper functioning, maintenance_an
documentation of the procedures established by and in accordance with this policy. @

All matters dealing with personnel shall be routed through the County Manager or his/her de(l’&%, who
shall maintain a complete system of personnel files and records. q/

NO*
ol

25




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE I1l. POSITION CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN

SECTION1.  ADOPTION | Q\&

The Board of County Commissioners hereby adopts the Watauga County Position Classification Pay Plan. ODQ
Please refer to Appendix A, which may be amended from time to time by the Board of Coun%
Commissioners.

*

W/
| SECTION2.  PURPOSE N
v

The position classification plan provides a complete inventory of all authorized and regula?%ions in the
County service, and an accurate description and specification for each class of e yment. The plan
standardizes job titles, each of which is indicative of a definite range of duties a ponsibilities. All

positions covered by the Personnel Ordinance peliey are to be classified accordq{g“;[o he assigned duties,
responsibilities, qualifications needed, and modern classification factors. In 0 insure its continuing

value as a personnel management tool, the position classification plan wi maintained to reflect the
current work assignments and other conditions and requirements, which a@factors in proper classification
and allocation of regular positions. 6\

The N.C. Office of State Personnel in compliance with the rules\&hgulaﬁons under the State Personnel
Act will classify positions in the Department of Social Servicesb
)

SECTION3. COMPOSITION OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN

Q)‘b
The classification plan shall consist of: Q~
A A grouping of positions into clas? work which are approximately equal in difficulty and
responsibility which call for N¥ame general qualifications, and which can be equitably
compensated within the same of pay under similar working conditions;
B. Class titles descriptive o th\gv\vork of the class;
N\
C. Written specificat@or each class of positions; and

D. An aIIocati%l_g showing the class title of each position in the classified service.

O
| SECTION £\NUSE OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN
b
O

The ification plan provides the County a uniform job classification system and terminology and is used:

As a guide in recruiting and examining applicants for employment;

é‘\\o B. In determining lines of promotion and in developing employee training programs;

@ C. In determining the appropriate salary range to be paid for various types of work; and
D. In determining personnel service cost in department budgets.
7

26




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTIONS5. REQUEST FOR RECLASSIFICATION |

Any employee who considers the position in which classified to be improper shall submit a request in writing ’\&
for reclassification to such employee's immediate supervisor, who shall immediately transmit the request to Q
the Department Head. Upon receipt of such request, the Department Head shall study the request, determine Q
the merit of the reclassification, and make a recommendation to the County Manager or his/her designee i ~03
order to maintain a fair and accurate classification plan. With the exception of time sensitive circumstancegb ‘
a request for reclassification of a position should presented to the County Manager during the annual t
process to prevent any type of shortfall within the department’s budgeted salaries. b‘

N>

SECTION 6. ADMINISTRATION OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN AV |

v
The Position Classification Pay Plan shall be administered in a fair and systematic %)né‘r in accordance
with work performed. The pay structure shall be externally competitive, shall mairitain proper internal
relationships among all positions based on relative duties and responsibiljds? and shall recognize
performance as the basis for pay increases within the established pay range. sition Classification Pay
Plan shall meet the requirements of the State Competitive Service System fQrT10cal government employees,
while maintaining a countywide plan. The County Manager or his/ ekéignee shall perform all of the
following duties and responsibilities: &
AN

A The County Manager or his/her designee shall be respo for the administration and maintenance
of the Position Classification Pay Plan to accurately r, ’ the duties performed by employees in the
classes to which their positions are allocated. De ent Heads shall be responsible for bringing to
the attention of the County Manager or his/h ignee the need for new positions and material
changes in the nature of duties, responsibilit@ r working conditions affecting the classification of
a position.

B. New positions shall be established.@commendation of the County Manager or his/her designee
with the approval of the Board g Q nty Commissioners. The County Manager or his/her designee
may allocate the new positi the appropriate class within the existing classification plan; or
recommend that the Boar(gggmmissioners amend the Position Classification Pay Plan to establish
a new class to which tbe@ position may be allocated.

N\

nature or leve ties and responsibilities of an existing position, the County Manager or his/her

designee sl'qll

1 D@(hat the existing class specifications be revised;

C. When the Cm@y\y\ager or his/her designee finds that a substantial change has occurred in the

%)@bcommend that the Board of County Commissioners reallocate the position to the appropriate
(\ class within the existing classification plan; or

O 3. Recommend that the Board of Commissioners amend the position classification plan to establish
Q a new class to which the position may be allocated.
N
<

| SECTION 7. MAINTENANCE OF THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN

The County Manager or his/her designee shall be responsible for the administration and maintenance of the
Position Classification Pay Plan. The Position Classification Pay Plan is intended to provide equitable

27




0@

N

100124 BCC Meeting

compensation for all positions when considered in relation to each other, general rates of pay for similar
employment in the private and public sector, changes in the cost of living, financial conditions of the County,
and other factors. The County Manager or his/her designee shall, from time to time, order comparative
studies of all factors affecting the level of salary grade and shall recommend to the Board of County Q
Commissioners such changes in salary grades as are warranted. Q
3

SECTION 8. HIRING RATE/STARTING SALARY %

Employees will be hired at the minimum rate of their assigned salary grade. Appointments ﬁ@e

minimum rate may be made by the County Manager or his/her designee when deemed necessar e best
interests of the County, based on such factors as superior qualifications of the applicant rtage of
qualified applicants available at the hiring rate, or the refusal of qualified applicants to acce ployment at

the minimum rate. The Board of County Commissioners must approve any appointme Qve the midpoint
of the salary rate. Approval of all personnel actions is subject to the availability of fuhq. No action can be
taken by the County Manager, which would expend funds in excess of those ap&r'o‘priated for the current

fiscal year. O()

SECTION 9. PAYMENT AT A RATE WITHIN THE SALARY GRADE Q)

&
Classified employees covered by the Position Classification Pay PK@wéall be paid at a rate within the salary
grade established for their respective job classes. 60

When a classified employee attains the maximum rate of y grade for their position, no salary increases
shall be received unless (1) the position is reclassified t igher salary grade, (2) the classified employee is
promoted to a higher salary grade, or (3) the sal rade for the position is increased. If a pay for
performance increase or cost of living adjustmen s an employee’s salary to exceed the maximum range
for their position, the difference between theirQew salary and the maximum range shall be paid in a lump
sum. Employees already at the maximum of{w@salary grade shall receive a lump sum payment.

(97
SECTION 10. PAY RATES IN PRO @r,@N, DEMOTION, TRANSFER, AND RECLASSIFICATION

When a classified employee jg Qrpmoted, demoted, transferred, or reclassified the rate of pay for the new
position shall be established,@ llows:

A When a prorf@on occurs, if the employee’s current salary is below the new minimum, the
employee' ry shall be increased to the greater of, the minimum rate of the salary grade assigned

to the cags To which they are promoted to or a 5% increase. If an employee's current salary is
alre d@%ve the new minimum salary rate, their salary shall be adjusted approximately 5% upward
b n funds available or in unusual circumstances may be left unchanged at the discretion of the
ty Manager or his/her designee, provided that the adjusted salary does not exceed the maximum

(b{\ the assigned salary range.

: If the employee's salary grade is lowered as a result of a reclassification or a transfer, and the
employee's current salary falls above the maximum of the range for the lower class, the employee's

&}Q salary will remain the same until any adjustments are made to the Position Classification Pay Plan.

C. When a reclassification occurs and an employee’s position is reclassified to a class having a higher
salary range, the employee’s salary shall be increased to the minimum of the new pay range. If the
employee’s current salary is already above the minimum salary rate, their salary may be adjusted

28




0@

N

100124 BCC Meeting

Q

D. If an employee is demoted because of a disciplinary action or takes a voluntary demotion, t%(?‘)
employee's salary will be reduced using a formula that calculates the new salary based on the Jewe
salary range for the position the employee is moving into and in consideration of said empl@s
salary point within the range of their position prior to the demotion, considering factors sudsas; Tair
and equitable treatment with other employees in the same classification based o iping and
experience, performance levels, and salary increases previously received. The re in salary
shall not fall below the minimum salary rate of that range. When the demotion is nef the result of
disciplinary action, the salary shall be set at a rate within the lower pay rapéjﬂhich provides a
salary commensurate with the employee’s qualification to perform the job, usingdhe above described
formula. If the current salary is within the new range, the employee’s sae}yomay be retained at the
previous rate, at the discretion of the County Manger. O

E. If an employee transfers to a different position within the same x@y grade, the employee's salary
will remain the same until any adjustments are made to the Pos@n Classification Pay Plan.

\@
SECTION 11. PAY FOR PERFORMANCE INCREASES A\)\
N

Upward movement within the established Position Class@ion Pay Plan for an employee is not automatic
but based on specific performance-related reasons. Emg yees may be considered for advancement within
the established salary range based on the qualit%@elr overall performance. Procedures for determining
performance levels and pay for performance inGreases shall be established in—procedures with criteria

e
approved by the County Manager or his/her %\ﬁ@ee.

: : N\ : _
Except in unusual circumstances, pay fg&erformance increases will not be awarded more often than once
every twelve (12) months. \2\@

SECTION 12. PAY FOR PERESEBMANCE AT MAXIMUM OF SALARY RANGE
>

Employees who are at imum of the salary range for their position classification are eligible to be
considered for a pay fonerformance bonus which if awarded does not become part of the employee’s salary
and shall be paid in%amp sum.

If a pay for p mance increase causes an employee’s salary to exceed the maximum range for their
position, t erence between their new salary and the maximum range shall be paid in a lump sum.
Employe eady at the maximum of their salary grade shall receive a lump sum payment.

O\
| SECPON 13. PAY FOR PART-TIME WORK
\

he Position Classification Pay Plan established by this manual is for regular employees. An employee

;\}Q pointed to a regular part-time position shall be paid at a rate determined by converting the established

annual salary within the correct pay range for the position, to the appropriate hourly rate. When a
comparable full-time position classification does not exist, the County Manager or his/her designee er
i upon recommendation of the Department Head shall establish an hourly rate.
Temporary service pay and non-regular pay shall be based on market conditions as recommended by the
Department Head subject to the County Manager's approval.

10
29




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION 14. SALARY OF DSS COMPETITIVE SERVICE TRAINEE |

Competitive Service Employees subject to the State Personnel Act will be designated “trainees” in
accordance with rules and regulations established by the Office of State Personnel. Applicants being
considered for Competitive Service Employment or Competitive Service Employees who do not meet all of
the requirements for the position for which they are being considered may upon recommendation by the |
Office of the State Personnel be hired, promoted, demoted, or transferred by the DSS Director with t
approval of the County Manager or his/her designee, to a “trainee” or “work against” status. An empl in
a trainee status shall continue to receive reduced pay until the Office of State Personnel and th@e
Director, with approval of the County Manager, determine that the trainee is qualified to ass e full
responsibilities of the position.

Trainee salaries may be one to three grades below the minimum salary established for t poq( on for which
the person is being trained. Assignment of two grades below is appropriate for more tl)ﬁ%?x"months but less
than two years. Note: Positions subject to the State Personnel Act may be assigned no more than two grades
below for trainee purposes. Q) .

In the trainee or work against status, a plan for training and meeting the mintim qualification for the job

classification, including a time schedule, must be prepared by the x@rvisor. If the training is not

successfully completed the employee shall be transferred, demoted\or dismissed. If the training is

successfully completed, the employee shall be paid at least the mi\i@um rate for the position for which the

employee is being trained. 60

SECTION 15. OVERTIME ,}Q%
U

Employees of the County can be requested and required to work overtime hours as necessitated by
the needs of the County and determined by the Depgriment Head.

Regular Overtime — It shall be the policy‘&auga County to avoid overtime work whenever possible.
Unless special authorization has been ved, Department Heads are expected to keep each employee’s
hours within 40 hours per week. Exo@dtin cases of emergency, employees are not to perform work at any
time they are not scheduled to wox, ‘unless they receive prior approval from their Department Head. An
emergency exists if a conditiqaiges that could reasonably result in damage to property or persons or which
requires immediate attenti ﬂ\e employee. Employees who work excess hours due to an emergency shall
advise their Departmen of the overtime worked as soon as practical practicable following completion
of the work. In emergeNgles, the Department Head may approve reasonable periods of overtime work to meet
operational needs. h overtime work shall be reported to the County Manager or his/her designee within
five (5) workda n non-emergency situations, the County Manager or his/her designee must approve
periods of OMR work.

Whenev&actlcable, departments will schedule time off on an hour for hour basis within the applicable
wor od for nonexempt employees, instead of paying overtime. When time off within the work period
e granted, overtime worked will be given in the form of compensatory time off.

mendments (FLSA) of 1986, 2004 and 2024, or those guidelines that have most recently been adopted or
approved. The County Manager or his/her designee shall determine which jobs are “Non-Exempt” and are
therefore subject to the FLSA in areas such as hours of work and work periods, rates of overtime
compensation, and other provisions. The County will properly record all applicable overtime accrual for each

& e County abides by all applicable sections of the Fair Labor Standards Act and the Fair Labor Standard
\

11

N
Q<z

30




100124 BCC Meeting

covered employee. This overtime policy is applicable only to employees of Watauga County who are non-
exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Employees classified, as non-exempt from the Fair Labor Standards Act shall be compensated at the rate of Q’\&
one and one-half hours for each hour worked in excess of the regular 40-hour week. The computation of

overtime shall be based on time worked after completing 40 full hours of work within a given week. This (bQ
40-hour period shall be actual hours worked not including any paid leave, holiday time or otherwis%.
Employees in sworn law enforcement may earn overtime based on a 28-day time period (hours in excess.0

171 hours). Except where specifically provided for, it shall be the policy of the County to use comper@/

time as payment for overtime worked, instead of overtime pay.

Non-exempt employees who are in sworn law enforcement may accrue a maximum @lhours of
compensatory time for overtime hours worked. Other non-exempt employees may accrue a mum of 240
hours of compensatory time. «

'\

Compensatory time off leave shall be designated by the employee’s DepartmenkHgad normally to occur
during periods when workloads are light and would not unduly disrupt operam ompensatory time must
be designated and taken within three (3) months of the overtime when practidaldle. If the employee fails to
take earned compensatory time off at the time designated by the Departmg@Iead, the employee is subject to
disciplinary actions.

Employees who are exempt from the Fair Labor Standards Act Qﬁgcrue time off earned for time worked
in excess of 40 hours per week as approved by their supervisoC)Time off earned shall accrue at the rate of
one hour for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours duq'ag)normal workweek. The computation of time
off earned shall be based on time worked after completl full hours of work within a given week. This
40- hour period shall be actual hours worked not i e&gng any leave paid or otherwise. When there is a
holiday in the work week, time off earned is calc adding total hours worked plus holiday time, hours
over 40 are accrued. Time off earned may not ansferred to any other type of leave. Time off earned is
not required by the Fair Labor Standards }génd therefore, not a guaranteed County benefit. Exempt
employees will not be compensated forgtlwe off earned when separated from the County. Overtime
compensation is not required in top-lev @%ervisory, administrative and professional positions.

Compensatory time off for emplo?é? classified as non-exempt and time off earned for exempt employees
will be used during any penos&qgabsence from work before other accrued paid leave.
NQ)
| SECTION 16. ON-CA(D@LL BACK COMPENSATION
N\

Even though o #:ompensation may not be required by the Fair Labor Standards Act, the County
recognizes tha%n callback usually results in added travel expense and inconvenience for the employee.
Therefore e policy of Watauga County to provide additional compensation for employees who are on-
call orr d to a “callback” in order to perform necessary work at a time other than during the employee’s

regula@& heduled hours of work.

@efore certain classified employees of Animal Care and Control, Emergency Management, the

@epartment of Social Services (Social Workers I, 11 and I11) and Maintenance Department are eligible for on-

\Q all compensation when the employee is routinely required to be on call and report for work upon contact

from their supervisor via pager—or telephone. The Department Head is responsible for designating the

%) individuals which positions are to be placed on call and submit a list of them, including a standard rotation
N schedule to be followed, to the County Manager or his/her designee for approval.

12
31




Watauga County On-Call Compensation: |

$20/day

Monday thru Friday

$50/day

Saturday thru Sunday

$80/day

100124 BCC Meeting

N

On-call time is not considered actual hours worked for overtime purposes and is compensated on the above ('bQ

schedule.

Time on callback is determined from the time the employee leaves home and until the employee r@
home, but not less than one (1) hour for each call-back. Callback time is considered actual hours V\We or

overtime purposes.

Holiday Q
QD’ J
Q
YV
Nl

>

13

32




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION 17. K-9 PAY |

N

K-9 Officers shall be compensated at a flat rate of one-half hour per day (based on the individual officer’s Q
hourly rate) which will be paid biweekly for the care and upkeep of their canine. ODQ
y. *

SECTION 18. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

LN

Federal and state income taxes, Social Security tax, and retirement contributions shall be de t%/as
authorized by law and the Board of County Commissioners. The County Manager must appraye|gny other

payroll deduction. q/

y4
SECTION 19. PAYROLL PROCEDURE el |

All employees shall be paid on a biweekly basis. Payday will be every oth@é’é}. When necessary, if
payday falls on a recognized holiday, payroll may be processed early. AllN\epAployees of the County are
required to provide the necessary bank account information for mandatorx@ct deposit.

)N

SECTION 20. IMPROPER OR UNLAWFUL PAYROLL DEDUCTIONQ})

o

re properly computed and calculated. It is
er or unlawful deductions. If you believe that
tion was made to your wages or salary, contact
rtment and/or HR department will investigate the
pt reimbursement as required.

Every effort is made to ensure that compensation and paych
against County policy for any employee's wages to have i
your pay is incorrect or that an improper or unlawful

the Finance Department immediately. Our payrg
matter, make corrections as appropriate, and mak

The salaries of employees exempt under th @%abor Standards Act, 29 CFR Part 541, may be
reduced or be subject to deduction for th wing conditions ONLY:

e For one or more full day&&%sence for personal reasons other than sickness or disability and the
employee has no leavg tggover the absence.

e For sickness or di (including work place injury) if the employee has not qualified for the
County’s leave , has not earned sufficient leave to cover the absence, or has exhausted all
leave and has'0 earned leave remaining to cover the absence. If the employee has exhausted all
leave ben or Voluntary Shared Leave donations that would cover an FMLA absence, the

employeps salary may be reduced in hourly increments while on FMLA leave.

o De c@ for penalties imposed for violations of safety rules of major significance, including those
re to the prevention of serious danger in our workplace or to other employees.

° ctions resulting from suspensions without pay for serious violations of our workplace

isconduct rules.
Cp In the initial or final workweek of employment, deductions may be made for the days of the
workweek not worked. For example, in the first or last workweek of work, if the employee only
. QQ works two of the five days, the employee will receive 2/5 (two fifths) of their weekly salary.
N\

0@ Pursuant to Federal Regulations 29 Part 541.710, salaries of exempt salaried employees may be reduced
\ under the following conditions in that all agency employees are employed under the rules of public
accountability:

14
33




100124 BCC Meeting

o For absences of less than a day for personal reasons, illness, or injury when accrued leave is not used
because:
1. Permission for the absence/leave has not been sought or it has been requested by the employee
and was denied;
2. Accrued leave has been exhausted;
3. The employee requests ercheeses and is approved to use leave without pay.

<«
Q\
P

o Deductions for a "budget-required furlough” implemented by agency management or the govergiag
board/body. During such week, and only in such week, the Part 541 exemption is lost a
employee is entitled to overtime compensation in the week of the furlough if the empl
more than 40 hours (or other standard which is employed in law enforcement or fire-fighli
being in furlough status. (l/

Deductions from salaries of employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standq@\bt, 29 CFR Part

works
despite

541, are NOT permitted by the regulation for the following conditions:
e On an hourly basis except for unpaid FMLA leave and as provided in @fecial rules above.

e to inclement weather such as

rned leave for such closings unless

nt remains open for salaried exempt
or using leave.

e When the office, facility, building or department is officially clQs
snow or ice. Exempt salaried workers cannot be required to &
it is announced that the office, facility, building or dep
employees and they are given the option of reporting to

issues, attendance issues, minor safety rules,

e For penalties or rules violations such as perfor
cash shortages, losses, rules of evidence violagipl8 or damages to equipment or property, including

insurance deductibles when damage has oggU@sd.

Employees can report improper or unlawful
reprisal. Upon receiving notification

ctions from their wages without fear of discrimination or
er or unlawful deduction from pay, the Human Resource
the Payroll Manager, will investigate the matter and issue a

of antd
Director, or designee, in consultation
finding before the next pay periodé ate. If the investigation confirms the deduction was improper or

unlawful the employee(s) shall be

*

hour.

Q\‘r

e

ursed the amount of the deduction with the next paycheck.

It shall be the policy of Wat@e\%unty to round all time in increments of 8 minutes to the next quarter of an

15
34




*

I\
2

100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE IV. RECRUITMENT AND EMPLOYMENT

SECTION 1. STATEMENT OF EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PoOLICY |

N

It is the policy of the County to maintain a systematic, consistent recruitment program, to promote equal ODQ
employment opportunity and to identify and attract the most qualified applicants for all present and futu%
vacancies with Watauga County. This is achieved through consistency in announcing all posii'@n ,

*

evaluating all applicants on the same criteria, and by utilizing the services of the local Employment S
Commission. Selection decisions shall be made without regard to race, color, religion, age, gel&r, X,
national origin, political affiliation or non-disqualifying disability. (1/
O
v

SECTION 2. JOB ADVERTISEMENTS

working days. After three (3) days of internal posting, outside recruitment m *sought. All positions
posted externally shall be advertised for a minimum of seven (7) d at the County PRersonnel
Administration Office and the NC Works Career Center lssi Additional
advertisements may be carried out through the media as appropriate. i y announcements shall include

\2M
All open regular position vacancy announcements shall be posted internally fog a %}imum of three (3)

QD

information pertinent to the position/work involved, including at a mifigaum, the title, grade, starting salary,
key duties, knowledge and skill requirements, minimum edu
certification or licensing requirements and application clos
Employment Opportunity shall be contained therein. \When
and externally concurrently, and may be posted as “Open QQt

and experience standard, special
ate. In addition, assurance of Equal
opriate positions may be posted internally
illed.”

SECTION 3. APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMEDWLQ)J
N
All employees (including temporary and nq;g@ar) are eligible to apply for any position vacancy during an

advertisement period. Employees interQ in being considered for a specific opening must submit an
updated County application to Human ?@urces the-Personnel-Office by the application closing date.

All persons expressing interest in
to file an application for em
accepted for any and all pogj
applications. All persg
application to the
date.

vertised position with Watauga County shall be given the opportunity

ent. The Watauga County application shall be the standard application
istings. Competitive Service departments will accept North Carolina State
ressing interest in an externally advertised position must submit a County
i ission NC Works Career Center by the application closing

All applications @eived by the Employment Security Commission shall be retained by Human Resources

ice for a period of not less than two years, in accordance with Federal and State
requireme@ Department Heads must return all original applications and documents to the Personnel
Office

O
x>

)
d‘é:TION 4. APPLICATION TRACKING
N
FhePersonnel-Office Human Resources shall be responsible for maintenance of records of all job vacancy
announcements, including posting and closing dates, and all optional referral sources utilized during the
recruitment process and the pool of applicants considered for each vacancy.

16
35




100124 BCC Meeting

| SECTION5. SELECTION |

All applicants considered for employment or promotion shall meet the employment standards established by ,&
the class specifications relating to the position to which the appointment is being made. Department Heads Q\
(in cooperation with Human Resources the—Persennel-Office) shall develop, utilize and document, on a Q
consistent and routine basis, a selection process, which best suits the needs in filling positions within each fb
agency/department. QD N
o
| SECTION 6. EMPLOYMENT R %

Prior to an offer of employment, the Department Head shall forward to the County Maqﬂr his/her
designee a Personnel Action Form (PAF) along with the employment application indigating fer the
Department Head’s recommendation for employment. The required informatio uthorization and
acknowledgment forms must also be submitted to complete a pre-employment ba und check on all
employment candidates. The County Manager or his/her designee mayxapprove or reject the
recommendation and will determine if the starting salary is appropriate, subjec@@e following conditions:

A If the duties of the position involve operation of a County ow hicle or the use of a personal
vehicle for County business, the applicant will provide a drivir&re ord, which will become a part of
their personnel file.

N

C. The Sheriff, Register of Deeds and t?g@érd of Elections shall have the authority over the
appointment of employees in their reis tive departments, with the County Manager or his/her

designee approving the satary pay gr d salary.

must approve the appoint the Sheriff or Register of Deeds of a relative by blood, marriage or
nearer Kinship than first;: sin or a person who has been convicted of a crime involving moral

turpitude. ‘\\

E. By the authori ‘?apters 108A and 126 of the N.C. General Statutes, the Department Head will
have authogjty Qver appointments in the Competitive Service departments. The State Office of

N\
D. By the authority of Chap%aﬁ&l% of the N.C. General Statutes, the Board of Commissioners

Personnel determine the classification, and the County Manager will approve the salary grade
and sala
\\‘Q
| SECTION@\PROMOTION, TRANSFER AND DEMOTION
\¥

Ac)(b' Promotion/Internal Hiring — Candidates for promotion or internal hiring shall be chosen on the basis

of their qualifications and their work records without regard to age, sex, race, color, creed, religion,
. Q political affiliation, national origin or handicap. In order to encourage job advancement and
\}Q employee development, all County employees are eligible to apply for vacant job openings. This

%) will not apply to those situations where State Personnel policy requires outside recruitment before
@ considering a lower qualified person in a trainee situation.
17

36




100124 BCC Meeting

If a county employee is chosen for promotion or internal hiring, the Department Head shall forward
the request to the County Manager or his/her designee with recommendations for salary along with
reasons for selecting the employee over other applicants. After considering the Department Head’s
recommendation, the County Manager or his/her designee may approve or reject the appointment
and, if appointed, determine the starting salary.

Transfer — A classified employee, who wishes to accept a position with less complex duti@j.

and reduced responsibilities, may request a transfer to another position for reasons otherARan
unsatisfactory work performance or failure in personal conduct. A voluntary transfer may res
lower salary.

If a vacant advertised position exists and a classified employee wishes to be ¢ @red for the
position, an application must be forwarded to the Human Resources Department oY his designee
during the recruitment period for the position. After considering th r%aa’artment Head’s
recommendation, the County Manager or his/her designee may approve the transfer and determine
the starting salary of the employee. Transfers will not be considered un e classified employee
is qualified for an advertised vacant position. O

a position or classification having a lower salary grade thagyhe employee’s current position or
classification. An employee whose work performance in present position is unsatisfactory or
whose personal conduct is unsatisfactory may be dem rovided the employee shows promise of
becoming a satisfactory employee in another positi uch a demotion shall be preceded by the
warning procedures outlined in Article VIII. Re tative causes for demotion because of failure
in work performance and failure in personal ¢ ct are listed in Article VIII, Sections 8 B and C.
The employee shall be provided with wri @ ice citing the recommended effective date, reasons
for the demotion, and appeal rights avai 0 the employee as stated in Article VIII of the policy.
In the case of a demotion, after (;(%s’%i‘ng the Department Head’s recommendation, the County

Demotion— A demotion is the reassignment of a classifle(i e’@)yee for disciplinary reasons to

Manager or his/her designee shall ine the salary and assign the appropriate classification.

5
%)

N

NV
SECTION 8. PROBATIONARY P@OD— EMPLOYMENT, TRANSFER, PROMOTION, AND DEMOTION
A Probationary Perloﬁ&mployment (New Hire) — A newly hired classified employee shall serve a
probatlonary dof no less than six (6) months. Sworn law enforcement officers shall serve a
twelve- mo robation in accordance with State Criminal Justice Standards. At the

recomm n of the Department Head and the approval of the County Manager or his/her
design %n employee's probationary period may be extended for one three (3) month period.
m@es in trainee or “work against” appointments will have specific time frames established for
th€probationary period. A newly hired classified employee serving a probationary period may be
issed, without cause or explanation, at any time during the probationary period.

A newly hired classified employee serving a probationary period will receive all benefits provided in
accordance with this ordinance, with the following exceptions:

1. A probationary employee may accumulate vacation leave. Vacation leave may not be taken
during this period without prior written approval of the Department Head. and-County-Manager
or-histher-designee: A limited amount of vacation leave will be granted during an employee’s
probationary period to avoid leave without pay, until an adequate amount of paid leave time can
be accrued.

18

N
L

37




100124 BCC Meeting

2. Probationary employees have no right of grievances during this period and may be transferred,
demoted or dismissed at any time without further notice and without the right of grievance,
except when the employee alleges unlawful harassment or discrimination based on race, color, ,&
religion, age, sex, national origin, political affiliation or non-disqualifying condition. Q N

3. Before a classified employee completes the probationary period, the Department Head shall Q
conduct a written performance appraisal evaluation to be forwarded with a personnel action forlo:)
to the County Manager or his/her designee indicating:

That the employee has been advised of their progress (accomplishments, strer@bs and

weaknesses); Q

Whether the employee is performing satisfactorily or should have their roatfonary period
extended; or '\% ®

Whether the employee should be transferred, demoted, or dismis m County service.

Following successful completion of the probationary period, tzs loyee shall be considered a
regular employee and can only be separated as provided in e VIII of this ordinance.

B. Probationary Period — Transfer, Promotion and Demotior @) The classified employee transferred,
promoted or demoted shall successfully complete a si Mnonth probationary period in their new
position. A classified employee serving a probati period may be transferred, demoted or
dismissed if unable to satisfactorily perform assi ties of the new position and will be afforded
all rights as specified in Article VIII of this ord'% e.

Before a classified employee completes @f%bationary period, the Department Head shall conduct
a written performance appraisal evaligatioh to be forwarded with a personnel action form to the
County Manager or his/her designe ting:

That the employee %n advised of their progress (accomplishments, strengths and
weaknesses);

Whether the g@&ee is performing satisfactorily or should have their probationary period
extended; or,

Whet%g employee should be transferred, demoted, or dismissed from County service.

SECTION 9., RICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT (ADA)
)

icy of the County to comply with the relevant and applicable provisions of the Americans With
ity Act (ADA). The County will not discriminate against any qualified employee or applicant with
to any terms, privileges or conditions of employment because of a person's physical or mental
isability. The County will also make reasonable accommodations wherever necessary for employees or
q)pllcants with disabilities, provided that the individual is otherwise qualified to safely perform the duties
and assignments connected with the job and provided that any accommodations made do not require
06 significant difficulty or expense.
-
Employees or applicants, who may need an accommodation, whether temporary or permanent, shall contact
the persennel-director Human Resources Director for assistance.

19

38




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE V. CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

N

The official workweek for all County employees is 40 hours over a seven (7) day work period. The standard ODQ
workweek shall be from 12:01 a.m. on Monday through 12:00 p.m. on Sunday. The standard workday sh

be from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. An alternate workweek or day may be used only if approved by the C

Manager or his/her designee.

SECTION 1. WORKWEEK |

Department Heads, supervisors and otherwise exempt employees under FLSA shall wor %‘ hours
necessary to ensure satisfactory performance of their departments, but not less than 40 er week.
Department Heads shall schedule staff to ensure the public is assisted during regular office h s When the
activities of a particular department require some other schedule to meet work needs, t unty Manager or
his/her designee may authorize a deviation from the normal schedule.
\0
O

The exception is the official work period for sworn law enforcement officers. O

It shall be the policy of Watauga County to round all time in increments O\f@nnutes to the next quarter of an
hour and time should be recorded on all employees’ timesheets accordi

\&
SECTION 2. GIFTS AND FAVORS AQ\
A No official or employee of the County shall acc y gift, whether in the form of a service, loan, a

thing of value, or a promise from any person, f¢ r corporation, who in the employee's knowledge,
is interested directly or indirectly in any r@;@) whatsoever in business dealings with the County.

B. No official or employee shall accept |ft favor or thing of value that may tend to influence that
employee in the discharge of dutle{\

C. No official or employee shall €ant in the discharge of duties any improper favor, service, or thing of
value.

*

D. All County employ@all refuse gratuities in the form of money.

| SECTION 3. CONgL\ﬁ OF INTEREST POLICY |
O

A It shall e duty of all Watauga County employees to recognize and report to the County Manager

or h designee, any and all part-time employment opportunities or formal intent in any outside

u aking that may be considered a conflict of interest in their employment with Watauga County
ernment.

Q(bl. All requests for employment opportunities outside of employees' normal County jobs, or any

Q financial interest or relationship an employee may have in any outside venture, shall be approved
Q in advance by the County Manager or his/her designee, and/or Human Resources Director or
corresponding appointing authority.

2. Other incompatible activities include, but are not limited to, acceptance of a favor, pay, gift,

payment or expenses, or any other thing of monetary value under circumstances in which
acceptance may result in or create the appearance of conflicts of interest.

20

39




100124 BCC Meeting

B. It shall be the policy of Watauga County that no employee may use their position, or the knowledge
gained therein, in such a manner that a conflict between Watauga County's interests and their personal ,&
interests should arise. Both the fact and the appearance of the conflicting interests are to be avoided. Q N

1. An employee is prohibited from having a direct or indirect formal interest that conflicts ODQ
substantially with their Government duties and responsibilities; or, from joining in, directly ?j.
indirectly, a formal transaction as a result of, or primarily relying upon, information obta
through their Government employment. @

2. Employees shall refrain from transmitting any knowledge of County consideratio%a ecision,
or any other information, which might be prejudicial to the interest of the Coun(yll ny person
other than in connection with the discharge of their official responsibilities

o

C. Adherence to this policy is a condition of employment.
r\‘
SECTION4. POLITICAL ACTIVITY RESTRICTIONS OV
N —d

Any employee may join or affiliate with civic organizations of a p 'é?or political nature, may attend
political meetings, may advocate and support the principles of civ'c&mlitical organizations in accordance
with the Constitution and laws of the United States and the &u ution and laws of the State of North
Carolina. However, no employee shall: Q)%

A Engage in any political or partisan activity whil duty (including campaign buttons or attire that
communicates such). o

B. Use official authority or influence for thespurpose of interfering with or affecting the result of an
election or a nomination for office,
&

C. Be required as a duty of the o K or employment or as a condition for employment, promotion, or
tenure of office to contribyt s for political or partisan purposes.

D. Coerce, solicit, or co@contributions for political or partisan purposes by any other employee of
the County.

E. Use any fu%gpplles or equipment of the County for political or partisan purposes.

F. Use Co@y Seal, uniforms, vehicles, signs, emblems, or insignias in any political or commercial

W&l)% anner.

ﬁoa candidate for nomination or election to the office of Watauga County Commissioner.

(@(gﬂ/ees subject to the State Personnel Act and employees in certain federally aided programs are subject

e Hatch Act as amended in 1975. This Federal act, in addition to prohibiting B, C, and D above, also

Q ohibits candidacy for elective office in a partisan election. Prior to filing, any employee of Watauga
County who wishes to run for political office shall obtain permission in writing from the Office of Special

®® Counsel (1.800.854.2824) and forward this information to the County Manager.

N

21
40




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTIONS5. OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT |

N

The work of the County shall take precedence over other occupational interests of employees. All outside Q
employment for salaries, wages or commission and all self-employment must be reported to the employee's
supervisor and the County Manager or his/her designee, who will review such employment to determine thg «
County's liability. Outside employment shall not be so demanding in time and energy that the employee
unable to maintain an acceptable level of performance in the County's service. Documentation

*

approval of outside employment will be maintained in the employee’s personnel file.
A
| SECTION 6. LIMITATION ON EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES ,‘QV |
v
A No two members of an immediate family shall be employed within the sa (S’&Bartment if such

employment will result in one supervising a member of his or her immediate family, or where one
member occupies a position that has influence over the other's em I@m&nt, promotion, salary
administration, and other related personnel considerations. 6

B. The term “immediate family” means an employee’s wife, h b’&@ mother, father, guardian, son,
daughter, brother, sister, grandchild and grandparent, as WeILI& the various combinations of half,

step, in-law, and adopted relationships that can be derived those family members named herein.

C. The provisions of this section shall not be retroactivi d no action will be taken concerning those
members of the same family employed in conflic Subsection A, above, prior to the adoption of
this policy. %)

D. The Board of County Commissioners sh@pprove the appointment by the Sheriff or the Register of
Deeds of a relative by blood or marria@f nearer kinship than first cousin.

&
y U

SECTION 7. TRAVEL POLICY
Y A3
A. Purpose — It is the inn‘g\&? this policy to provide County departments and agencies a comprehensive
reference for unif@ terpretation of payment or reimbursement of necessary expenses for official
County travel Q

B. Employee %éc‘ponsibilitv — An employee traveling on official County business is expected to
exercig @e same care in incurring expenses that a prudent person would exercise if traveling on
per@business and expending personal funds.

Q%dcess costs, circuitous routes, luxury accommodations, and services unnecessary or unjustified in

(b, the performance of official County business are not acceptable under this standard. Employees will
be responsible for unauthorized costs and any additional expenses incurred for personal preference or
convenience.

%) Willful violations of this policy will result in disciplinary actions per the County Personnel
Ordinance.

22
41




100124 BCC Meeting

C. Definitions —
1. Authorizing Party — Department Heads are authorized by this policy to approve or deny requests ,&
for travel, travel advances, travel reimbursements for their staff. The County Manager or his/her Q N

designee shall authorize the requests by Department Heads. Q
2. Employee’s Duty Station —The job location at which the employee spends the majority of his &’?‘)
her working hours. For an employee in travel status, the duty station shall be the point @

work begins the majority of the time (home or office).

3. Requesting Party — The person who will be advanced funds and/or reimbursed f@ eI costs
incurred while conducting County business. q/

4. Mileage Reimbursement — If a County vehicle is not available for autﬁre 1yed travel and an
employee is required to use their personal vehicle for the travel, relmburse nt for mileage shall

be the rate/mile established by the Board of Commissioners. 0

5. Subsistence (Meal & Lodging) — Adequate lodging and meals u% travel period. Meals paid
for based on a per diem allowances. The Board of Comm ers establishes meal per diem
amounts. Payment of or reimbursement for lodging and Is is only applicable for overnight

travel and does not apply to day trips (travel beginning@ending within the same day).

6. Transportation — Transportation expenses inclu i, bus, train, airplane, motor pool charges,
auto rentals, tolls, and parking fees. All tra ation expenses must be incurred by and for

employees, board members or other eligibl elers while conducting official County business.
Employees are expected to observe an ow all applicable transportation related laws and
regulations. Moving violations and g tickets received during work related travel are the

responsibility of the employee in v@g on and will not be paid for by Watauga County.

7. Travel — Travel is defined \going from normal job location to a non-County location to
conduct County business. does not include daily to and from work miles.

8. Registration Fees —
with County b
expenditure li

08t for participation in conferences and or training programs associated
Registration fees should be charged to the “Employee Training”
ayment of registration fees requires documentation of expenses.

v

9 Reimbqiﬁnts — A Travel Expense Report form shall be submitted for approval and/or

paymentstvithin ten working days after the travel period ends. “Travel Period” is defined as the

d weeks, etc., durlng WhICh the travel occurred. Rebmbursementreguests-submitted-by-the

_of the-month—Reimbursement-requests-submitted-by

0@99—25 _of the-month-will-be paid-on-the 10" of the next-month—Failure-to-submit-adeguate

documentation-may-delay-payment: Reimbursement requests submitted by 5:00 p.m. on Friday

(b. will be paid on the following Friday, or with the next regularly scheduled accounts payable batch
CJ processed. Failure to submit adequate documentation may delay payment.

Travel Authorization — Attendance at conventions and conferences that are not training oriented
will be limited to two requesting parties in addition to any requesting parties involved in the
convention or conference program.

Requests for travel shall be submitted on a Travel Authorization Form and will be considered based
upon need and the cost/benefit of the travel as determined by the authorizing party. The travel

23

42




o2

100124 BCC Meeting

authorization form shall be submitted to the authorizing party for their consideration with sufficient
documentation to determine the dates and time of travel, the estimated cost, etc. The authorizing

party should arrange transportation by County vehicles when possible. ,&

The requesting party is encouraged to use their County purchasing card for lodging and registration QQ
fees. When a purchasing card cannot be used for these expenses a travel advance for lodging and
registration should be requested. A County purchasing card cannot be used for meal per diems, so%

travel advance should be requested for meals and mileage expenses. The requesting party

travel with other employees and officials of the County and representatives of other gover@

units when possible. b‘

If the requesting party does not arrange for a travel advance or pay in advance w, (ﬁ?purchasmg
card, the requesting party will pay all travel costs. The requesting party will be reimbu¥Sed for actual
costs incurred, subject to the limitations established in this policy. Relmbur?;\%_bt‘wnl be made to
requesting party according to the Reimbursement policy as stated in Definitions and General

Guidelines. Airline tickets and registrations may occasionally be paid 2igectly by the County or
billed by invoice later.

In State Travel — For all in-state travel, the Departmen\and is responsible for determining if
sufficient funds are available in the department’s traved N |tem to cover all expected travel costs.
A travel authorization form will be submitted by th uesting party to the Department Head for
authorization of travel at least ten working days 0 the date upon which travel will begin. If a
Department Head is the requesting party, th el authorization form will be submitted to the
County Manager or his/her designee. <O

Out of State Travel — Out of state g:tatus begins when the employee leaves the state and
remains in effect until the employe, e&ns to the State. Out of state travel requests for employees
and Department Heads will be ;gasbwed by the County Manager or his/her designee and must be
approved by the Board.

The completed travel @orlzatlon form shall be submitted to the authorizing party with sufficient
documentation (a v registration form, etc.). The authorizing authority will forward all
information p ﬁ to the requested travel to the County Manager to be scheduled for
consideration éhe Board of Commissioners.

Travel m\iy‘ ces — The requesting party is-enceuraged-te may request a travel advance for ledging;
me lem—registration,—ete: (Funds will not be advanced for personal vehicle mileage). If the
re ing party does not arrange for a travel advance, reimbursement will be made to the requesting
according to the Reimbursement policy as stated in Definitions and General Guidelines,

The Finance Office will receive a copy of all approved travel advance requests. The Finance Office
is responsible for determining if sufficient funds are available in the appropriate expenditure line to
cover the estimated cost of the approved travel requests. The authorizing party shall receive a copy
of the travel advance confirming sufficient funds from the Finance Office. Approved travel advance
and voucher must be submitted to finance by 5:00 p.m. on Friday to be paid on the following Friday,
or with the next regularly scheduled accounts payable batch processed. the-10%-of-each-month-to

receive-payment-by-the 25%_of the same-month-or-by-the 25" of the month-to-receive payment-by the
10% of the following-menth:

24
43




Q’b
e

0@

N

100124 BCC Meeting

Travel advance requests will be submitted to the authorizing party no later than ten working days
prior to the date travel will begin. Travel advance requests must include documentation (conference
or training agenda with dates and time and indicating any meals or lodging included in registration
fees) to support estimated travel cost. Travel advances will not be issued if an individual has not
completed a travel expense report for a previous trip.

Transportation — Specific Guidelines Relating to Transportation Costs

Reimbursement for transportation will be based on the most economical mode of travel. @
1. Unit Vehicles — The authorizing party should arrange transportation in a County Agligle when
possible. Use of a county vehicle must be approved by the County Manager or ¢§¥okr designee

or the appropriate Department Head no later than ten working days pyior t¢ the date of
authorized travel. An authorizing official may approve on a shorter Nif the situation
dictates. County vehicles shall be used in conducting County business onr?\ A minimal amount

of personal use, such as driving the vehicle to and from dinner, $e allowed for out of
County travel. The requesting party must obey all laws of the juri n in which the vehicle is
being operated. Non-county employees may accompany Coun& loyees in a County vehicle
if they have a business interest in the travel. X\

Personal Vehicle —An employee will be reimbursed fQI@eé use of a personal vehicle based on
the rate per mile established by the Board ommissioners. Requests for mileage
reimbursement shall include vehicle odometer re s or accurate Map Quest driving directions
including mileage from duty station to destina{oR™ If a personal vehicle is used for travel related
to official County business, when a County,M&hicle is available, the requesting party will only be
eligible for one-half of the qualified mil@eimbursement.

Actual Mileage — Reimbursable gz:ge shall include odometer readings and is measured
from the duty station to the de n (and return). An employee may leave from his or her
home if reporting to duty on would create extra miles. Map Quest driving directions
including mileage from tation to destination are also acceptable to be used in the place
of odometer readingss

Parking Fees & §§J‘ = are reimbursable. Receipts are required.

Rental V&@& A receipt is necessary for reimbursement. Rental vehicles are to be used as a

last res%_ se of a rental vehicle must be approved in advance.

T other than trips to and from the airport — The actual cost of taxi fares is reimbursable
required for travel on official County business. Receipts are required for reimbursement.

~ Common Carrier — Actual coach fare on a plane, train, or bus- (substantiated by receipt) will be

reimbursed. First class travel should be used only in extraordinary circumstances. Penalties and
charges resulting from the cancellation of airline reservations (or other travel reservations) shall
be the County’s obligation if the employee’s travel has been approved in advance and the
cancellation or change is made at the directions of and for the convenience of the County. If the
cancellation is made for the personal benefit of the employee, it shall be the employee’s
obligation to pay the penalties and charges, except, in the event of accidents, serious illness or
death within the employee’s immediate family or other critical circumstances beyond the control
of the employee.

25

44




5
0 L.

N

2

100124 BCC Meeting

8. Travel to/from airport: at employee’s destination — Reimbursement for travel to and from the
airline terminal at the employee’s or board member’s destination may be made as listed below:

a. Airport limousine — one round trip limousine fare;

b. Bus - one round trip bus fare;

c. Taxi—when limousine service is not available, actual fare to and from airline terminal;
d

Rental vehicles — may be used as a last resort (receipt required). <0

Receipts are required. @

Subsistence — The following schedule shall be used to determine eligibility for per di (shbsistence
expenses incurred while traveling on official County business. No receipts are requh‘%r per diem
allowances. The meal per diem amounts are established by the Board of Comynissi#hers for meal
expenses incurred while traveling on County business and based on the Statf*\%a't per diem rates
effective July 1% of the current year, coinciding with start of each fiscal year, and will not change
again until the approval of the budget for the following fiscal year. X
Meals included in registration or conference fees will reduce the per dj g’ﬁowance accordingly.

Reimbursement — Each employee is responsible for his or her \A)&@]uest for reimbursement. Each
meal reimbursement amount must be listed on the reimb%ment request. Date and time of

departure and arrival must be listed on the travel expense t. Meal per diem allowances will be
determined based on beginning and ending time of traizNDg, and adequate travel time to and from
training site. %)
AW
Breakfast Depart prio 20 a.m.
Lunch Depart pgi 1:00 a.m. (day of departure).
Return a&er2:00 p.m. (day of return).
Dinner Retugfter 7:00 p.m.
. \(\ 4

Reimbursement for Meals — @uired Employee Attendance — A County employee may be
reimbursed for meals wh e job requires his/her attendance at the meeting of a board,
commission, committee onCotincil in his/her official capacity and the meal is preplanned as part of
the meeting for the elt\@‘board, commission, committee, or council.

A County emp Qay be reimbursed for meals when the meal is included as an integral part of a
meeting. SucNQieetings should involve the active participation of persons other than the employees
of the Couﬁq.the employee’s attendance is required for the performance of his/her duties, but must
not be %o the employee’s normal day-to-day business activities; the meeting must be planned
with\a@yTrmal agenda; and the meeting must provide written notice or an invitation to participants.
A loyee attending a meeting in the County shall not be reimbursed for a meal if a meal is not
(figidded.

Employees claiming reimbursement under this provision are limited to the per diem meal allowances
unless attendance is required for County officials and employees. Upon approval of the County
Manager the actual cost may be reimbursable.

Lodging -

1. Authorization — Written approval by the Department Head or appropriate authorizing official
must be obtained in order to qualify for reimbursement for overnight stays. Supervisory

26

45




100124 BCC Meeting

personnel certifying the reimbursement request as necessary must require documentation from
the traveler to substantiate that the overnight lodging was necessary. Single room rates will be
reimbursed. County employees are expected to check rates in the area of their travel and make ,&
arrangements for the most economical and safe lodging available. Q N

2. Reimbursement — Each employee is responsible for his or her own request for reimbursement. Q)Q
Requests for reimbursement must be filed within 10 working days after the travel period ends f
which the reimbursement is being requested. Specific dates of lodging must be listed
reimbursement request, and substantiated by a detailed receipt. Other entertainment ex :
such as the cost of movies, that are included with the bill for lodging will not be reimbuw.

N. Travel Reimbursement from Other Agencies e training and/or travel expenses may be
reimbursed by other agencies. If the County dvanced or paid any costs associated with this
training and/or travel any reimbursement fr, ther agencies must be made payable to Watauga
County and forwarded to the Finance O r deposit to the appropriate travel line item.

Any reimbursements received fror\%’jl side agency shall not duplicate any Watauga County travel
reimbursement or advance. If d te reimbursement occurs then duplicate payment must be made
to the Watauga County Firl?\ partment and documented on the travel advance form.

0. Authorization for Relm@sement Procedures -

1. Submitting T{@ Expense Reports — Requesting party will complete a reimbursement form,
attach re M’ECEIptS for expenses and submit it to the authorizing party no later than 10
Workirﬂg s after returning from travel. Advances will be deducted from reimbursable costs.

vel advances will be repaid to the County no later than ten working days after the

Exc
@tion of the approved travel.

C)QRequestmg party submitting a falsified travel expense report may be subject to disciplinary
action and criminal prosecution. Violations of the County travel policy may result in
c)(b' disciplinary action per County Personnel Ordinance and/or criminal prosecution.

Q 2. Approval and Processing of Reimbursement Requests — Travel expense reports shall be
5’\30 submitted to the authorizing party for approval. After approval by the authorizing party, the
%) form should be forwarded to the Finance Office. All applicable documentation must be
%) submitted to finance by 5:00 p.m. on Friday to be paid on the following Friday, or with the next
N regularly scheduled accounts payable batch processed. by-the-10% of each-menth-to—receive
payment by the 25" of the same-month-orbythe 25 of the month-toreceivepayment by the

10% of the following-month:

27
46




100124 BCC Meeting

Finance Office staff will determine that the reimbursement form has been properly approved,

that it is mathematically correct, and that requested reimbursements agree to submitted receipts ,&
and are within the limits set by this policy. If an error in the reimbursement request is found, the Q N
requesting party will be informed and the error will be corrected before payment is made. Q

The Finance Office will determine that sufficient funds are available in the travel expense budgej~
line item to pay the request. The Finance Officer will promptly inform the authorizing par
requesting party if payment cannot be made.

SECTION 8. EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY Al |

Watauga County Government considers the safety of its employees a major responsibilitfCqnstant endeavor
shall be made to provide safe work habits and conditions for all employees. It is re zed that accident
control can only be successful when adequate support comes from top managemegt, adequate coordination
and advice comes from staff members, supervisors accept safety responsjbi/ig¥ and when employees
participate in the elimination of unnecessary safety hazards. The formulati f a functioning, pro-active
safety program is thus necessary to implement this philosophy. \0

Watauga County government will therefore place safe operations e operational expediency and will
comply with the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) an r applicable state laws.

@

A The designation of a Safety Officer direetor duties shall include:

The keys to our safety program are:

1. Chair Safety Committee meetings SQEuired.

2. Review monthly inspection g g}ts of County buildings and work areas for safety hazards.
(Inspection done by Count intenance Department).

3. Schedule and coordiﬁ‘&e\ necessary employee safety training in collaboration with Human

Resources. ‘\0

4. Assist Dew Heads in maintaining and updating safety operational procedures manuals.

o

Establi%jan employee safety input and suggestion system to allow all employees access to the
safegy\program.

6. end necessary training to keep abreast of current safety related laws, safety trends and
(\C) methods, and loss control techniques.

O(b' 7. Maintain communication with the County liability insurance carrier(s) to ensure that compliance
Q with their standards is adequate in coordination with the Finance Office staff responsible for
R rocessing property and liability insurance claims.
\§Q p g property y
0@ B. Department Heads
N
1. The Department Heads shall be responsible for carrying out the safety policies in his or her

department, making safety an important priority in establishing department goals.

28
a7




100124 BCC Meeting

2. Maintain and periodically upgrade their department standard operational procedures manual to
insure a safe workplace and update safety policies.

3. Ensure asure that all employees are aware of proper safety procedures and trained in the use of QQ
safety equipment associated with a particular task. 03

4. Instruct new employees in policies for accident prevention and make them aware of and prwi 2')
access to the Standard Operating Procedures manual for their department.

are aware of the requirement to utilize such equipment (i.e. gloves, masks, ats, safety

5. Provide safety equipment and protection for tasks requiring such equipment. E;sﬂ}g‘y\ployees
glasses, safety vests, hearing protection, etc.)

4

6. Ensure that all injuries and accidents are reported promptly, investigated, a{m treatment provided
when necessary. All accidents and injuries should be reported to th&\ymmediate supervisor or
Department Head promptly, and information forwarded to Resources for proper

processing. reperted-prompthy. (Personal (Employee accidents_afefinjuries should be reported

on the Workers Compensation Information form and shall ubmitted to the Safety Officer
Bireetor-and Human Resources. Equipment and property@,mage incidents shall be distributed
submitted to the Safety Officer Director and to thex@@unty Finance Department.)) Incident
Reports and Workers Compensation Information o@t will be made available to all County
Departments through Human Resources or by th@ty Officer.

&

C. Employee (s)
9

1. The county employees are expecte%%ace safe work practices and identification of unsafe
conditions as the highest priority @ performing daily tasks.

2. Use the safety equipment ne ég\&)r daily work assignments.

3. Do not operate equiprq%&%r which training or orientation has not been received.

4. Warn co-workg@&%safe conditions or practices.

5. Report de@t& equipment or unsafe conditions to a supervisor or Department Head.

6. Rep&t injuries and accidents regardless of severity.

ility of supervisors to enforce safety rules among employees. Supervisory personnel are
r instructing employees about any hazards of their assigned job. This includes health risks
ith chemicals that he/she may be exposed to in the workplace.

,Qall times, employees will be responsible for safe practices while performing all assigned job duties.

’ §ECT|ON 9. HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE

A Purpose — The purpose of this policy is to establish that Watauga County prohibits workplace
harassment of County employees and ensures that County Departments are free from workplace
harassment. This policy also prohibits retaliation against employees.

29
48




100124 BCC Meeting

Policy — The policy of Watauga County is that no County employee may engage in conduct that falls
under the definition of workplace harassment as indicated below. All employees are guaranteed the
right to work in an environment free from workplace harassment and retaliation.

Definitions

1. Workplace Harassment is unwelcome or unsolicited speech or conduct based upon age, ra%@%)

(including sexual harassment), religious belief, political affiliation, national origin, or dis
condition that creates a hostile work environment or circumstances involving quid pro qm

2. Hostile Work Environment is one that both a reasonable person would find haﬁor abusive
and one that the particular person who is the object of the harassment percejves & be hostile or
abusive. Hostile work environment is determined by looking at all @ circumstances,
including the frequency of the alleged harassing conduct, its severity, whather it is physically
threatening or humiliating, and whether it unreasonably interferes Wit&’)soemployee’s well-being
or work performance. O

3. Quid Pro Quo harassment consists of unwelcome sexual adva@s, requests for sexual favors, or
other verbal or physical conduct when (1) submission to h conduct is made either explicitly
or implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s em @nent or (2) submission to or rejection
of such conduct by an individual is used as the b r employment decisions affecting such
individual.

4. Retaliation is adverse treatment, which occ@ause of opposition to workplace harassment.

Confidentiality — Considering the sensi%géture of harassment complaints, every effort will be
made to keep the complaint and the n the employee confidential and on a need-to-know basis.
However, due to the nature of cor\d@ an investigation of a complaint, confidentiality cannot be
guaranteed. Reports, including Fohal report, will be distributed only to persons having a need or
right to know. The reports wi aintained in a confidential file.

Reporting Procedures — \rémployee who believes he or she may have a complaint of workplace
harassment may purs of the following actions:

1. The empl ouId tell the person who is offending him/her that the behavior is offensive and

shouldestop® (Because offensive behavior often is not intended as harassment, letting the
know the behavior is offensive and instructing him/her to stop often resolves the

béhe employee should notify the Department Head of the situation. The Department Head will

(\ conduct an investigation into the allegation of workplace harassment and advise the employee

and appropriate management officials of the outcome of the investigation. If the allegation is
against the Department Head the complaint should be filed with the Beputy County Manager or
his/her designee, who will conduct the investigation.

3. If the allegation of harassment is against the County Manager or an elected official, the
complaint should be filed with the County Attorney, who shall personally conduct a confidential
investigation into the allegation, or designate a representative to conduct the investigation and
advise the employee and Board of County Commissioners on the outcome of the investigation.

30

*

Q’&

0P

49




100124 BCC Meeting

The report into an allegation of workplace harassment shall include:
The specific conduct or complaint

Who committed the alleged conduct

When and where the conduct occurred Q
Names of witnesses

Number of alleged occurrences R
Any prior requests to cease conduct <Q ¢

F. Investigation of Alleged Workplace Harassment — If a confidential investigation is underta@
shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, interviews with individuals who are belieyethto have
knowledge of the matter including the alleged victim and the alleged harasser. ei/

Employees named in reports and/or complaints will be given sufficient informa n about the
allegation to provide them a reasonable opportunity to respond. <O “

Employees shall cooperate fully in any investigation or may be subject,{)"disciplinary action for
failure to cooperate.

Upon receipt of a complaint, the County will take all appropriate st@gprevent the alleged conduct
from continuing, pending completion of the investigation.

Upon completion of the investigation, the investigating pag@will issue a report of the investigation
and findings, which will include the facts ascertained i )&vestlgatlon

G. Making False Accusations — Equally serious %Ise accusations of workplace harassment.
Unwarranted accusations are demoralizing and s&rous. Such accusations can expose the accuser
and Watauga County to litigation and da . Furthermore, false accusations undermine the
purpose of this policy. False accusati I result in disciplinary actions up to and including
dismissal.

H. Disciplinary Action — Disciplina @ons may take any of the forms listed in Article VI1II, Section
8, of the Watauga County Persongf Ordinance, from a written warning to dismissal.
NZ)
SECTION 10. VIOLENCE IN THE\(/(\)RKPLACE

A Purpose —Watau nty is committed to providing a safe work environment. For this reason, the
County has ad@e a zero-tolerance policy for workplace violence. Consistent with this policy, acts
or threats ical violence, including intimidation, harassment, and/or coercion, which involve or
affect th ty of Watauga or which occur on County property will not be tolerated. Violations of
thls?@wnl result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal and may result in criminal
cha

<O
B. (&finitions

CJ 1. Workplace Violence includes, but is not limited to, intimidation, threats, physical attack,

Q domestic violence, or property damage and includes acts of violence committed by County

@ employees, clients, customers, relatives, acquaintances or strangers against County employees in
%) the workplace.

@ 2. Intimidation is engaging in actions that includes but is not limited to stalking or behavior

intended to frighten, coerce, or induce duress.

31
50




)

N

O
Q’\}Q E.

100124 BCC Meeting

3. Threat is the expression of intent to cause physical or mental harm. An expression constitutes a
threat without regard to whether the party communicating the threat has the present ability to
carry it out and without regard to whether the expression is contingent, conditional or future.

4. Physical Attack is unwanted or hostile physical contact such as hitting, fighting, pushing, Q
shoving or throwing objects. ODQ

5. Domestic Violence is the use of abusive or violent behavior, including threats and intimidatios,’.) *
between people who have an ongoing or prior intimate relationship. This could include |
who are married, live together or date or who have been married, lived together or datecb‘

6. Property Damage is intentional damage to property and includes property owned i@ County,
employees, visitors or vendors.

)
Application — Watauga County’s zero tolerance policy for workplace violenc@\pplies to all persons
involved in the County’s operation. Violations of this policy by any indi\ﬁq'u.al on County property,
or by any individual action against a County employee when the actim@ﬂ‘ect the public interest or
the County’s business interests will be followed by legal action. Vi®ation by an employee of any
provision of this policy will lead to disciplinary action up to and ic@jing dismissal.

Prohibited Actions — Specific examples of conduct that m @Qnsidered “threats or acts of
violence” prohibited under this policy include, but are r& ited to, the following:

1. Hitting or shoving an individual. \QQ)
2. Threatening to harm an individual or the@f&mily, friends, associates, or their property.

The intentional destruction or thre ozdestruction of property owned, operated or controlled by

3.

Watauga County. .
&

4. Making harassing or thr ing statements by telephone, letter or other forms of written or
electronic communicatiox

5. Intimidating or a@ting to coerce an employee to do wrongful acts that would affect the
business inte@) the County.

6. Harassi erveillance, also known as “stalking”, the willful, malicious and repeated following

of agoti@person and making a credible threat with intent to place the other person in reasonable
fear@©@$his or her safety.

%)

7.@)Xnauthorized possession or inappropriate use of firearms, weapons, or any other dangerous

Q\CJ devices on County property. Employees who are required to possess a weapon as a part of their

job duties are exempt from this provision; however, they may not use their weapons in violation
of this policy. Employees who possess concealed carry permits are disallowed from bringing
guns into facilities where they are prohibited, such as the Watauga County Courthouse.

Retaliation — This policy prohibits retaliation against any employee who, in good faith, reports a
violation of this policy. Every effort will be made to protect the safety and anonymity of anyone who
comes forward with concerns about a threat or act of violence.

32
51




100124 BCC Meeting

Employee Responsibility — Each employee of the County and every person on County property are
encouraged to report incidents of threats or acts of physical violence of which they are aware. All
reports of violence will be handled in a confidential manner, with information released only on a
need-to-know basis. In cases where the reporting individual is not a County employee, the report
shall be made to the Sheriff’s Office. In cases where the individual is a County employee, the report
shall be made to the reporting individual’s immediate supervisor, a management level supervisory
employee if the immediate supervisor is not available, or to the Human Resources Direct
Persennel-Officer. Each supervising employee shall promptly refer any such incident t
appropriate management level supervisor, who shall take corrective action in accordance w@b

County’s Personnel Ordinance. b‘
Discipline — A violation of this policy shall be considered unacceptable personal co s prowded

in the Watauga County Personnel Ordinance, Article VIII: Separation, Disciplinaby Action and
Reinstatement. Acts of violence, as defined herein, will be grounds for discip r% action, up to and
including dismissal. In an effort to comply with this policy, the County reserves the right to search
County vehicles, County workspaces and other County property.

~©

SECTION 11. ALCOHOL AND CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AB%EUSERQ%Y

A

O’b

Purpose — In order to provide the best level of sewlcp\?q” citizens and to provide a safer
workplace, Watauga County employees must refrain f e abuse of alcohol, verified controlled
substances, prescription and certain over-the-counter r&aﬂons. Additionally, the Department of
Transportation has enacted alcohol and drug testiqegrequirements for all employees who hold a
Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) and drive mercial vehicle for the County, called County
CDL Drivers. This procedure will expl% e process for assuring compliance with these
regulations, and the procedures for main safe work environment free of alcohol and drugs.

Policy — All County employees
distributing, dispensing, posses

absolutely prohibited from unlawfully manufacturing,
or using controlled substances in a County of Watauga
workplace. This policy inclu ohol, controlled substances and prescription medications except
for those prescribed metﬂ?&ﬂs taken within limits and duration as prescribed by a qualified
physician.

O
Coverage — All Cgﬁ\employees, including interns and volunteers, with the exception of personnel
of the Watau nty Sheriff’s Office, are subject to this policy. Employees of the Watauga
County Sh i& Office shall be covered by the policies and procedures established by the North
Carolina S ’s Education and Training Standards Commission and the Watauga County Sheriff.

As heriff and the Register of Deeds are elected officials, those individual Department Heads
ave discretionary authority on disciplinary actions within their respective departments. The
Qirector of Social Services shall also have discretionary authority on disciplinary actions within the
Qomal Services Department as granted by North Carolina General Statutes. In addition, for those
County employees that fall under the North Carolina State Personnel Act as competitive service
employees, failing a controlled substance test or refusing a controlled substance test will be
considered as personal misconduct within the meaning of the State Personnel Act and may subject
the employee to disciplinary procedures outlined within the State Personnel Act.

Definitions

1. Accident — Incident involving a motor vehicle that results in a fatality; bodily injury to self or
others resulting in medical treatment from a healthcare professional, or damage to a motor

33

<
o

52

N




100124 BCC Meeting

vehicle. An employee involved in any accident shall notify their supervisor immediately or as
soon as reasonably possible.

2. Alcohol Test — An assessment for the presence of alcohol in the body as determined through the Q’\&
use of a breath alcohol test, evidential breathalyzer test, or blood screening.

3. Commercial Motor Vehicle — A motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used %(b
commerce to transport passengers or property if the motor vehicle:

a. has a gross combination of weight rating of 26,001 or more pounds inclusive of a tow@lt
with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 10,000 pounds; or b‘

b. has a gross vehicle weight rating of 26,001 or more pounds; or q/

c. isdesigned to transport 16 or more passengers, including the driver; or, (l{Q

d. is of any size and is used in the transportation of materials found to he hazdrdous for the
purposes of the Hazardous Material Transportation Act and requires tp\ Xor vehicle to be
placarded under the Hazardous Materials Regulations.

test with the result of 0.02 or greater that provides quantitative of alcohol concentration.
Confirmation test for controlled substances means a second a@ytical procedure to identify the
presence of a specific controlled substance or metabolite&al S independent of the screen test
and that uses a different technique and chemical princip m that of the screen test in order to
ensure reliability and accuracy. Gas chromatograph s spectrometry (GC/MS) is the only
authorized confirmation method for the five SAM rugs.

4. Confirmation Test — For alcohol, a confirmation test means a sec& \‘t’ following a screening

5. Conviction — A finding of guilt (including a Qo)f nolo contendere) or imposition of sentence,
or both, by any judicial body charged with esponsibility to determine violations of federal or

state criminal drug statutes. g 7g)

6. Controlled Substance — A substal s listed in Schedules | through V of Section 202 of the
Controlled Substances Act (2 812) or Chapter 90, Section 87(5) of the North Carolina
General Statutes or a metange ereof.

7. Controlled Substance"h@or Screening — An assessment, including providing the necessary
sample of body fJu' 53/ the employee to be tested, for the presence of any of the following
controlled subst r drug metabolites in the urine or blood of an employee:

a. Amphetagh
b. Barbithyates
c. B lazepines
d. nrabinoids
\%%caine
ethaqualone
OQQ; Opiates
(\ h. Phencyclidine
O(b' I. Propoxyphene
J.  other drugs that may be determined to reduce work safety or work efficiency.

\}Q 8. Employee Assistance Program — A program of counseling services for participants including
@Q assessment, evaluation, referral for treatment, and follow-up procedures. Watauga County pays
N for 6 visits per calendar year.

34

53




¢
e

0@

N

100124 BCC Meeting

9. Injury — Incident in which an employee is involved in an accident involving injury to self or
others, which meets the criteria listed below. An employee involved in any accident shall notify
their supervisor immediately or as soon as reasonably possible.

a. The employee sustained a job-related injury that was serious enough to require medical
attention by a health care professional and it is apparent that the employee was at fault or Q
contributed to the accident. 0,)

b. Or, the employee caused or contributed to a job-related injury of another individual, w, @
fellow employee or citizen, which required medical attention by a health care profe
This could result from a vehicle or other type of accident.
(]gyee in a

10. Job Applicant — Any person who applies to become a part-time or full tlm
position requiring a commercial driver’s license

supervising-or-empleyees who operate commercial vehicles for Watauga (ﬁyys
11. Medical Review Officer — A Nerth-Carelina-licensed physician with ;ﬁeglflc training in the area

of substance abuse. The medical review officer not only has ge of substance-abuse
disorder, but also has been trained to interpret and evaluate labor test results in conjunction
with an employee’s medical history. The medical review r verifies a positive controlled
substance test result by reviewing a laboratory report and ployee’s unique medical history
to determine whether the result was caused by the use o&ohibited controlled substance or by
an employee’s medical condition. 0

12. Negative Controlled Substance Test — means a result that does not show the presence of
drugs at a level specified to be a positive testc‘)Q

13. Negative Alcohol Test — means a tes tl@%dicates a breath alcohol concentration of less than
0.02. Q~

14. On Call or Standby Duty - @ an employee is subject to receiving a call to report
immediately to work for the& ty.

15. On Duty — When an %gyee is at the workplace, in a County vehicle or otherwise performing
duties associated wi&’ is or her position with the County.

16. Other Substa \Any substance that has the potential to appreciably impair the mental or
physical fyact{gn of a person.

17. Pass a%ptrolled Substance Test — The result of the controlled substance test is negative. The
test

\QShowed no evidence or insufficient evidence of a prohibited controlled substance or drug
metabolite;

(\C) b. showed evidence of a prohibited controlled substance or drug metabolite, but there was a

legitimate medical explanation for the result as determined by a medical review officer.

18. Pass an alcohol test — A negative alcohol test less than .02. The test showed no evidence or
insufficient evidence of a prohibited level of alcohol.

19. Positive Controlled Substance Test —A laboratory finding of the presence of a controlled
substance or a drug metabolite in the urine or blood of an employee at the levels identified by
the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

35
54




>

100124 BCC Meeting

20. Positive Alcohol Test — A breathalyzer or blood test which confirms the presence of alcohol at a
level of 0.02 or greater.

21. Prescription Controlled Substances — Any employee with prior knowledge that the use of a Q
prescribed medication under the doctor’s direction or over-the-counter medication that could
alter the employee’s ability to perform the duties and responsibilities of the position must notify ODQ
their supervisor. The employee is responsible for ascertaining from a health care profession%
the effects of any prescribed controlled substance being taken. Failure to obtain suyc
information may result in disciplinary actions. @

*

22. Random Testing — Testing conducted on an employee assigned to a safety-sensitive ptl/ n that
is chosen by a method that provides an equal probability that any employee f @ group of
employees will be selected. ([1/

23. Reasonable Suspicion — A belief, based upon specific objective facts a@aonal inferences
drawn from those facts that an employee has consumed or is under the influence of alcohol or
illegal controlled substances. Circumstances that constitute a basj etermining reasonable
suspicion may include but are not limited to any of the following:

a. presence of the physical symptoms of controlled substac or alcohol use (for example,
glassy or bloodshot eyes, alcohol odor on breath, sIu@d peech, poor coordination and/or
reflexes)

b. a pattern of unusual or erratic behavior (for e@ﬁple, confusion, disorientation, lack of
coordination, marked personality changes, i&)@)nal behavior, physical altercation, verbal
altercation)

c. apattern of excessive absenteeism, tardil@ or deterioration of work performance

d. an accident resulting in damage to pr or personal injury

e. a pattern of unexplained accide /or information based on specific objective facts that
an employee has caused or contributed to an accident at work while under the influence of a
controlled substance or alco

f. direct observation of contgpNed substance or alcohol use

g. possession of controll stances

h. verifiable informagi tained from other employees based upon their observations

i. arrests, citations.and deferred prosecutions associated with controlled substances or alcohol.

j. evidence thakag~@mployee is involved in the unauthorized possession, sale, solicitation, or

transfer o trolled substances or alcohol while working or while on the County’s
premiQ perating a County vehicle, machinery, or equipment

yed| explanation after he or she has received notice of the requirement for breath testing; (2)

to provide adequate urine for controlled substances testing without a valid medical
Oeéxplanation after he or she has received notice of the requirement for urine testing; (3) refuses to
sign the breath alcohol confirmation test certification; (4) refuses to sign the Centrelled
Substance—And Alcohol and Controlled Substance Use Policy Sereening—For—Reasenable
ici izati Acknowledgment form; or (5) engages in conduct that clearly

24. Ref;e Submit — An employee: (1) fails to provide adequate breath for testing without a valid

obstructs the testing process.

25. Safety Sensitive Position — The duties of the position create, or are accompanied by, such a great
risk of injury to other persons or to property that even a momentary lapse of attention, judgment,
or dexterity could have fateful consequences. Examples of these positions include:

36
55




F.

¢
e

0@

N

100124 BCC Meeting

a. Full- or part-time positions requiring a commercial driver's license (CDL), performing
maintenance on a commercial vehicle, and supervisors responsible for controlling the
movement of commercial vehicles for Watauga County.

b Full- or part-time positions requiring the handling of hazardous materials, the mishandling
of which may place the employee, fellow employees, or the general public at risk of serious
injury, or the nature of which could create a security risk in the workplace.

c. Other positions as determined on a case-by-case basis. <0 .

26. Supervisor — Any employee who has the authority to direct the job activities of onm@e
employees. With respect to a particular employee, the term means the employee'g~rfhediate
supervisor, Department Head, the County Manager or his/her designee, or an I person
having indirect supervisory authority over the employee. ‘&

27. Substance Abuse Professional — A licensed physician or a licensed or pé@i'éd psychologist,
social worker, employee assistance professional, or addiction coynselor (certified by the
National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors é&ﬁfication Commission)
with knowledge of clinical experience in the diagnosis and@a ment of both controlled

substance- and alcohol-related disorders. 0

28. Workplace — The location or facility where an employee@ay be expected to perform any task
related to the requirements of his or her job. This i es, but is not necessarily limited to,
County buildings and facilities, break rooms a s@s rooms, outdoor worksites, County or
personal vehicles (while the personal vehicle is heiig'used for County business), computer work
stations, conference rooms, hallways, priva ces, open or partitioned work areas, public
contact or customer service areas, and parki ts.

Education — All County employees have @g t to know the dangers of controlled substance abuse
in the workplace, the County policy abou¥gontrolled substance abuse and the assistance available to
combat controlled substance abuse @gers. To assist the employees, the County offers the
following rehabilitative help: {(\

1. Limited medical ben 'lQ% substance abuse treatment, as defined by the County’s current

medical insurance cander’ and
N\

2. Employee A{}@nce Program- Watauga County pays for 6 visits per calendar year. Any other
Visits ma? y or voluntary will be the responsibility of the employee. The County Manager
may, @ thesexercise of his/her discretion, approve additional EAP visits for employees, at the
expensebf Watauga County, in exceptional circumstances related to traumatic events occurring

{@regular discharge of duties as a County Employee.
AN

ons for Controlled Substance or Alcohol Tests:

N

1. Mandatory Testing and Random Testing of Employees — The County uses Mandatory Testing
and Random Testing only as required by law. All CDL job applicants, as defined in this policy,
shall be required to undergo a controlled substance test upon an offer of employment and prior
to their final appointment.

To comply with U.S. Department of Transportation requirements, random unannounced tests
will be given to a predetermined percentage of County CDL Drivers. These employees are

37

56




100124 BCC Meeting

selected in a statistically sound random selection process from a pool of all eligible County
CDL Drivers.

N

Random alcohol tests shall be given annually to at least 25 percent of the average number of Q
County CDL Drivers. Q

Random controlled substance testing shall be given to at least 50 percent of the average numb?-) .
of County CDL Driver positions. In the event a driver who is selected for a random test
vacation or extended leave, the County can either select another County CDL Driver for @g

or keep the original selection confidential until the driver returns. A supervisor castell an
employee to go for a random controlled substance test at any time during the wo as long

as the employee can get to the testing site in time for the test to be perfo Once an
employee has been told that he/she has been selected for a random test, the evfiployee must
immediately report to the testing site. The employee cannot continu (@perform a safety
sensitive function once notified. The employee can return to work the saﬁre day of the random
controlled substance test and resume safety sensitive duties.

ol
2. Post-Accident -
Q)

Alcohol or controlled substance testing is mandatory for@l County employees involved in an
accident (motor vehicles/equipment or injury, meeting &y of the requirements below) while in
the performance of their job duties, even if there @ reasonable suspicion that an employee
was under the influence of alcohol or a controll%ﬁystance.

Qﬁify their supervisor immediately or as soon as
reasonably possible. An employee inv in an accident in which he or she may be required
to undergo alcohol testing, must from drinking alcohol for 8 hours, or until he/she
undergoes a Post-Accident test, v\@.)h ver comes first.

An employee involved in any accident s

&bf controlled substance test will be given to County employees
heir own personal vehicle while in the performance of their job
t if one of the following situations happens;

Motor Vehicle — An alco
driving a County vehicl
duties following an

a. someone %’?&‘fed, or
b. the drive been cited by the police for a moving violation and either the vehicle was
toweq meone received medical treatment away from the scene of the accident, or
arent to the police officer or the supervisor that the employee driving was at fault or
ibuted to the accident where there is property damage, or someone received medical
Q&atment away from the scene of the accident.
A

Qefmurv to self or others — If an employee is involved in an accident involving injury to self or
others, which meets the criteria listed below, the employee will be required to undergo alcohol
and controlled substance testing. An employee involved in any accident shall notify their
supervisor immediately or as soon as reasonably possible.

a. The employee sustained a job-related injury that was serious enough to require medical
attention by a health care professional and it is apparent that the employee was at fault or
contributed to the accident.

38
57




100124 BCC Meeting

b. Or, the employee caused or contributed to a job-related injury of another individual, whether
fellow employee or citizen, which required medical attention by a health care professional.
This could result from a vehicle or other type of accident.

3. Reasonable Suspicion — The County requires testing of any employee upon observable signs QQ
sufficient to cause reasonable suspicion that he/she has violated this policy. Supervisors must (b
document reasonable suspicion using the Observed Behavior - Reasonable Suspicion for?j.
(Appendix B). In accordance with 49 CFR 391.99 (d) the Observed Behavior - Reasopakl
Suspicion form must be prepared and signed by the witnesses within 24 hours of the ob
behavior or before the results of the test are released, whichever is earlier. The Counti anager

or his/her designee shall be notified whenever possible before testing an yee for
reasonable suspicion or as soon as possible thereafter. q/

The decision to test will be based on specific, simultaneous observ i&l’g fy a supervisor
concerning the appearance, behavior, speech or body odors of the empldyee such as directly
observing controlled substance or alcohol use and/or the physicalXigns of being under the
influence of a controlled substance (slurred speech, alcohol sm@bureath, incoherence, loss
of coordination, etc.).

O

Employees tested on the basis of Reasonable Suspici%wnl normally be placed on non-

disciplinary suspension while awaiting results. \Q)
4. Return to Duty Test — If a County employee is ed to return to duty after having a positive
controlled substance or alcohol test, or ot e engaging in prohibited conduct related to

@ndergo a Return to Duty alcohol or a substance
alcohol test must be less than 0.02. The result of
any controlled substance test must gative. The employee must be evaluated by the an
approved Employee Assistance psgvider eounseler, cooperatively participate in any program
prescribed by the EAP, and ﬁ ommended by the EAP to be returned to work. The
employee must sign a Reinﬁg{ ent Agreement form (Appendix D).

substance abuse, then the employee sha
abuse test as appropriate. The result o

5. Follow-up Test — Un@epartment of Transportation regulations, if a County CDL Driver is
allowed to return to~duty as a commercial driver, following referral, evaluation, and treatment, a
minimum of 6 ounced alcohol and/or controlled substance tests will be required during
the next 12 s of employment, as well as continued follow-up testing for up to 60 months.
Any emp% returning to a non-CDL job assignment is subject to follow-up testing as deemed
necesssl the County. Follow-up testing may continue for up to 60 months following return

to t%i/'the County's discretion.

6. @employment — Final candidates for all CDL positions must consent to and participate in
@Bontrolled substance testing prior to employment. Such tests may include urine and/or

QO breathalyzer analysis. Verified Positive Controlled Substances Test Results that cannot be

(b substantiated by medical evidence of legitimate prescribed controlled substance use will be
O cause for disqualification. Alcohol testing will also be conducted for all positions which require

Q a CDL if the Department of Transportation requires such testing. The applicant will test at a
\Q level below 0.02, or the applicant will be considered unqualified for a County CDL Driver job.
Q\' Applicants will be advised of any disqualification under this policy. If an employee is initially
@ hired without a CDL controlled substance test, then obtains a CDL learners permit or license,
M he or she must get a CDL controlled substance test, and must be included in the Random test
pool.

39

58




100124 BCC Meeting

Other:  Admission, Confirmed Report, positive CDL test from other employment,
recommendation of health care professional, or other deemed appropriate. — Management has
the right to send the employee for alcohol and / or controlled substance testing;

a. If an employee admits that he/she has used a controlled substance,

b. If there is a confirmed report of observed use of alcohol or confirmed report of observed (bQ

use of any controlled substance which may violate this procedure, (Q
c. If employed as a CDL Driver for the County and any other employer, and the employee-ka:
a positive controlled substance or alcohol test resulting from a DOT controlled sub@é
testing program from the other employer. b‘
d. Other reasons deemed reasonable and legal by management. Qq/

Employees tested as a result of any of the above will normally be placed ,on (nlﬁ-disciplinary
suspension while awaiting results. '\<Q N

No employee shall report to the work place impaired by drugs preSegibed by a physician or
over-the-counter medications. It is the employee’s responsibilit@' quire from a health care
professional the effects of the particular medication being taken™~*ailure to notify supervisor
and/or testing facility of the use of a prescription-controN@substance will be treated as a
positive test result.

G. Procedures for Alcohol and Controlled Substance Testimé\

1.

Failure to Conduct Testing — An alcohol oqgﬁtrolled substance test is required for Post-
Accident or Reasonable Suspicion. SupenispYs are responsible to make all reasonable efforts
to assure that the employee undergoes ccident/Injury or Reasonable Suspicion testing. If
not administered within 2 hours of fg=&Cident, the supervisor will prepare and maintain on file
a record stating the reasons the Agst®was not administered. Supervisors should continue to
attempt to get the employee tesegf the alcohol test is not administered within 8 hours, or the
controlled substance test is erformed within 32 hours, the County will cease to administer
the test, and the supe will explain why the test was not administered and send
documentation to th an Resources Personnel-Department. [If the supervisor fails to give
ample justificatiqn@t why the test was not administered, the supervisor will face disciplinary

actions. N\
O

Escorting/Pmployees to Testing Site — Employees selected for random controlled substance
testingyfor €DLs will be notified by the County’s testing agency, and will not be escorted by a
Co mployee. In the case of Reasonable Suspicion testing, or if the supervisor believes
t@&

e employee is impaired and the employee is scheduled for testing for another reason, the

x ervisor should arrange for escort and transportation of the employee to the testing facility.

supervisor who suspects that an employee is impaired, will make arrangements to get the
employee safely from the testing site back to the work site, home, or to another appropriate
location. Do not allow the employee to drive themselves to the test or leave the employee at the
testing site.

Alcohol Testing Procedures —In most cases erky an alcohol saliva test or breath sample will be
performed. However, if the situation warrants it, a blood sample might be required. If an
employee refuses to undergo the alcohol test, the employee will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including dismissal.

40

*

N

59




100124 BCC Meeting

Alcohol testing will be performed in an area, which gives privacy to the employee. A Breath
Alcohol Technician (BAT) will perform the test, or other qualified medical professional will

conduct the alcohol saliva test following procedures accepted under the Department of ,&

Transportation. Q

If the result is less than 0.02, no further testing is authorized, and the results will be sent in a (bQ
confidential manner to the County and stored by the County in a confidential manner. Ifgj.
result is 0.02 or greater, a confirmation test must be performed to verify the initial test.

results differ, the confirmation test results will be considered the valid test. Both the em@é

and the technician will sign and date the test results. b‘

If the employee does not provide an adequate amount of breath, the County@ direct the
employee to seek a medical evaluation at the employee's expense as soon, as p#ssible from a
licensed physician who is acceptable to the County. The physician will tggn writing if there
is a medical condition, which prevents the employee from providing the Wecessary breath. If
there was a medical reason, the County will reimburse the employe “his or her expenses. If
the physician states there are no medical reasons, the employ, | be considered to have
refused the test, and will be subject to disciplinary actions up tg ahe’including dismissal.

Controlled Substances Testing Procedures — The Count \'I contract with medical facilities
who are certified by the Department of Health a @mman Services, and who follow the
procedures established by them. The County W ract with health care professionals for
collecting specimens and conducting analysi haln of custody procedures for sample
collection and testing will be used to ensm(s?bper record keeping, handling, labeling and
identification of samples. The County %} only use a laboratory for analysis, which has
received appropriate certification(s). <& propriate measures shall be taken to ensure
confidentiality and accuracy of re In most cases, only a urine sample will be taken.
However, if the situation Warrant@b ood sample may be required.

The specimen will be spli ‘& 0 bottles, so that the second specimen may be analyzed if a
positive result is obtain m the first test. The employee will have 72 hours from being
notified of a positiwt%?result to request and pay for the analysis of the second specimen.
Refusal to coopey h the requests of the collection site person will be considered refusal of
testing and will in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. If the collection site
employee be \;@s tampering of the specimen has occurred, the collection site will follow the
procedurQ established to deal with this situation.

a. \S&% Pending Test Results — Employees tested on the basis of Reasonable Suspicion or
ted because of admission or a confirmed report will normally be placed on non-

\® disciplinary suspension while awaiting results.

O

@b

Medical Review Officer - The laboratory will report positive test results of County CDL
drivers and other employees to a Medical Review Officer (MRO). The MRO will contact
the employee to give the employee the opportunity to discuss the test result. It is in the best
interest of the employee, and is required by the County, to cooperate fully with the MRO
by returning phone calls immediately and providing whatever information the MRO
requests. If the MRO cannot reach the employee directly, a designated County official will
be called and told to contact the employee, who will be ordered to contact the MRO. The
MRO may deem it necessary to discuss issues with the employee's private physician or
pharmacist to determine if there is a basis for the positive test result.

41
60




H.

100124 BCC Meeting

Under the split sample collection procedures, the County CDL Driver and other employees
have 72 hours following notification of a positive result to request the secondary sample be
analyzed at his or her expense. If a split sample was not taken, or was not adequate quality,
the original test would be voided and the driver would not be subject to a retest.

After the Medical Review Officer makes a determination the County will receive a report (bQ

in a confidential manner. (,j
Conseguences of positive tests, insubordination, and challenging results: @
1. Consequences — Qq/b‘

a. Positive controlled substance or alcohol test greater than 0.02 - A eﬂ:ﬂoyee with a
verified positive controlled substance test result and/or alcohol breat With a confirmed
result of 0.02 or greater or any employee found possessing or using centrolled substances
or alcohol at the workplace shall be subject to one or more of thee}Uowing:

o will be directed to seek assistance from the Empl eg%ssistance Program (EAP).
The employee will be placed on Leave With Pay from the day following
notification from the MRO telling manageme(tyof the verified positive controlled
substance test until the day of the first EAP intment. If the employee has accrued
leave, the employee will be allowed t @ leave from the day of the first EAP
appointment until the employee is rele o0 return to work. The employee must sign
the Authorization to Release Confi I
the EAP provider (Appendix C)

e will not be allowed to drive ty vehicle for one year, or

o will be subject to discipli ction up to and including dismissal at management’s

discretion.
O

An employee permitt Qcontinue employment after a positive controlled substance or
alcohol test or aﬁ%r ntarily identifying himself/herself as a controlled substance user

Information form between the County and

will be required ooperate fully with the provisions of a recommended rehabilitation
program as r@ri ed by the Employee Assistance Program or comply with any long-term
treatment ams which are recommended. Participation in the Employee Assistance
Progra mandatory.  Disciplinary action is not automatically suspended by an
empl?e S participating in the Employee Assistance Program and may be taken against
e ees for performance issues or conduct violations. Those employees participating in
& mployee Assistance Program will be subject, during participation, to unannounced
%) d random controlled substance tests in accordance with the aforementioned testing
\\ procedures. Upon a positive controlled substance test result, the employee will be subject
C)Q to dismissal. Those employees participating in the Employee Assistance Program who
satisfactorily complete the program prescribed will be subject to unannounced and random
controlled substance tests for a period of two years after completion of the said program.
Satisfactory completion will be determined by the County Manager or his/her designee
with the guidance of the staff of the Employee Assistance Program. Failure to enter or
complete the prescribed program shall be considered by the County as voluntary
termination of employment initiated by the employee.

The County will pay for the first six (6) visits of an employee to the Employee Assistance

Program during a calendar year. All other visits, voluntary or mandatory, will be the
responsibility of the employee.

42

61

N




Q’b
e

0@

N

100124 BCC Meeting

An employee permitted to continue employment after a positive controlled substance or
alcohol test must have a negative controlled substance or alcohol test before being
reinstated to any position in the County.

b. If an employee driving a County vehicle is involved in a fatal accident, and tests positive in (b

a verified controlled substance or alcohol test, then the driver will be dismissed. (,5

Insubordination: Refusing to Undergo Testing, Refusing to Cooperate, or Tampering @

An employee who tells a supervisor that he or she refuses to be tested or refu sign the
appropriate paperwork will be advised that such behavior is considered insuborg n and that
continued refusal will result in discipline up to and including dismissal. In,case¥hot involving
a fatal accident, if the employee refuses to cooperate after being told of t‘éJOnsequences, the
supervisor must document the refusal. An employee is required to submit to an alcohol test
immediately, but no later than 8 hours in a post-accident situation. X+

If the employee was involved in a fatal accident and refuses t tche test, then he or she will
be dismissed. X

Failure to provide a specimen or second specimen if tRd@1s a question about the first, failure to
cooperate with the collection site personnel, or t ing with test procedures or results will
lead to disciplinary action up to including dismi

&

Challenging Results (O

An employee or applicant has 72 @g)from being notified of a verified positive controlled
substances test result to requestAQat® the split specimen be tested, at the employee's or job

applicant’s expense. .
&
The employee may a ursuant to the Grievance Procedure as outlined in the County

Personnel Ordinanc

Temporary andﬁ;Q&egular employees who test positive may be released without recourse or

appeal. $Q
Consg%%eges to Job Applicants

@applicam will not be considered for employment with the County for at least one year in
\ 0

f the following scenarios;

(\C) a. A job applicant has a verified positive controlled substances test result, or
b.

If there is a change to federal or state law in the future requiring applicant alcohol tests, if
the applicant has an alcohol breath test with a confirmed result of 0.02 or greater, or
c. The job applicant admits drug or alcohol use that violates this policy.

Any job applicant, who applies for another position with the County after one year but within
two years, must provide a letter from a substance abuse professional stating that the individual
has successfully completed a rehabilitation program and that the individual is able to return to
the workforce. This letter should be marked confidential and directed to the Personnel
Department.

43

N
L

62




100124 BCC Meeting

Job applicants who refuse a test will no longer be considered for any position.

Confidentiality of Records Q \§

The Human Resources Personnel Department shall maintain the confidentiality of test results, EAP ODQ
referrals and employment status. Access to these records by Human Resources Pepsennq:s .
Department employees shall be controlled and limited to employees designated by the Hu#ran
Resources Director. The reports or test results may be disclosed to management on a strictly@k
to-know basis and to the tested employee upon written request. Information will be releaseygn y as
required by law or as expressly authorized. Disclosures may also occur when:

Q

a. The information is needed by medical personnel for the diagnosis pr t(rlﬁment of the
patient who is unable to authorize disclosure. a) ®

b. The information is compelled by law or by judicial or administrative precess.

c. The County must allow any DOT authorized agency access ilities and records in
connection with the County’s alcohol and controlled substan se policy.

d. When requested, the County will disclose post-accident te t@nformation to the National
Transportation Safety Board as part of an accident inves{gation.

e. The County will make records available to a subsequ@ employer upon receipt of a written
request from the employee.

f. The County may disclose information to t
lawsuit, grievance or other proceedings init
may include worker's compensation,

relating to a benefit sought by the em%@

g. With employee consent, if the in tion is to be used in administering an employee

ployee or to the decision-maker in a
by or on behalf of the individual. This
oyment compensation, or other proceeding

benefit plan.
Notification of Charges . (\Q
QO
An employee charged with a hol or controlled substance related criminal offense shall notify

the Department Head no l%g an five (5) days after such charge or conviction. Failure to notify
one’s Department Head é}a be grounds for dismissal.

N

SECTION 12. EMPLOYE@@SBTANCE PROGRAM

o\ |

B.

5
%)

N

A

A4

Purpos —%-provide confidential counseling for classified employees and their dependents in
overco such persistent problems that may tend to jeopardize their health and continued
em ent.

:§£|cy — It is the policy of Watauga County to assist, in a confidential manner, employees who may

(b' e having personal problems which may be affecting work performance or causing excessive
absenteeism. These problems may be a result of stress, substance abuse, emotional or financial
problems, family matters, or other concerns. This policy recognizes that these conditions are
hopefully of a temporary nature and the County encourages employees to seek professional
assistance.

This service will be available to all regular County employees and their spouse or minor children.
Each regular employee or family member is eligible for a combined total of six (6) free visits
annually. Any additional visits shall be the financial responsibility of the employee.

44
63




100124 BCC Meeting

Eligible County employees may utilize this service at their own initiative without their supervisor’s
permission. Time off from work must be approved through the normal procedures. ,&

N
C. Supervisor Responsibility — It is the responsibility of the immediate supervisor to identify and QQ
document poor job performance, attendance or behavioral problems, whether they are continuous or
intermittent. The supervisor is not responsible for diagnosing the cause for such problems but W|03
advise the employee of the employee assistance program when it is apparent that normal supe
has not resolved the performance, attendance or behavioral problem. r@

1.  When an employee's performance, attendance or behavior is unsatisfactory, it W@},called to
their attention by their supervisor.

2. If performance, attendance or behavioral problems continue, the super,é@ ‘will discuss the
problem privately with the employee.

3. When a problem is identified, the supervisor will not delve into@gq’nployees personal life to
try to find causes. If it appears that the employee cannot or wi improve their performance,
attendance or behavior, the employee will be advised of the oyee assistance program.

4. If the employee accepts the offer of help and their @erformance attendance or behavioral

problems improve to a satisfactory level, no furth n will be taken.

5. Whether the employee refuses or accepts th of help, if and job performance, if-attendance
or behavioral problems continue, the re discipline procedures of Watauga County will
apply.

Q.

D. Program Administrator Responsibili The County Manger or his designee is the Program
Administrator who will be respe for the program and in working with the professional

provider(s). (bg

E. Confidentiality, Documemg and Records — The provider used by the County for diagnosing and
counseling employees i d of assistance shall maintain only such records as are necessary and
shall not release the out written authorization of the employee. Such records will be handled
in the same configsptial manner as other medical and hospital records. Documentation of an

AP visits is required by the County for billing purposes only.

| SECTION 13. CN/IR-TER Use PoLicy
Q\J'
A P — Watauga County’s computers, computer systems, and computer networks, as well as, the

a3 they store and process, must be operated and maintained in a secure, responsible manner. It is
Qritical that these systems and machines be protected from misuse and unauthorized access.

@. Policy — This policy applies to all County-owned or leased computers and peripherals, hardware,
Q software, and the network (Internet and Intranet) as well as anything connected to County systems or
N networks.

@ Employee owned devices persenal-computing—systems shall not be connected to the County’s
network without prior approval from the Information Technologies Department. If this connection is

45
64




100124 BCC Meeting

approved, the use of these systems shall be subject to these standards and guidelines as set forth
herein.

All communications and information transmitted by, received from, or stored in County systems are
considered data and the property of the County. Employees have no right of personal privacy or any Q
expectation of privacy in the content of this data. Use of County IT resources constitutes consent to Q
the monitoring of the use of these systems. Systems and data may not be continuously monitored, but ('b
not monitoring a system or data does not constitute a waiver of the right to monitor. 6 .

In addition to this policy, users are subject to applicable state and federal laws. Improper r
misuse of County computer systems on a person’s work time or after hours is a violation ounty
personnel policies and may lead to disciplinary action including suspension, demotion % issal.

This policy is not intended to supersede any existing laws or policies regardi g(rg(ords that are
confidential, including, but not limited to, juvenile records in the Sheriff’s OI"ﬁf\,0 ftain information
contained in personnel files, client files in Project on Aging, Social Services redords, and Veteran’s
Service Office client records. Also, this policy does not address public aee;s issues. It is intended
for internal use only. O

Security — Security refers to the protection of all computer equ Qnt resources from any kind of
damage and the protectlon of data from unauthorlzed @ess dlstrlbutlon modlflcatlon or
destruction. : 3

appropriate Department Head has reqUEse
accessed before the user is authorlz e wrltten request must mclude the systems accouhts to
be accessed by the user. ;

may only access systems they

2. Users are responsible fo&guarding their own computer access, which includes not sharing
or allowing anyone owledge of their passwords and shutting down, logging off, or
locking their comp@ hen it is not in use.

3. Users SHAL ‘Q)T let another person use their access or use someone else’s access unless IT
approves the use and purpose. Users are directly
accougiabl® for all activity connected to their user ID.

4, P ords

SHALL NOT be divulged to any other

on. Passwords should be memorized and not written down unless kept in a secure place.

0@ asswords should be changed when prompted by the system, the IT Department, or when it is

suspected that the password has been compromised. Passwords used for access to County
systems should not be reused anywhere else (i.e., to log into an external website).

6. If a user is dismissed for any reason or is on extended leave, IT erNetwerk-Administrator
{where-apphicable} must be notified immediately by the Department Head so that dismissed
user account can be disabled or removed from the system.

46
65




100124 BCC Meeting

7. Users SHALL NOT attempt to bypass security mechanisms.

previously defined. Q
Q

9. Users SHALL NOT violate any rules in other portions of the County Personnel Ordinance, ('b
local, state, or federal laws via County computing systems or communications. QD .

10. Users shall notify IT of any suspe
confirmed unauthorized use or misuse of computlng systems and also any potentlav‘ecunty
loopholes immediately. Q

D. Acceptable Use — At all times when an employee is using Watauga County tegchnoleQy resources,
they are heuor—sheqs representlng the County

Xe°
While in the performance of work-related functions, while on the job,@gﬂile using publicly owned

are expected to use them

or publicly provided technology resources, Watauga County emp
f these resources in an illegal,

responsibly and professionally. They shall make no intentional
malicious, inappropriate or obscene manner.

al use of County computers and data
rces must ensure tasure that the County

The County understands that a minimal amount of
communications may occur. Personal use of those
incurs no cost for the use (County-time or additi arges) and that this use in no way interferes
with the normal operation of the County netwo systems (i.e., using too much bandwidth). The
Department Head may limit or curtail per use, as the Department Head deems reasonably
necessary, on a case-by-case basis.

Users are required: . \(\Q

1.  Torespect the privacy of, T users; for example, users shall not intentionally seek information
on, obtain copies of, dify files, data, or passwords belonging to other users, unless explicit
permission to do, s, been obtained.

Supervisory per I-whe shall be given have-rightste access to any files generated ereated
by staff users eir respective departments upon request to IT. AH-fHes-are-County-property:

2. To nﬁ;ggg@ or use illegal copies of copyrighted material, store such material on County
| t, or transmlt such materlal over the network wspeeHhe—legal—ptoteettowprowdedte

In addition, software of any kind shall not be installed onto any Watauga County computer
system without prior approval of the IT Department, and any unapproved software may not be

47
66

8. Users SHALL NOT engage in abuse or misuse of the County’s computing systems as ,&




100124 BCC Meeting

run on any County computer system. Fhis-includes-shareware—freeware,-personal-software,or

3. To protect data from unauthorized use or disclosure as required by state and federal laws and
agency regulations (i.e., confidential information).

otherW|se mterfere W|th data—hapdware—er—system the operatlon of County systems b‘

5. To not store an excessive amount of personal data on the County systems. (19

Unacceptable Use — Uses that do not conform to the purpose, goals, and miss‘,@f‘the County and
to each user’s authorized job duties and responsibilities. x_

Examples of unacceptable activities include but are not limited to: O

1. Private or personal, for-profit activities (e.g., consulting §® sale of goods such-as-Aven
and-Amway-products, etc.);

2. Use for any illegal purpose, including commumca&}\hat violate any laws or regulations;

3. Transmitting or soliciting threatening, ObSCC) harassing erpeohiticathrnatured messages or
images; 6

4.  Viewing pornographic or sexually Qged material, except as deemed necessary to conduct
criminal investigations or child- are investigations (as approved by supervisor);

5. Intentionally seeking |nfor about obtaining copies of, or modifying of files or other data;
or-passwerds belongi \?\ er users, unless explicit permission to do so has been obtained
from IT;

6. Interfering wi
are not limit

srupting users, services or equipment. Such disruptions would include, but
: 1) distribution of unsolicited advertising or messages, 2) propagation of
compute@o s or viruses, and 3) attempting to gain unauthorized entry to another computer
or c01$_te system whether owned by the County or another entity or individual outside of the

Q@(novmg any computer equipment (hardware, software, data, etc.) without supervisor’s
Qautherization-and IT authorization notitication;

8. Allowing non-county employees, including an employee’s family or friends, to use the
County’s technology resources.

48

67




100124 BCC Meeting

Internet Use — A—Ceunty Interp ess aceeunt is a resource granted to employees dpen

to (gEPease productivity and provide opportunities for professional
rowth.
: Z,

The County has softwar \rg\systems in place to block access to offensive and/or inappropriate
websites. This softw stem can also monitor and record all usage.

All Internet u Qe expected to comply with Section Il (Acceptable Uses) of this Computer &
: Use Policy. Improper use could result in the cancellation of a user’s

computeb account and will result in disciplinary action.

Social Media and Cloud Storage — Forms of electronic communication (such as websites for social

networking, including Facebook, Instagram, etc.) through which users create online networks and
communities to share information, ideas, personal messages, and other content including text and
visuals.

49
68




100124 BCC Meeting

Cloud Storage: Files stored on the Internet including but not limited to documents, spreadsheets,
images, videos, databases, and other media. Examples of cloud storage include but are not limited to

Office 365, Google Drive, Microsoft OneDrive, Apple iCloud, and Adobe Creative Cloud. ,&

Employees of Watauga County are required to notify and obtain prior approval from their QQ
Department Head and the IT Department before creating any social media account to be used for

business-related purposes. All work-related social media accounts must be set-up using Coun%.
email addresses and phone numbers, not using personal contact information, as Watauga Coun'@l

serve as the “owner” of the account.

All County social media accounts must be connected, through the IT Department, t@}yrequired
service that stores and archives all posts and conversations for public records/retentiqril

Employee use of social media should follow the below guidelines: '\03 h

e Use of personal social media accounts should be limited during&quing hours and should
not create a hindrance of job performance. Q

e When registering online accounts for personal use employggs shiould not use their company
email address, and use of social media on company gq ent is discouraged unless it is
work-related.

e Employees of Watauga County should use decoru @’personal or work-related social media

posts and refrain from statements of visuals th d discredit the County.
e Employees are prohibited from posting ounty related confidential or protected
information.

e All work-related social media accounévbuld be used in compliance with all social media
policies and operating procedu Watauga County and/or the individual County
Department.

Purchasing — The purchase of ¢ hardware, peripherals, software — including web-based
software, and other IT relate are, services, and equipment must be made through the
Information Technologies Deg@yment or with IT authorization.

Records Retention — QﬁEployees of Watauga County are required by law to follow State records
retention require xamples include but are not limited to; paper records, files and emails
stored on an e s’ computer; and the County network, voicemail, text messages, and social
media.

Each e o@e and department are the custodian of their own records and they are responsible for
foll\' e adopted retention schedule in place for their department.

regard to records retention and inspection, employees shall not use their personal email for

ounty business without IT authorization. A County email account will be provided instead, as

C)(b necessary to appropriate County Employees.

Compliance — The IT Director and County Administration Department-Head will review reported
and perceived violations of this policy and may impose restrictions, suspend or terminate computer
access, or remove computer equipment during or as a result of an investigation. Other appropriate
action in response to abuse or misuse of computer resources may include, but not be limited to:

1. Reimbursement to the County for resources consumed;

50
69




100124 BCC Meeting

2. Other legal action, including action to recover damages;

3. Disciplinary action, including suspension, demotion, or dismissal pursuant to Watauga County’s Q
Personnel Ordinance. Q

Department Heads will be responsible for the enforcement of the County’s Computer and Da@j.

Communications Policy.
©
aXx — |

SECTION 13. CELLPHONE ANB-PAGERPOLICY

A Policy — Watauga County provides cellular telephones or monetary cell phon owances as
necessary for employees in specified positions to ensure their continuous acces@..iiiry, and-pagers-to
improve customer service and enhance business. r\

B. Acquisition and Use of Cellular Telephones and—Pagers — The a @}Gn and use of cellular
telephones and-—pagers by Watauga County employees or the pa t of a cellular telephone
allowance will be based on a rigorous analysis and justificatio @nsidering cost, efficiency, and
enhanced job performance. The use of County cellular telephgne-and-pagers is subject to all rules
and regulations contained in this ordinance regarding the f County property. County issued
cellular telephones ane-pagers shall be used for official C business only; they are not to be used
for personal use except in true emergency circumstanc It is absolutely necessary to use a County
issued cellular telephone for personal calls, the e\%gyee shall notify their supervisor leg-thecal
and, if any additional charges above the Countyy ic rate plan are incurred due to personal calls
these charges are the responsibility of the em and shall be reimbursed to the County within 10
business days after the cellular telephone Jat I&ae date.

D. Cellular Telephone Safety — Emp@ should not use their cellular telephone while driving,
operating equipment, or any othe‘* -related tasks in which a distraction of cellular phone usage
may create a safety risk, with e ions for emergency personnel. Plan your calls before you begin
your trip, and make call}s&n your vehicle is parked. For County issued cellular phones,
employees should carefully{ead your instruction manual and be familiar with your phone’s features.
Place your wireless in your vehicle where you can reach it without removing your eyes from
the road. Avoid c ations during hazardous driving conditions or situations. Heavy traffic can
be as hazardo @ in, sleet, snow and ice. Do not take notes or look up phone numbers while
driving. As a@ver, your first responsibility is to pay attention to the road. Dial 911 in case of fire,
traffic acci%t-, road hazard, or medical emergencies. If you see an auto accident, crime in progress
or other@grious emergency where lives are in danger call 911 and give the exact location and your
wir, umber.

%)
(\0

N
| $€qHon 14. Tosacco Use PoLicy

n order to maintain a comfortable, safe and healthy working environment, use of all tobacco products is
,&g d intai fortable, safe and health Ki i f all tob d i
(%) prohibited in County buildings and vehicles.

WATAUGA COUNTY TOBACCO USE POLICY

51
70




100124 BCC Meeting

Purpose — Watauga County is committed to protecting the public health and providing a safe

work environment for employees, volunteers, contractual persons, and the public by
prohibiting the use of tobacco products in any building or structure owned or leased by the
County. In support of this commitment, the use of tobacco products will be prohibited in all Q
County-owned or leased buildings, grounds, parking areas, walkways and vehicles. 603
Policy — The use of tobacco products is prohibited in all County-owned or leased buil@,
grounds, parking areas, walkways and vehicles. The term tobacco products inclu IS
not limited to cigarettes, cigars, chewing tobacco, snuff and pipe smoking. Ti ﬂ?‘ not be
made available to allow employees to leave the workplace in order to use tobagbéaroducts.
THIS POLICY HAS BEEN IN ISFO-BE EFFECT SINCE JANUA,éOl’: 2007.

Applicability — All employees, volunteers, contractual persons, and@bublic.

Supervisor’s Responsibility — Ensure the tobacco %cy is enforced. Answer employee
questions related to the tobacco use policy. i ions.

Human Resources’ Responsibility — Answ; estions from supervisors and employees on
the tobacco use policy and tobacco c@ion programs/options that may be available
through the County Health Insurance :

obaceo—Ce grams—~SErbloyees—who—use—tobaceo—p

Discigling%;gtion — Disciplinary actions may be taken any—ef-theforms—tisted—n in
accordapgceMvith Article VIII, Section 8, of the Watauga County Personnel Ordinance, from
ar & in a written warning te or additional disciplinary action up to and including
di%&sal.

52
71

N




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE VI. USE OF COUNTY PROPERTY AND TIME

| SECTION1. PoLicy |

County time and County property - land, equipment, vehicles, buildings, supplies, etc. shall be used solely for ODQ

County business purposes. Personal use of County property and time is prohibited. 6 R
Equipment, tools, materials and supplies that belong to the County shall not be removed from C@/
property without the approval of an employee’s supervisor. qb‘
ya
| SECTION2. VEHICLES Ay |
- - 9D
Use of County vehicles shall be governed by the following: r\

A County vehicles, equipment and apparatus are to be used only by Cou @}?ﬁloyees or agents of the
County, for County business, except that vehicles may be taken hom&en doing so serves the best
interest of the County. While performing County business a Cq\u@ vehicle may be driven to and
from lunch. All other personal use is prohibited 6

B. The County Manager or his/her designee shall deterrQs upon the recommendation of the
Department Head, whether circumstances warrant icle being driven home by a County

employee on a routine basis. Unless an emergenc!ﬁ@q s, employees are prohibited from stopping

en-route between work site and home for pers easons. Proper care and maintenance of the
vehicle is the responsibility of the employee/D ment Head. Employees shall keep vehicles clean
inside and out.

C. All use of tobacco products is prohiw County vehicles.

D. Employees who are assigned a @nty vehicle, either temporarily or permanently, are to operate that
vehicle in a responsible ma nd obey all State and Federal laws. Seat belt use for front-seat the
driver and all passengers & rhandatory. Any accident involving a County vehicle shall be reported
immediately in accor with established procedures and North Carolina State laws.

E. Unauthorized ers, such as hitchhikers, family, friends or other parties, not directly related to
County busine@are not allowed in or to operate County vehicles.

Violation of thi R:y may result in disciplinary action set forth in the Watauga County Personnel

Ordinance, AKRIE VIII Separation, Disciplinary Action and Reinstatement. (See G.S. 14-247 making
private us ublic owned vehicle a misdemeanor. Also, refer to County Resolution Book 4, Page 43 dated
April 22 6 - Resolution Regarding Employee Use of Vehicles Owned by the County of Watauga, North
CargliRa).

O
e

0@

N

53

72




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE VII. TYPES OF LEAVE

SECTION 1. PAID HOLIDAYS OBSERVED | Q

The following holidays, and other such days as the Board of Commissioners may designate, shall be ('bQ
observed as holidays for employees. 6 R

New Year's Day @

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

Good Friday Qq,b‘

Memorial Day q/
Independence Day

Labor Day '\03 B
Veteran's Day

Thanksgiving and the Day After c’)\"

Christmas O
he The County

WI|| adopt and observe the same hollday schedule as deS|gnated é) : State of North Carollna for each

Sunday———

Menday Brday-&Tuesday

Fuesday ) ‘OMondayFuesday-& Wednesday
Wednesday S | FuesdayWednesday-& Fhursday
Fhursday o) | Wednesday, Fhursday-& Friday
Friday —— PN Fhursday-& Friday

Saturday (b Friday-& Monday

All regular employees are entlt&(.eh’e hollday leave, not to exceed eight (8) hours per day, providing the
employee is on pay status eit work day before or the work day after the holiday period. Regular part-
time employees shall be m@a sated on the basis of their average workweek. When the regular employee
works more than 30 h Il holiday benefits are due. When the regular employee works 20-30 hours, 1/2
the regular holiday.berfsfits are due. Temporary and non-regular employees are not eligible for holiday

benefits.
e

| SECTION ZAQE#FECT OF HOLIDAYS ON OTHER TYPES OF PAID LEAVE
N
Reg Qﬁolidays that occur during a vacation, sick or other paid leave period of any County employee shall
harged as vacation, sick or other paid leave.

. Q,%ECHON 3. HOLIDAYS - WHEN WORK IS REQUIRED

Non-exempt employees, including, sworn law enforcement officers, detention officers, Communications,
Fire Marshal staff, Parks and Recreation and Sanitation personnel, whose work schedule requires them to
work on a County Observed Holiday shall be compensated holiday pay for hours actually worked on a
County Observed Holiday. Holiday benefits shall not exceed eight (8) hours per observed day. Sworn law

54
73




100124 BCC Meeting

enforcement officers, detention officers, Communications, and Parks and Recreation personnel not required
to work on a County Observed Holiday shall receive up to eight (8) hours of holiday leave to take within four
(4) months of accrual. Any holiday leave not taken within the four (4) month period will be lost. Upon
termination of employment, an employee shall not be compensated for any banked holiday time.

Non-exempt employees, including, Animal Care and Control, Department of Social Services (Somal

Workers I, Il and I11) and Maintenance personnel whose position classification requires them to respond to@D

maximum of 40 hours per week. Time worked in excess of the regular 40-hour week will be given

form of compensatory time off at a rate of one and one-half hours. Holiday benefits, not to excee

hours per observed day, will be given in the form of compensatory time off at an hour gbaur rate.
Compensatory time off will only be given at a rate of one and one-half hours for actual % worked in
excess of the regular 40-hour workweek, not including the eight (8) hours per day givee)for ach observed

holiday. .
N
f\‘

“callback” on a County Observed Holiday shall be compensated for the actual hours worked, up@é
(8)

SECTION 4. LEAVE PoLicy - ADVERSE WEATHER CONDITIONS ( )\)
-

QO
I\
06

N

conditions shall apply the absence against comp time or vacatign prior to leave-without-pay. The
employee’s supervisor must approve this leave. The employee s@k se their discretion to determine if it is
safe to travel to and from work. &

If County offices open Iate close early, or close for the egi?date due to adverse weather conditions, per the

Il be con5|dered adverse weather" leave. A
3 wegpritay : - Any weather-
related leave time, not classmed as “adverse \weXher” leave will be
charged to the employee’s accrued comp o ation leave balance. If an employee does not have any
accrued leave, the time will be charged as without pay. If an employee does not come to work at all on
a day that County offices open late o se early, all eight (8) hours must be applied to comp time or
vacation leave prior to Ieave-withoé?@y, regardless of how many hours the County offices were closed. If
an employee is unable to work dueo sickness, all eight (8) hours will be applied to sick leave. A doctor’s
excuse may be requested fok! leave taken during inclement weather. If an employee is already on
vacation during inclement w@her when a period of “adverse weather” leave is designated, all eight (8) hours
will be applied to vaca{'z\bave. “Adverse weather” leave is only granted to those employees who work for
the majority of the dayXIf none of the staff in a given office can get to work because of the weather, notice
must be given to th unty Manager’s Office in advance.

An employee, who cannot travel to work, comes to work late, or ;5%5 early due to adverse weather

If County Qii@€s are opening late and an employee is at work before the scheduled opening, no time is
gained (c r overtime) for that employee. The same applies if an employee stays past an early office

closing. (& o employee will be paid for more than eight (8) hours per day or forty (40) hours per week due
to w@eﬂ adverse weather leave.

JNE Adverse Weather Condition Leave Policy does not apply to the Sheriff’s Office, Maintenance,

mergency Services Management or Sanitation Departments’ staff er-ether—pesitiens that may be deemed
appropriate by the County Manager or his/her designee, with the exception of Administrative positions in the

identified County Departments whose functions are non-essential to the continued operation and un-
interrupted service provided during adverse weather events.

55

N
L

74




Period
12 days a year 3.69 Less than 5 years
,0(\ 15 days a year 4.62 5 but less than 10 years
C) 18 days a year 5.54 10 but less than 15 years
Q 21 days a year 6.46 15 but less than 20 years
. Q 24 days a year 7.38 20 years or more

100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION5. VACATION LEAVE |

It shall be the policy of Watauga County to grant vacation leave for its employees as a reward for past ’\&
service. Employees may take vacation leave only as it accumulates and at a time approved by the appropriate Q
supervisor. An employee shall make a request two (2) weeks prior to the leave date for vacation leave Q
exceeding two (2) days. A request one-half day prior to the leave date shall be made for vacation leave f ’('b
two (2) days or less. % :

Employees may wish to be away from work on certain days for religious observances. Depar%@s

shall attempt to arrange the work schedule so that an employee can be granted vacation leav nitis
requested because the day is a major religious observance for that employee. Vacation leavi e denied
only when it would create an undue hardship for the County, which cannot be prevented in a er manner.

=eg 5 Do ey 8 0)-hoursing ion

feave. Regular part-time employees whose average workweek is twenty (20) to tk{{r'ty (30) hours shall earn
vacation leave at one-half the standard rate. Vacation leave shall accrue on the-R€sie of completed work-pay
periods. Time worked for partial periods at the beginning or ending of emp ent shall not count toward
vacation accrual. Employees on vacation leave when a holiday occurs@ not be charged with vacation
leave for said holiday. 6

leave beginning the first pay period in which they are paid less 5% of their regular work schedule.

N

An employee who requests and is granted leave without pay st@ become ineligible to accrue vacation

N
SECTION 6. PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES VAC@&DN LEAVE
A

Employees serving a probationary period follo%g initial appointment will earn vacation leave but may not
be permitted to take vacation leave durin ﬁ‘e obationary period unless the denial of such leave creates
unusual hardship. A limited amount o@tion leave will be granted during an employee’s probationary
period to avoid leave without pay, uQtgsfYadequate amount of paid leave time can be accrued. Any vacation
leave granted during this period S%? have prior written approval of the Department Head and County
Manager or his/her designee. .\0

AVa\

SECTION 7. MANNERQ®WACATION LEAVE ACCUMULATION |

A full-time, clas 'fi%mployee who is in pay status earns vacation leave at the following rate:
a
\'acation Leave Earned  Accrual Rate Per Pay Length of Service

Members of the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System or the North Carolina
State Employees’ Retirement System may calculate “length of service” for determining vacation leave earned
as the number of certified membership years in either of these retirement systems.

56
75




100124 BCC Meeting

| SECTION 8. MAXIMUM ACCUMULATED VACATION LEAVE |

For the purpose of earning and accruing vacation leave, the 12-calendar month period between January 1 and ’\&
December 31 is established as the leave year. Vacation leave shall accumulate up to a total of 30 days (240 Q
hours) leave. Vacation leave in excess of 30 days (240 hours) shall accumulate only within the year during Q

which it is earned. Any leave in excess of 30 days (240 hours) which is not taken in the year during which } ’('b
is earned shall be converted to sick leave effective December 31 of each year.

| SECTION 9. ACCUMULATED LEAVE AT DEATH OR SEPARATION b‘

|

(
In case of death, the employee's estate shall be paid all compensatory time and accrueff\k tion leave.
Payment of vacation leave shall not exceed 30 days (240 hours) maximum accumulatign. Upon separation
from County service, an employee with accrued vacation leave will be paid in a lump dr the amount of
unused vacation leave not to exceed 30 days (240 hours). Unused vacation leave in excess of 30 days (240
hours) will NOT be reinstated after any period of separation from employment Wi@bé County.

|

| SECTION 10. SICK LEAVE

Q
\v
Sick leave with pay is a privilege granted by Watauga County. R @Qfor sick leave shall be submitted to
the employee's supervisor prior to the leave or not later than eﬁeﬁm&a@rﬂ the beginning of a scheduled
workday, with exceptions only for extreme medical o? ergency situations. Each Department

Head/Supervisor shall develop a reasonable department cedure and means of communication made
available to their staff for notification to the appropriaty¥pervisory personnel of unplanned absence/sick

leave.
%)

Each regular employee working an average schedMe of more than thirty (30) hours per week shall earn sick
leave at the rate of 3.69 per pay period. Ea&:@.ﬂar employee working an average schedule of twenty (20)
to thirty (30) hours per week shall earn sich ve at the rate of 1.85 hours per pay period. Sick leave shall be
earned on the basis of each fully co d work/pay period. No employee can be granted sick leave in
excess of that earned. Sick leave cumulative with no limit of accumulation. Time worked for partial
periods at the beginning or endjre)o employment shall not count toward sick accrual.

»

Leave from work shall be ¥Qarged to sick leave if the absence is due to illness, bodily injury, quarantine,

required physical or examinations or treatment, pregnancy, childbirth, and postpartum care, or
exposure to a contagious disease which continued work might jeopardize the health of others. Leave from
work may be c?rg to sick leave for the employee’s spouse, child, or parents’ sickness, bodily injury,

physical or dental examinations or treatment, pregnancy, childbirth, and postpartum

guarantine, re

57
76




@omparable documentation.

é\} | SECTION 14. FUNERAL LEAVE

100124 BCC Meeting

reasonablhy-possible-
giand

Employees claiming sick leave may be required to furnish a certificate from a physician stating theki
nature of the illness or injury, if the employee has been incapacitated for the period of absence hat they
are again physically able to perform assigned duties. Claiming sick leave when physically git™»all be cause

for discharge. Q.)
4

An employee who requests and is granted leave without pay status shall become inelig{B?e to accrue vacation
or sick leave beginning the first pay period in which they are paid less than 8%of their regular work

schedule. O

SECTION 11. SICK LEAVE TRANSFER . XY

O

A newly hired classified employee may transfer their accumulat ck leave balance from their previous
employer who is a member of the North Carolina Local Gover tal Employees' Retirement System or the
North Carolina State Employees' Retirement System subjec e following conditions:

A The employment was within the preceding M#Qﬂ) months.

B. The most recent employer provides pr &ertification to Watauga County within the employee’s
first six (6) months of employmeng
$
SECTION 12. SICK LEAVE RETlREM@?CREDlT

J
Accumulated, unused sick Ieaveq';g;)wed as creditable service at time of retirement to employees who are
members of the North a Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System, subject to the
Retirement System rules. 0

| SECTION 13. SICIQ.)ERVE - SEPARATED EMPLOYEES
Employees, w@retire or resign and are not reinstated with Watauga County within a one (1) year period,

shall lose @}'sick leave credits. No employee shall be paid for any accrued sick leave at termination of
emplo t.

@(gave will only be approved during the final two weeks of a notice with a physician’s certification or

Leave from work may be charged to sick leave for attendance at the funeral of a member of the employee's
family. Three (3) days sick leave may be allowed with any additional days being charged to comp time,

58

77




100124 BCC Meeting

vacation leave or leave without pay for the death of the following family members: wife, husband, mother,
father, guardian, brother, sister, son, daughter, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law,
grandmother, grandfather, grandson, granddaughter, step-mother, stepfather and stepchildren.

be

SECTION 15. VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVE ) d

A Purpose - Watauga County acknowledges that there are sometimes circumstances brought @
serious, prolonged medical conditions that cause employees to exhaust all availabl e and
therefore be placed on leave without pay status. It is understood that employees to go on
leave without pay may be left without income, adding financial hardship to sical and/or
emotional difficulties. The County also recognizes that some employees may(aish to voluntarily
donate a portion of their annual leave in order to provide assistance to a fel ounty employee.
The intent of this policy is to provide an opportunity for employees to assisg c-workers affected by a
serious medical condition which requires absence from work for ar@éﬂed period of time and
results in the exhaustion of all earned leave.

may donate annual leave to fellow employees who have b bsent from work due to a serious,
prolonged medical condition and have exhausted all of t aid leave. This policy does not apply
to incidental or short-term conditions. An employee 0 rkers’ Compensation leave is not eligible
to participate in this program.

O
B. Policy — Watauga County has implemented a Voluntary Shar; ﬁave Program whereby employees

For the purpose of this policy, a prolonged gglcal condition is one which is likely to require the
employee’s absence from work for a sigry eriod of time, generally considered to be at least 10
work days. An exception to this time rgqidrement may be recommended by the Department Head if
the employee has had a previous rg@or prolonged medical condition within the last 12 months.

Qualified medical conditions mu et the definition of a serious medical condition as defined by
FMLA regulations. g .

C. General Guidelines — A& ployee may not intimidate, threaten, coerce, or attempt to intimidate,
threaten or coerce her employee for the purpose of interfering with any right which such
employee may h@h respect to donating, receiving or using leave under this program. Such
action by an e e shall be grounds for disciplinary action. Disciplinary actions may take any of

the forms I'sttgin Article VIII, Section 8, of the Watauga County Personnel Ordinance, from a

written \ga to dismissal.

Un 0 circumstances shall an employee receive any form of compensation, monetary or
Oé,p ise, for donated leave. Direct solicitation of employees for Voluntary Shared Leave donations
(\ rohibited.

Should an employee qualify for FMLA leave, such leave will run concurrently with Voluntary

O Shared Leave.
O
A\

Voluntary Shared Leave is not job protected leave and in no way conveys any guarantees above and
beyond those provided by FMLA legislation.

59
78




E'Ofo

100124 BCC Meeting

As with any paid leave, an employee who utilizes Voluntary Shared Leave will continue to accrue
annual and sick leave for any pay period in which they are paid at least 75% of their regular work
schedule. Any form of leave outside of VVoluntary Shared Leave will be exhausted as it is earned.

Voluntary Shared Leave may not be used in such a manner that the employee receives more than QQ
100% of his/her salary during the prolonged medical leave. 03

Eligibility Requirements @
1. Recipient Qq,b‘

In order to be a recipient of Voluntary Shared Leave, an employee must firs%/;e(elfhe following

conditions. '\ 4

a. Bearegular employee working on a full or part time basis. Xo*

b. Apply for FMLA leave if applicable. go

c. Be experiencing a serious health condition or be requi serve as caretaker for a
tmmediate family member, as detailed in the Family an ical Leave Policy (i.e. spouse,
child or parent) experiencing a serious health condlt@}as defined by the Family Medical
Leave Act.

d. Have an expectation of an absence from duty will exhaust all compensatory, annual
and sick leave. All paid leave must be exh prior to the utilization of any Voluntary
Shared Leave. sQ

@)
2. Donor (9

In order to participate as a donor %o:untary Shared Leave, an employee must comply with the
following guidelines: (\

a. Employees may dona@ual leave only. Sick leave is not eligible for donation.

b. The donating emp%ﬁ must maintain a minimum leave balance of 40 hours after donation.

c. The donating e ee must be an active regular employee during the pay period in which
the donated | Is transferred for use, to the sick leave balance of the recipient.

d. Anyann &ve donated will be placed into the sick leave balance of the recipient.

e. Dona leave will be given hour for hour, irrespective of any difference in pay between

ry effort will be made to keep the names of donor employees confidential; however, due

f. F ust be donated in one-hour increments with a minimum donation of 4 hours.
the nature of the process, confidentiality cannot be guaranteed.

diplications Procedures — Employees who meet the stated eligibility criteria may complete a

Voluntary Shared Leave request and submit it to their Department Head who will, upon approval,
forward the request to the Human Resources Department. The request must include a physician-
completed “Certification of Health Care Provider for Employee’s Serious Health Condition (Family
Medical Leave Act)” or “Certification of Health Care Provider for Family Member’s Serious Health
Condition (Family Medical Leave Act)” as appropriate. The completed form must also note an
estimated duration of the applicable illness. A prospective recipient may submit a request for
Voluntary Shared Leave prior to the exhaustion of paid leave as long as there is sufficient medical
evidence available to support the need for leave beyond the employee’s available accumulated leave

60
79




O’b

100124 BCC Meeting

balances. Copies of the Voluntary Shared Leave request form or either certification form may be
obtained by contacting the Human Resources Department.

After review of the request, if determined to meet the eligibility conditions as noted in this policy,
the County Manager or his/her designee can approve the request for Voluntary Shared Leave. In
order to receive shared leave, the employee must sign a written authorization for the County to notify
all County employees of the request for Voluntary Shared Leave. Information released will be th
specifically authorized in writing by the employee and only for the purpose of requesting Jeave
donations from County employees. Such information will include, at a minimum, the reqL@g
employee’s name, an acknowledgement of the need for shared leave, and the expected d%’{[ion of
the absence.
Q

Donation Process — Notice of approved Voluntary Shared Leave requests, along withan electronic
copy of the leave donation form, will be distributed to regular employees Vi%( N by the Human
Resources Department. Each Department Head will be responsible for distribiting a written notice
of the request to any regular employees within their department who d&’}qot have a County email

address. O

When informed of the need for Voluntary Shared Leave, angy@sted employee who meets the

donor eligibility guidelines should forward a completed e donation form to the Human
Resources Department. Leave donation forms must be apRi@yed by the County Manager or his/her
designee prior to the transfer of any leave. A maximu pp\ donation will be established on a case-
by-case basis depending on the expected duration o medical condition and the available leave
balance of the requesting employee. Once reque ling the maximum leave donation have been
approved, no further leave donation forms wiflsde accepted. Under no circumstances will an
employee be allowed to receive more than 1—%180 hours of Voluntary Shared Leave related to the
same qualifying medical event.

Leave Accounting Procedures - T an Resources Department will compile a list of approved
leave donations and will send a % to Payroll and the requesting employee indicating the number
of Voluntary Shared leave which have been donated. Following the order in which the
donation forms were recag the applicable annual leave will be transferred from the donor’s
accumulated balance jn% recipient’s sick leave balance on an as needed basis, through the bi-

weekly payroll proceXsN\Withdrawals from the recipient’s leave account shall be charged according
to normal sick le licies and procedures.

If an emplﬁgﬂilizes all Voluntary Shared Leave but finds it necessary to extend the period of

absence que~to the same condition for which the original request was granted, he/she may make
additi equests for Voluntary Shared Leave provided the maximum of 1040 hours was not
exc with any prior requests. Any additional requests should be submitted in writing to the

an Resources Department which will then follow distribution guidelines as noted in this policy.

the event that an employee is able to return to work earlier than expected, applicable donors will

be informed in a timely manner of any unused / unneeded shared leave donations. If a recipient

employee separates from the County due to resignation, death, termination or retirement,
participation in the shared leave program shall end immediately.

61

o

N

80




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION 16. FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

Watauga County shall grant up to twelve (12) weeks (or under certain circumstances twenty-six (26) weeks),
paid or unpaid, of family and medical leave to eligible employees in accordance with the Family and Medical
Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) and as amended in 2008 and 2010. Eligible employees are those who have at
least twelve (12) months of cumulative service with Watauga County and who and have worked for at lea
1250 hours in the preceding twelve (12) months. An eligible employee is limited to a combined total of 2
workweeks of leave for any FMLA-qualifying reason during a twelve-month period.

A Eligible employees may take up to 12 workweeks of leave during a twelve-month perifml/»éasured
forward from the date an employee's first FMLA leave begins for the following reasg

1. To care for the employee’s child upon birth or upon placement for amq or foster care
provided the leave is taken within a 12-month period following the bir placement of the
child; Husbands and wives employed by Watauga County are limited to a combined total of
twelve (12) weeks leave under FMLA for the birth of a child, adopti placement of a child in
foster care;

2. To care for the employee’s parent, spouse or child with a 36&5 health condition; or

employee is on active military duty, or has been ied of an impending call to active duty
status, in support of a contingency operatlon

3. For any qualifying exigency arising out of the 1@& t the spouse, child, or parent of the

A qualifying exigency is defined as any c&@qmlowmg

b. Military ceremonies and , as well as support, family-assistance or information
programs related to a serv, ,gg ember’s active duty or call to active duty status;

c. Providing urgent, im e@n childcare or arranging for alternative childcare for the children
of service membe%se@r called to active duty

d. Attending school d\daycare meetings relating to the child of a service member on or called
to active duty

e. Making fin@ | or legal arrangements related to a service member’s active duty status or
call to @duty; or

f. Post-défloyment activities for a period of ninety days after the termination or the service
ergiyer’s active duty status.

a. Deployment of a service mem bgr ith seven or fewer days’ notice;

\@n the employee is unable to work because of the employee's own serious health condition.

(™A serious health condition means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition

O(OQ that involves:

a. Inpatient care (i.e. an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical-care
QQ facility, including any period of incapacity (i.e. inability to work, attend school, or perform

\} other regular daily activities) or subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care;
®® b. Continuing treatment by a health care provider, which includes:
N i. A period of incapacity lasting more than three consecutive, full calendar days, and
any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition, that
also includes:

62

‘bQ

N

81




7

S
e

100124 BCC Meeting

e treatment two or more times by or under the supervision of a health care
provider (i.e. in-person visits, the first within 7 days and both within 30 days of
the first day or incapacity); or

e one treatment by a health care provider (i.e. an in-person visit within 7 days of
the first day of incapacity) with a continuing regimen of treatment (e.g.
prescription medication, physical therapy); or

ii. Any period of incapacity related to pregnancy or for prenatal care. A visit to tléj .

health care provider is not necessary for each absence;

c. Any period of incapacity or treatment for a chronic serious health condition which co
over an extended period of time, requires periodic visits (at least twice a year) (bghealth
care provider, and may involve occasional episodes of incapacity. A visit t@i@ﬂlth care
provider is not necessary for each absence; QK

d. A period of incapacity that is permanent or long term due to a condition,for which treatment
may not be effective. Only supervision by a health care provider i;\ lired, rather than
active treatment; or

e. Any absences to receive multiple treatment for restorative sur or for a condition that
would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than thre if not treated.

If the serious health condition results from an on-the-joh iﬁ}@ or illness, the employer shall
designate that the employee’s twelve (12) week entitleme@under the FMLA runs concurrently
with workers’ compensation leave. \Q)

B. An eligible employee who is the spouse, child, par%é next of kin of a covered service member
may take up to 26 workweeks of leave during a e-month period, measured forward from the
date an employee's first FMLA leave begins, t €a#8 for the service member in the event that he/she
is recovering from a serious illness or inju ined in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed
Forces. Husbands and wives employe atauga County are limited to a combined total of
twenty-six (26) weeks leave under FM or Servicemember Family Leave.

The request for family and medical le \?ust be made in advance and in-person or in writing by the

employee and approved by the Depar Head. The Department Head will then forward the request to the

Human Resources Department fon%p( val by the County Manager or his/her designee. The employee must

provide the County at least 30 dgys’ hotice of their intent to take leave unless the FMLA qualifying condition

is a sudden one. When t \ d for leave is unforeseeable, the employee must give notice as soon as
practicable, ordinarily Wit@/o business days of when the employee learns of the need for leave. Failure to
comply with notice req@e ents may result in delay or denial of leave.

Employees requ tiﬁ?Teave shall be required to provide medical certification of the serious health condition;

the qualifyin@ncy; or the serious injury or illness of a covered service member as soon as possible but

not later th calendar days from the date the request is made. The certification from the employee’s,
family W@r’s or service member’s physician shall include the date when the condition began, its expected
durati(m lagnosis, and brief statement of treatment. For the employee’s own health condition, it shall state
tm? employee is unable to perform the essential functions of their position. The County may deny leave

t ployees who do not provide proper medical certification. The County may require a second or third

inion (at the County’s expense) and periodic re-certification of the serious health condition when FMLA is
eing utilized due to an employee’s or family member’s serious health condition. Second and third opinions
and recertification are not permitted for Servicemember Family Leave or in the event of a qualifying
exigency. Watauga County’s Human Resources Department may contact the certifying provider to
authenticate or clarify a medical certification of a serious injury or illness. In certain circumstances, the

County may also contact the individual or entity named in a certification of leave for a qualifying exigency.

63

N
L

82




)

N

*

N
e

100124 BCC Meeting

Employees taking leave under FMLA are entitled to receive health insurance benefits during the leave at the
same level and terms of coverage as if they had been working throughout the leave. If applicable, dependent
health coverage premiums will be the responsibility of the employee. An employee failing to return to work,
for reasons other than a continued serious health condition or reduction in force, may be required to
reimburse the County for payments of the employee’s health insurance premiums during the FMLA leave

period. ODQ

taking leave without pay. An employee taking leave for the birth of a child may use sick leave for the

of actual disability, based on medical certification. The employee shall then use cation
leave for the remainder of the 12-week period before using leave without pay. Comp ti ould be

Employees are required to exhaust accrued sick—leave; comp time, sick leave and vacation leave prg@w’g’)

exhausted prior to using accrued sick or vacation leave.

Employees may take FMLA leave intermittently, which means taking leave in blocks f@@e, or by reducing
their normal work schedule whenever medically necessary to care for a seriously ill famNy member; because
the employee is seriously ill and unable to work; or due to the requirements of a qigtifying exigency. If an
employee is utilizing intermittent leave due to planned medical treatment: employee must make a
reasonable effort to schedule the treatments so as not to disrupt County opgratidns. In addition, employees
must notify the County any time an absence occurs for a reason for whic LA leave was previously taken
or certified. Use of intermittent leave for the birth and care of a child, %for placement for adoption or foster
care, is subject to the County’s approval. \Q)

The County may require an employee on FMLA to report pedgdically on their status, and intent to return to
work. The employee must notify their supervisor immes of the need to request an extension of the
leave. An employee who fails to report at the expiratiop @02 leave of absence shall be considered dismissed
and so noted in the employee’s personnel file, unles xtension has been requested and approved two (2)
weeks prior to leave expiration, when reasonabl ible. Leave extension requests must be submitted to
the Department Head and forwarded, with a (rzg%n; endation on the approval/denial of the additional leave,

to the County Manager for his/her final det tion. Standard County practice will be to approve leave
extension requests only in situations wh additional leave will promote recovery and the capability of
the employee to return to their regular gellluties. The general guideline for leave extensions will be no more
than two additional weeks of leav fhg into consideration the specific details of each individual situation
and the qualifying event necgsgitating the leave, before a final decision is made, however, the County
Manager may, in the exercis 1s/her discretion, extend the leave period further. Employees returning to
work from family medical e due to their own serious health condition will be required to obtain medical
certification from a h% are provider stating they are able to perform the essential functions of their
in

position prior to re to work.
Watauga Cou st reinstate an employee returning from FMLA leave to the same or equivalent position
with equiv ay, benefits and other employment terms and conditions provided they are able to perform

all of the-&ential functions of the position. If the employee is unable to perform an essential function of
their wg;ﬁus position or of an equivalent position because of a physical or mental condition, the employee
igh

h t to restoration to another position under the FMLA. If the employee’s position was eliminated
cﬁiihg a reduction in force, the employee may not be afforded reinstatement provided the dismissal would

@ave been affected had the employee not taken a leave of absence.

For more information regarding employee rights under the FMLA, employees may also refer to Appendix E,
the U.S. Department of Labor’s Employee Rights and Responsibilities Under the FMLA.

64

N

83




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTION 17. LEAVE WITHOUT PAY

The Department Head with the approval of the County Manager or his/her designee shall make the decision to
grant leave without pay. Factors to be considered are necessity, duration of leave, workload, and other factors
in the best interest of the County. Leave without pay may be granted to employees who have exhausted all
other forms of leave while on FMLA, do not qualify for leave under Family and Medical Leave Act of 199
or to employees for reasons not covered by the Family Medical Leave Act.

A. Leave Without Pay Procedures @

1. Request for leave without pay must be made in writing prior to the anticipated (l/
2. Accumulated comp time and vacation leave must be exhausted before Ie@swithout pay may

be requested.

3. Accumulated sick leave must be exhausted before leave without C%éky be granted in cases of
illness.

?[éd leave without pay status shall
which they are paid less than 75%

B. Employee Benefits — An employee who requests and is g
become ineligible to accrue leave beginning the first pay per
of their regular work schedule. An employee on leave out pay status for a reason other than
Family Medical Leave or Worker’s Compensation be responsible for the total insurance
premium for any insurance programs they may, to continue after two (2) consecutive pay
periods in which they are paid less than 75% of tigels regular work schedule.

C. Employee Responsibility: - The employ '@bligated to return to duty within or at the end of the
time determined appropriate by the Cquriy Manager or his/her designee. Upon returning to duty
after being on leave without pay, the oyee shall be entitled to return to the same position held at
the time leave was granted or to o like classification, seniority and pay. If the employee decides
not to return to work, the Dep t Head shall be notified immediately. An employee who fails to
report at the expiration g\ ve of absence shall be considered dismissed and so noted in the
employee’s personnel filg, Bnless an extension has been requested and approved two (2) weeks prior
to leave expiration, WK asonably possible.

o

| SECTION 18. WORK@Q:OMPENSAHON LEAVE

All employees m}-ible for Workers' Compensation coverage for any job-related injury. Any employee
who is injurgd e job must promptly report the injury to their immediate supervisor/Department Head and

to Human urces . Failure to do so may result in a claim being denied. For non-
emergen juries treatment should be sought with FastMed Urgent Care, or the local Urgent Care Facility
ga County, as directed by Human Resources. dectors—on-the-County’s\Workers™ Compensation
ist. For emergencies, treatment must be provided by the Watauga Medical Center’s Emergency
rtment Reem. All job-related accidents involving vehicles or equipment; creating damage to County or
rsonal property; or resulting in injury, in which the employee may have contributed to the cause, require an
\Q employee drug and alcohol screening to be performed immediately following the incident. Job-related
incidents resulting in exposure to potentially infectious materials should report to the Appalachian District
Health Department for initial treatment as well as any on-going care required. An employee having an
adverse reaction to a smahpex vaccination received as an employment condition of the County will be
covered under the County’s Workers’ Compensation Policy.

65

N

84




N

)

100124 BCC Meeting

When an employee is injured on the job as a result of a compensable accident or occupational illness and
loses time from work while seeking medical attention due to the injury, the employee shall not be charged
leave for time lost from work on the day of the injury. Employees are expected to return to work unless the
treating physician indicates the employee must go home for the day. A written statement must be obtained
from the treating physician if the employee cannot return to work. In situations where the employee cannot |
return to work on the day of the injury, the employee will use accrued leave for normal working hours arﬂ:) .
must provide a release note from the doctor before returning to duty.

compensation leave and receive the worker's compensation weekly benefits after the required wajting period.
The employee may elect-to-take use comp time, sick or vacation leave during the required V\% period, ef
may-electto-go-on-worker's—compensation-teave-with-ne and would not be on leave withadt pay for the
required waiting period, unless all other accrued leave has been exhausted. Onc ‘iployee begins
drawing worker's compensation pay, leave will not be accrued and the employee wilN not be allowed to
receive pay for comp time, vacation or sick leave in addition to worker's compengsdation payments. Insurance
already provided by Watauga County to an employee will continue to be tded during the period of
worker's compensation leave. Upon reinstatement, an employee's salary wi omputed on the basis of the
last salary earned plus any cost of living adjustment to which the emplowgiould have been entitled during
the disability covered by worker's compensation. @6

Temporary employees injured on the job will be placed on | \without pay status and will receive all
benefits for which they may be adjudged eligible under the ’s Compensation Act. Refer to Section 14
of this Article for FMLA requirements. C\)Q

If the injury results in additional time away from work, the employee will be placed gjb(

the employee’s twelve (12) week entitleme der the FMLA runs concurrently with workers’

compensation leave. Q
QO

| SECTION19. MILITARY LEAVE o\
\ "4

If the serious health condition results from an on-i?@ injury or illness, the employer shall designate that

Classified employees who are e}%;rs of the National Guard or Armed Forces Reserve will be allowed
fifteen (15) work-days of mi training or active duty leave with full pay per calendar year. If such
military duty is required d this fifteen (15) workday period, the employee shall be eligible to take
accumulated vacation Q) or be placed in a leave without pay status. On rare occasions due to annual
training being schedulet\on a federal fiscal year basis, an employee may be required to attend two periods of
training in one ¢ Ie%r year. For this purpose, only, an employee shall be granted an additional ten days of
military leave dgiNng the same calendar year. If such duty is required beyond these ten workdays, the
employee s (e eligible to take accumulated vacation leave or be placed in a leave without pay status, and
the provisign>of that leave shall apply.

An Vﬁ)yee on leave without pay will be responsible for all insurance premium payments and dependent

vgrdge. Upon return to work, the employee must re-enroll on the County's insurance coverage. Classified

mployees who are guardsmen and reservists have all job rights specified in the Veterans' Reemployment

. Q ights law. Also, in accordance with the Veterans' Reemployment Rights Law, reinstated veterans will be
é\} paid at their prior salary plus any adjustments made to the Position Classification Plan.

Regular part-time employees shall receive fifteen (15) workdays of military training or active duty leave per
calendar year with pay based on their average workday.

66

N
L

85




100124 BCC Meeting

Reinstatement Following Military Service — An employee called to extended active duty with the United
States military forces, who does not volunteer for service beyond the period for which called, shall be
reinstated with full benefits provided the employee:

A Applies for reinstatement within ninety days after the release from military service; and Q
B. Is able to perform the duties of the former position or similar position; or (,5(.5
C. Is unable to perform the duties of the former position or a similar position due to disability sus@d

as a result of military service, but is able to perform the duties of another available p05|t inth

service of the County. In this case the employee shall be employed in such other posti as will
provide the nearest approximation of the seniority, status, and pay which the em otherwise

would have been provided, if available.
,{O -

| SECTION 20. CIVIL LEAVE

o
All County employees called for jury duty or as witnesses in any civil or cri@al legal proceeding will be
entitled to their regular pay during such duty. When a County employee\o @@pnds court as a required part of

his official duties, no leave is required. Regular employees will conti accrue benefits and leave while
on civil leave.

The employee may keep fees and travel allowances received fi ry or witness duty in addition to regular
compensation; except, that employees must turn over to @ounty any witness fees or travel allowance

awarded by the court for court appearances in connection official duties.
)
SECTION 21. EDUCATIONAL LEAVE op

A leave of absence at full or part pay durm?g ar working hours may be granted to an employee upon the
recommendation of the supervising De t Head, and with the approval of the County Manager or
his/her designee, to permit an empl @) take courses of study which will better equip him/her to perform
his/her duties.

the costs of tuition, fees structional materials for an employee on educational leave. In addition, the
County may assume s@w osts for an employee who is pursuing educational courses related to their job
outside of County king hours. The County's assumption of costs will be made only upon the successful
completion of t atlonal course. A passing grade of "C" or better is required for undergraduate work
and a passin @ of "B" or better is required for graduate work.

When a course of study o@ﬁg program is directly related to an employee's job, the County may assume

A regul ployee may be granted a leave of absence without pay for up to one (1) year pending approval
of the nty Manager or his/her designee. This leave will be used for continuation of education, or special
\/@@Hat will permit the County to benefit by the experience gained or work performed.

n employee must exhaust comp time and vacation leave before going on leave without pay. While
\30 exhausting vacation leave, the employee will continue to be in a leave-earning status, be eligible for any
adjustments made to the position classification pay plan, be eligible to take sick leave, be entitled to holidays,
and be eligible for merit increases or time-in-service pay increases. An employee will retain all unused sick
leave while on leave without pay. Employees on leave without pay shall not earn leave of any kind.

67

86




100124 BCC Meeting

When the employee’s vacation leave is exhausted, the employee is responsible for insurance coverage
premium payments to continue on the County’s group plan. If the employee chooses to discontinue

insurance coverage, the employee will be terminated from the policy and be reinstated upon returning to ,&
work, effective the first day of the month following their return, without an additional waiting period. The Q\
employee will be subject to the insurance pre-existing clause upon reinstatement. Q

The employee is obligated to return to duty within or at the end of the leave period. If the employee decid@j .
not to return to work, they shall immediately notify their supervisor. Upon returning to work, after beipgson
leave without pay, the employee shall be entitled to return to a comparable position, provided fun@s
available. An employee who fails to report at the expiration of a leave of absence shall be _c@wysidéred

dismissed and so noted in the employee’s personnel file, unless an extension has been ted and
approved two (2) weeks prior to leave expiration. q/
Vi
SECTION 22. BREAKS AR° |
.

It is the policy of Watauga County that there are no authorized breaks, other t C}fh, during the workday.
The Board of Commissioners recognizes that certain interruptions in the dail@hedule are necessary. It is
understood that absences from the workstation shall be allowed only to gg,gxtent that they do not interrupt
service to the public and the smooth flow of work. Employees and Depgrtiwent Heads will be responsible for

service and work flow in their jobs and departments respectively. uation of job performance will be
based in part on proper attention to these factors. Occasional em breaks of twenty (20) minutes or less
are not required to be recorded on employee timesheets, b not to become a standard part of the

employee’s regular workday. C\JQQ)
)
)
Q.
O
(&\
\2@
.\0

N
N\

68
87




)

N

@ A

100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE VIII: SEPARATION, DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND
REINSTATEMENT

| SECTION 1. TYPES OF SEPARATION |

All separations of employees from positions with Watauga County will be designated as one of tl@jo
following: resignation, reduction in force, disability, death, retirement or dismissal.

To the extent possible, all regular employees separating from employment with the County will ebsked to
participate in an exit interview with Human Resources at-the Personnel-Office at the time of thes aration.
Any County property in the employee's possession shall be returned to the County prior to se

Z
SECTION 2. RESIGNATION AD° |

g

A minimum of two (2) weeks’ notice is expected of all resigning personnel mﬁ,l\bepartment Heads who
shall give a notice of thirty (30) days. Such notice shall be given to the Ddpartment Head (or in case of
Department Heads, to the County Manager or his/her designee, angd(Qppropriate governing body if
applicable). An employee who fails to provide proper notice may forfe@a ment of accrued vacation leave.

Three consecutive days of absence without contacting the i r@ea{e supervisor or Department Head is
considered to be a voluntary resignation. Q)%

Sick leave will only be approved during the final two \r@ of a notice with a physician’s certification or
comparable documentation.
Q9

SECTION 3. REDUCTION IN FORCE ,\‘

« N2
. < o
In the event that a reduction in force es necessary, consideration will be given to the level of each
employee's work performance, the r their service and seniority in determining those employees to be
oi

retained. Classified employees wig(are laid off because of a reduction in force will be given at least a thirty
(30) day notice of anticipate . No regular employee shall be separated while there are temporary,
emergency or probationarxé&nloyees serving in the same class in the department, unless the regular
employee is not willi @ ansfer to the position held by the temporary, emergency or probationary
employee or does not &sess the required knowledge and skills for the specific position.

\—d
| SECTION4. RPWSTATEMENT

reinst ithin one (1) year of the date of separation with the approval of the County Manager or his/her

An emplg@\Nho resigns while in good standing or who is separated because of a reduction in force may be
d i@ . In the case of Competitive Service Employees, the State Personnel Act shall take precedence.

he salary of a regular employee who has been reinstated within one year after separation from the County is

@ xed as follows:

When an employee is reinstated to a position in the same salary grade as the one occupied upon
separation, their salary shall be at the same salary level paid at the time of separation.

69

Q

88




100124 BCC Meeting

B. When an employee is reinstated to a position, their salary shall be set at a salary level that most
closely corresponds to their salary upon separation. However, their salary shall not be less than that
paid at the time of separation, or the minimum salary of the position grade.

An employee who is reinstated within one (1) year shall be credited with previously accrued sick leave. Q

o

SECTION 5. DISABILITY Q’.

of physical or mental impairment. The employee or the County may initiate action for disabilit ration,
but in all cases, consideration for disability separation shall be supported by medical evidenc tified by
a competent physician. The County may require a physical and/or mental examination at it ense and by
a physician of its choice. Before an employee is separated for disability, a reasonable e shall be made to
locate alternative positions within the County's services for which the employee maN suited. Watauga
County will endeavor to make all reasonable accommodations for disabled individu(I"s‘in accordance with the

An employee may be separated for disability when the employee cannot perform the required dutie; b@e

Americans with Disabilities Act. O()
| SECTION6. DEATH \O
All compensation due in accordance with Article VI, Section 9 ¢ pollcy will be paid to the estate of a
deceased employee. The date of death shall be recorded as th ration date for computing compensation
due.
20
SECTION 7. RETIREMENT O,U

When an employee meets the conditions se fgh under the provisions of the North Carolina Local
Governmental Employee’s Retirement Syste{\ y may elect to retire and receive all benefits earned under
the retirement plan. K

>

SECTION 8. DISCIPLINARY A
itten warnings, suspensions and dismissals and are taken only for cause
against employees whg e standards of conduct, abuse attendance or work rules, fail to satisfactorily

discharge the duties ofNgheir positions, or otherwise engage in serious job performance or personal conduct
actions which are il{@sistent with efficient public service or which bring discredit upon the County.

Disciplinary actions inclu

Disciplinar shall be imposed by an employee's Department Head, with the approval of the County
Manager er designee, or action may be imposed directly by the County Manager or his/her designee.
The Human Resources Director shall maintain personnel records of the various types of
mlsc%‘anct or poor work performance that occur and a statement of the disciplinary action taken.

A@ Types of Actions —

\}Q 1. Written Warning — A written warning is a formal written reprimand to the employee from the
%) employee's supervisor describing the way in which the employee's personal conduct or work
performance has failed to meet prescribed standards. The written warning will specify
corrective action, and it will warn the employee that repeated offenses will lead to sterner
measures, including possible dismissal. The employee will be informed that a copy of the

70
89




100124 BCC Meeting

written warning will be placed in their personnel file. Upon receiving two written warnings

sterner disciplinary actions may be taken up to or including suspension.

2. Suspension — Suspension is the temporary removal of an employee from duty. Suspensions are Qq\&
authorized only with the concurrence of the County Manager or his/her designee. Employees Q
placed on Non-Disciplinary or Disciplinary Suspension shall be given a written summary giving
the circumstances and facts leading to the suspension. One copy of the summary shall kf~ «
delivered to the employee in-person or by certified mail and one copy shall be filed ip=the
employee's personnel file. @

a. Non-Disciplinary/Investigatory Suspension (General County Employees) — Duri bSounty
personnel investigation, or an investigation, hearing or trial of a County em on any
criminal charge, or during the course of a civil action involving a loyee, the
Department Head, with the approval of the County Manager or hig/er designee may
suspend the employee with or without pay for the duration of therp( eeding as a non-
disciplinary action. However, the investigation, hearing, trial, orygivil action must involve
matters that may form the basis for disciplinary suspension, n or dismissal in order
for the non-disciplinary suspension to be allowed. @@)

If the suspension is terminated with full reinstatement ﬁ& employee one of the following
must occur: 1) full recovery of pay and efits for the period of non-
disciplinary/investigatory suspension or 2) reinst ent with no less than three (3) days’
pay deducted from their salary based upon ement's determination of the degree to
which the employee was responsible for, or g@@)tfibuted to the reasons for suspension.

b. Non-Disciplinary/Investigatory Suspen Competitive Service Employees) — Investigatory
suspension with pay may be usewovide time to investigate, establish facts and reach a
decision concerning an employee'§status in those cases where it is determined the employee
shall not continue to work g a decision. Investigatory suspension with pay may be
appropriately used to also, e time to schedule and conduct the pre-dismissal conference
required for competiti@ service employees.  Also, management may elect to use
investigatory suspers@h 1n order to avoid undue disruption of work or to protect the safety
of persons or probz%/. An investigatory suspension with pay shall not exceed thirty (30)

calendar day;.\&mwever, an agency may, in the exercise of its discretion, extend the period

of investi suspension with pay beyond the thirty (30) day limit. The employee must

be inf n writing of the extension, the length of the extension, the specific reasons for

the exdeQision and their right of appeal. If no action has been taken by management by the

en the additional thirty (30) calendar days, and no extension has been made, one of the

lowing must occur: (1) reinstatement of the employee; (2) appropriate disciplinary action

\ sed on the results of the investigation; or (3) reinstatement of the employee with up to
Q\ three (3) days deducted from their pay. This decision will be based upon management's
O determination of the degree to which the employee was responsible for, or contributed to the

(§ reasons for suspension.

O Investigatory suspension of an employee shall not be used for the purpose of delaying an
. QQ administrative decision on an employee's work status pending the resolution of a civil or
\} criminal court matter involving the employee.

)

@ c. Disciplinary Suspension — Suspension without pay may also be imposed as a disciplinary
measure. An employee may be suspended without notice by the Department Head with
concurrence of the County Manager or his/her designee for causes related to personal

71
90




100124 BCC Meeting

misconduct in order to avoid undue disruption of work, to protect the safety of persons or
property, or for other serious reasons. When a Department Head suspends an employee,
they shall tell the employee to leave County property at once and remain away until further ,&

notice. Q N

3. Demotion - The reassignment of a classified employee for disciplinary reasons, to a position or ODQ
classification having a lower salary grade than the employee’s current position or classificatio(p’ .
Disciplinary demotions are authorized only with the concurrence of the County ManageR0
his/her designee for disciplinary actions based on work performance. Employees w}@k
demoted shall be given a written summary giving the circumstances and facts Ieadiw‘to he
demotion. One copy of the summary shall be delivered to the employee in-person ertified
mail and one copy shall be filed in the employee’s personnel file. q/

4. Dismissal - Dismissal is the permanent removal of an employee from dut ,@reby ending their
employment with the County. This is the most severe disciplinary action that may be imposed

by the County. c’)\;

a. Dismissal (General County Employees) — All dismissals o eral County employees will
be preceded by suspension with or without pay for w8t/less than three days pending
completion of an investigation by the appointing auff®yity or County Manager or his/her
designee. If the appointing authority or County Meu@ger or his/her designee determines that
a dismissal action is appropriate, such dismissa wm e effective at the end of the suspension
period. Prior to dismissal, the employee mu iven an opportunity to answer the charges
against him/her; however, an employe be suspended without warning for cause
relating to their personal misconduct. i a*dismissal is made following the opportunity to
answer charges, a written summar ing the circumstances and facts leading to the
dismissal shall be prepared. A f the summary shall be delivered to the employee by
certified mail and one copy sh@ filed in the employee’s personnel file.

b. Dismissal (Competitive,‘ﬁ}rvice Employees) — All dismissals of Competitive Service
Employees shall be i @ordance with Article 1 and Article 11, Personnel Policies for Local
Government Em subject to the State Personnel Act. The County Manager or his/her
designee and‘trq{ man Resources Persennel Office shall be provided with copies of all
documents p ing to dismissal action. Employees shall also be provided with copies of
Acrticle 1 @rticle 11, Personnel Policies for Local Government Employees regarding
dismiﬁ. rior to dismissal, the employee must be given an opportunity to answer the
chgges against him/her. If a dismissal is made following the opportunity to answer charges,

ten summary giving the circumstances and facts leading to the dismissal shall be
pared. A copy of the summary shall be delivered to the employee by certified mail and

\\ ne copy shall be filed in the employee's personnel file.

(\C) c. Dismissal (Temporary, Non-regular and Probationary Employees) — Temporary, non-regular
(b and probationary employees serve at the pleasure of the County; as such they may be

Q dismissed by the County without cause. Upon recommendation of the Department Head and
Q with the approval of the County Manager or his/her designee, they may be dismissed at any

@ time without further notice and without any hearing or right of appeal.
@Q B. Disciplinary Actions Based on Personal Misconduct — Disciplinary actions based on personal
M misconduct shall be imposed only after all evidence is weighed, and the disciplining official shall, in

deciding the nature of the action to be taken, consider among other things, the following factors: the
seriousness of the misconduct involved; the effect of the misconduct involved; the employee's work

72
91




100124 BCC Meeting

record; the employee's disciplinary record, including but not limited to, the previous occurrence of
the same or similar infractions; the employee's knowledge of the rules; and the reasons behind the
employee's misconduct.

Some examples of the types of personal misconduct that are cause for disciplinary action are stated

below, but these in no way are the only potential misconduct issues that can result in dismissal and ODQ

does not limit the County in taking necessary action. The examples include but are not limited to: (,5 .

1. Conduct for which no reasonable person should expect to receive prior warning; or @
2. Job-related conduct which constitutes violation of state or federal law; or (l/b‘

3. Improper or unauthorized use or abuse of paid leave. Q

4

Willful or negligent violation of this manual, policies and procedures, depar%ritﬁk)erating rules
or related directives, or other known or written work rules; or r\

o

Conduct that discredits the employee or County, or willful misreprese&i.on of the County.

Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor, or the entry of a plea of " ntest" to either, the nature
of which reflects the possibility of serious consequences rela,t\%to the continued assignment or

employment of the employee.
7. Violation or neglect of safety rules, or contributing to a@us working conditions.
8. Any act or conduct that is discriminatory in natur@&/ard another person's race, creed, color,

national origin, sex (including sexual harassmen@ e, religious beliefs, political affiliations or
handicap (See Article IV, Section 1). C‘JQ

9. Fraud in securing employment. &

10. Misuse of County funds or falsifica@v?o)f County records (including timesheets) for personal
profit or to grant special privileges@ npaid County taxes after remediation options provided.

11. Violation of the Alcohol ag Q’ontrolled Substance Abuse Policy, except for medication
prescribed to an employee/2aken within the limits set by a physician so long as medically

necessary. \g\
12. Driving under the‘{g’ nce of alcohol or drugs while on duty; suspension of driver's license
where job duties re driving.

13. Careless, t or improper use of County equipment or property, including removal or
private useé)Qr use involving damage or unreasonable risk of damage to property.

14. Una th%ied release of confidential information or official records.
15. @ance of gifts in exchange for "favors" or "influence."
@olaﬁon of political activity restrictions.
Q& . Discourteous or insubordinate treatment of the public or other County employees or officials.

(,C) Disciplinary Actions Based on Work Performance — Cause for disciplinary action based on work
performance includes, but is not limited to:

1. Inefficiency, incompetence, negligence or insubordination in the performance of duties,
including failure to perform assigned tasks or training, or failure to discharge duties in a prompt,
courteous and reasonable manner.

73

92

N




)

N

)

100124 BCC Meeting

2. Refusal or inability to improve job performance in accordance with written or verbal direction

after a specified period of time.
Refusal to obey reasonable instructions from supervisor and/or Department Head.

N

4. Unexcused absence without leave; habitual improper use of leave privileges; failure to maintain QQ
regular hours or excessive absenteeism.

5. Discourteous or insubordinate treatment of the public or other employees and County officials. (Q ¢

6. Performance of personal work or other outside activities on County time.

D. Disciplinary Procedures — A regular employee whose work performance or persona uct is
unsatisfactory shall be given a written warning by their supervisor. If the unsatisfactor @brmance
continues over a specified period of time, the employee shall be given a second w t%arning by
their supervisor. The employee must be given a statement noting thespecific cause for
dissatisfaction, what he must do to make his work performance or personal ¢ t“satisfactory, the
time limits for such improvements, and the consequences of continugd faflure to meet work
performance or personal conduct requirements. The employee will alsoévfnformed that a written
statement summarizing the action shall be placed in their pers file by their immediate
supervisor. If the employee fails to meet the work performance gk personal conduct requirements
within the specified time period, the Department Head, with the oval of the County Manager or
his/her designee, may suspend the employee. Continued @Jre to meet work performance or
personal conduct standards may result in the emplo& eing demoted or dismissed by the
Department Head, with the approval of the Coun nager or his/her designee. Prior to
suspension, demotion or dismissal, the employee mu&given an opportunity to answer the charges
against him/her; however, an employee may be s ded without warning for cause relating to their
personal misconduct. )

At the time an employee is suspendeo@'emoted or dismissed, he/she shall be given a written
statement of the charges or reasons foNthe action and told that they may appeal the disciplinary
action taken against him/her. An e may be suspended pending an appeal hearing.

E. Disciplinary Actions Toward artment Heads — Disciplinary actions that may result in demotion
or dismissal involving De@ftment Heads will be initiated by the County Manager or his/her
designee and acted upo( by the Board of County Commissioners. Prior to the Board's action, the
Department Head yy T provided the opportunity to present their case and answer the charges
against them. 3 rd of County Commissioners’ decision will be final.

F. Disciplina tions Toward Temporary, Non-Regular and Probationary Employees — Temporary,

non-regudqr ahd probationary employees serve at the pleasure of the County. If such an employee
fails t form satisfactorily, upon recommendation of the Department Head and approval of the
C anager or his/her designee, they shall be demoted or dismissed at any time without further

e and without any hearing or right of appeal.
Sid
&

74
93




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE IX. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

N

It is the County’s policy to encourage employees to freely discuss problems with their supervisors, Q
Department Heads, or others in positions of authority. A grievance is defined as a claim or complaint base gﬁ
upon an event or condition allegedly caused by misinterpretation, unfair application, or lack of establishe

policy pertaining to employment conditions. Supervisors and employees are encouraged to r

differences and to seek and provide clarification of policies and procedures before initiating the grie e

process. (l/

No attorney or other legal representatives will be allowed to participate in the grievance{n%edure.

SECTION 1. PoLICY |

A grievance may involve the following issues: ,\<Q ®
A Alleged safety or health hazards; X_-

B. Unsatisfactory physical facilities, surroundings, materials or equipmer@o

C. Unfair or discriminatory supervisory or disciplinary practices; @)

D. Unjust treatment by fellow workers; 6

E.

Any other inequity relating to conditions of employment. 0\Q)

o~

SECTION 2. COVERAGE s(\‘o

All employees who allege unlawful harassment, @ce in the workplace or discrimination based on race,
color, religion, age, sex, gender, national origin, %ﬂcal affiliation or non-disqualifying condition may file a

grlevance Q

In situations involving separation, disci action, and reinstatement, all regular employees of the County
shall have the right to present a gri in accordance with these procedures except as stated in Article I,
Section 2, and Subsection C of thi??&nance.

KA

| SECTION 3, PROCEDURSO\ |

Every eligible emp hall have the right to present a grievance in accordance with these procedures, free
from interferenc cion, restraint, discrimination, penalty or reprisal. Employees shall be allowed up to
one (1) hour o@m their regular duties to prepare a grievance.

ployee must file a grievance in writing with their immediate supervisor within ten (10)

rking days of the date of the incident giving rise to the grievance. The immediate supervisor

shall meet with the employee within five (5) working days of receipt of the grievance and attempt to

resolve the grievance. The immediate supervisor shall issue a written decision on the grievance no
later than five (5) working days following the meeting.

\Q If the grievance concerns an appeal of a dismissal, it shall be filed directly with the County Manager or

his/her designee who shall request the Personnel Advisory Committee hear the grievance. If the
@ dismissed employee requests to bypass the Personnel Advisory Committee and have the grievance
heard directly by the County Manager, the decision by the County Manger or his designee is final
and will end the grievance procedure.

75

94




100124 BCC Meeting

B. If the employee is dissatisfied with the decision at Step A, the employee may file the grievance in
writing with the Department Head, within five (5) working days of receipt of the immediate
supervisor's decision. The Department Head shall meet with the employee within five (5) working

days of receipt of the grievance, shall review the decision at Step A, and shall make an independent Q
determination on the merits of the grievance. The Department Head shall issue a written decision no Q
later than five working days following the meeting with the employee. 03

the Department Head’s decision, the employee may request a decision directly from the

C. If the employee is dissatisfied with the decision at Step B, within five (5) working days of re(é@%
Manager or his/her designee, or request a hearing before the Personnel Advisory Commifige. The

Personnel Advisory Committee shall follow the procedures set forth in Section 4 of t icle and
recommend a decision to the County Manager or his/her designee. The County M or his/her
e Personnel

Advisory Committee’s recommendation or after the employee’s request for a ion directly from
the County Manger or his designee. The decision by the County Manger or his¥esignee is final and
will end the grievance procedure. .

~©

N\

<O
nty Commissioners, and composed
nd file employees designated by the

designee shall render a written decision within ten (10) working days of recei'ving

SECTION 4. PERSONNEL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

A Personnel Advisory Committee will be established by the Board of
of one County Commissioner, one Department Head and three r
Board of County Commissioners, with authority to hear employ; ievances and make a recommendation to
the appointing authority. Each Personnel Advisory Comimg seat shall also have an alternate member
appointed in the case that the primary Committee Memb unable to participate in the grievance process,
or has a close working or personal relationship with thegg¥eVvant, or any type of conflict of interest that would
prevent the committee member from being impartja). @ employee or the appointing authority may request a
hearing, which shall be transcribed or recorded. W& hearing shall be conducted within fifteen (15) working
days from the date the hearing is requested, gUxing regular working hours of the County. The Personnel
Advisory Committee, the grievant, and an whose alleged conduct is the cause of the complaint shall
have the right to call and cross-examine esses and offer other evidence. The Human Resources Director
or his/her designee ¢hai shall conduct the hearing. The Personnel Advisory Committee
shall submit its recommendation ¥(the County Manager or his/her designee or other appointing authority
within fifteen (15) working dfg{&; the hearing.

I;\\Q

| SECTION5. FINAL 6<CISION ON THE GRIEVANCE |

A Within @ (10) working days of receipt of the recommendation of the Personnel Advisory
Co e, the County Manager or his/her designee, or other appointing authority will inform the
e yee and Department Head, in writing, of the final decision.

B. (bQompetitive Service Employees subject to the jurisdiction of the North Carolina State Personnel
Commission shall have the right to appeal to the State Personnel Commission through the Office of
Administrative Hearings no later than thirty (30) working days after receipt of notice of the

. QQ appointing authority's decision, provided the employee has obtained permanent status in accordance
\} with the rules and regulations of the State Personnel Commission. The decisions of the State
®® Personnel Commission shall be binding in appeals of local employees subject to the State Personnel
N Act if the Commission finds that the employee has been subjected to discrimination or in any case
where a binding decision is required by applicable federal standards. However, in all other local

76
95




100124 BCC Meeting

employee appeals, the decision of the State Personnel Commission shall be advisory to the local
appointing authority.

SECTION 6. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS | Q

The Human Resources Director Personnel-Officer will retain all documentation, records and reports in the Q
employee’s personnel file. These records will be subject to review by the grievant, the employeefp

Department Head, the County Manager or his/her designee or other appointing authority, and the
Commissioners. @

SECTION 7. OTHER REMEDIES PRESERVED ({

%
The existence of the grievance procedure does not preclude any individual from pursum@y other remedies
available under law.

7

96




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE X. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

SECTION 1. INSURANCE BENEFITS |

The County will pay full premium costs for group term life, vison exam, dental and medical health ODQ
insurance programs for classified, full-time regular employees. (,j .

The County will pay one-half of the premium cost for group term life, vison exam, denta@ﬂ
medical health insurance programs for classified, part-time regular employees who se to
participate. Regular part-time (20-30 hours/week) employees must pay the remainin@ -half of
the premium cost as a payroll deduction.

4
Families (dependents and spouses) of the above eligible County employees a#éa‘fered insurance
coverage at group rates at the expense of the employee, upon request aqd, in accordance with
provisions of the insurance contract. The premium costs must be pait@fé payroll deduction and
are deducted one month in advance of insurance effective date.

N
Retiree Insurance Benefits 0\@
A regular County employee’s individual medical, d and/or vision exam benefits may be
extended up to Medicare eligibility age for employ ho retire under the provisions of the Local

Governmental Employees’ Retirement System, eié rough length of service or disability.

If the retiring employee chooses the coverag®, the selection must be made in writing before the
employee’s actual retirement date. Sho, ditional post-retirement medical insurance coverage
be obtained, the County’s plan will b%@e econd payee.

Payments are due the first (1%) ch month and must be received by the Finance Department no
later than the fifteenth (15") of,each month. Failure to make payment by the fifteenth (15) of the
month may result in can n of medical, dental, and/or vision benefits.

Category | Q

For emplo&ge retiring with a minimum of ten (10) years creditable service in the Local
Governr@tal Employees’ Retirement System or the North Carolina Teachers’ and State
Em s’ Retirement System, of which the last five (5) years must be served with Watauga
C ; the employee may elect to maintain coverage and be responsible for the payment of
premium to the County, or in accordance with provisions of the current insurance
ontractor. The premium amount for all categories will be the same rate as the County’s

CJ monthly charge per employee for the group health care plan.

\}Q Category 11
< For Watauga County Employees retiring with a minimum of twenty (20) years creditable
@ service in the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System or the North Carolina
Teachers’” and State Employees’ Retirement System, of which the last ten (10) years must be
served with Watauga County; the employee may elect to maintain coverage and be

78

97




100124 BCC Meeting

responsible for the payment of the premium less the County supplemental amount to
maintain their medical insurance coverage. The County’s monthly supplement amount will
be equal to 50% of the per employee premium monthly charge. Dental and vision exam
benefits may be retained upon payment of the full premium by the retired employee. Q

Category Il o‘bg
For employees retiring with more than twenty (20) years creditable service in the Locgo
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System or the North Carolina Teachers’ and
Employees’ Retirement System, of which the last (10) years must be served with
County; the employee may elect to maintain coverage and be responsible for ilfe) fayment
less the County supplement amount to maintain their medical insurance cove For each
added year of service after twenty (20), the County will pay an additiongl 2.9% of the per

employee premium monthly charge up to a maximum payment of 75%,(1g @ total monthly
premium for 30 years or more of service. (See table below) Dental g

ion exam benefits
may be retained upon payment of the full premium by the retired e

Eligible creditable service in the Local Governmental Employees’ Rg§rement System or the North
Carolina Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System d&s ot include periods of service
breaks or withdrawn service time. \@
The retired employee is expected to enroll for Medi when eligibility by age or length of
disability is obtained. C\)Q
Total Creditable Service Wataug: cuunty Service Amount of County Supplemental
Requirement Koquirement Payment

10 but less than 20 years Not J&¥ than 5 years 100% Retiree Responsibility

20 years or more N@gs than 10 years 50% Supplement

21 years . \\%ﬂess than 10 years 52.5% Supplement

22 years ,‘ Not less than 10 years 55% Supplement

23 years Q\\) Not less than 10 years 57.5% Supplement

24 years N\ ¥ Not less than 10 years 60% Supplement

25 years OV Not less than 10 years 62.5% Supplement

26 years %_\ Not less than 10 years 65% Supplement

27 years N\ Not less than 10 years 67.5% Supplement

28 years 0,\" Not less than 10 years 70% Supplement

29 ye,a}‘s.\' Not less than 10 years 72.5% Supplement

j%\ﬁey S or more Not less than 10 years 75% Supplement
Q’b

;\}Q%ffective 7/1/2024

79
98




100124 BCC

SECTION 2. RETIREMENT BENEFITS |

The County will make retirement benefits available to its regular employees. Such benefits will be made
available through the North Carolina Local Governmental Employee’s Retirement System. All regular

County employees are fully covered by the North Carolina Workers' Compensation
compensation provides coverage to all employees for medical expenses and lost time from woyR~due to work
related injuries or illnesses. Any employee who is injured on the job must promptly repert this injury to the
immediate supervisor, Department Head and Human Resources i .%L?re to do so may
result in the appropriate Worker's Compensation report not being filed in acco%n“ie ith the law, which

may jeopardize an employee’s right to benefits in connection with the injury op~INHess. (See Article VII,
Section 16)

N \
SECTION 4. LONGEVITY COMPENSATION DO
6\ ‘

nefited employees with one month or

Longevity pay is given to regular, full-time and part-ti
more employment with Watauga County. Years of ice are computed as of November 30" of
the current year and based on total eentinuous cr le service under the North Carolina Local

Government Employees' Retirement Systemé Teacher’s and State Employees Retirement

System. Eligible Service time will include : total creditable service within the
NC Retirement Systems, including all I€dacy service and completed service purchases, only
excluding withdrawn service time and in service from the NC Retirement System. with-less

. Pa will process longevity payments based on confirmed total
creditable service calculated fro\rzésion start dates and include additional service purchased only
b

after the first point of notificgt y the employee. Longevity compensation is not a guaranteed
benefit and will only be m%&ontingent upon approval by the Watauga County Commissioners.
Payments will be made @ OWS:

R

6 Length of Service Amount of Payment

1% 1 month but less than 5 years | $100.00
\\ 5 but less than 10 years 1.0% of Annual Salary
C)Q 10 but less than 15 years 1.5% of Annual Salary
(D'Q 15 but less than 20 years 2.0% of Annual Salary
Q 20 but less than 25 years 2.5% of Annual Salary
25 years or more 3.0% of Annual Salary

«

@@6 Effective 07/01/2024

80

employees shall be required to join and contribute the required amount (set by the Retirement System) to the GDQ
Retirement System as a condition of employment. 6 ;
| SECTION 3. WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS (0)) |
SN

Meeting

N

99




100124 BCC Meeting

SECTIONS5. SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT INCOME PLANS AVAILABLE TO LAW ENFORCEMENT

OFFICERS

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan ODQ
All law enforcement officers automatically become a member of the Supplemental Retireme%‘

primary duty of enforcing criminal laws.

Income Plan (401K), on the date of hire, provided the officer has the full power of arrest witE th

Special Separation Allowance (l/b‘

The County provides for a special separation allowance for law enforcement officegazas prescribed
by G.S. 128-21 (11b) and 143-166.42 and subject to the following conditions: y\<0 “

1.

The officer shall have completed 30 or more years of creditable sen('(;e, or have attained 55
years of age and complete five or more years of creditable semce@

xO
Have completed at least five years of continuous se@ce as a law enforcement officer
immediately preceding a service retirement, as def by G.S. 143-166.41(a)(3) and 143-

166.41(b); and 6

Not have attained 62 years of age;

The law enforcement officer, after separatio
County of any new employment, includi

other change of employment status w:tE

employment with the County, notifies the
e nature and extent of the employment, or any
fve (5) days of the new employment or employment
change.

The County shall cease paymen\osbemal separation allowance benefits to any retired law

enforcement officer receiving b

1
2.

3.

upon any of the following:

The recipient’s death; \2\
The last day of the\@mth during which the recipient attains 62 year of age; or

the recipi Q@fst day of employment as a sworn law enforcement officer with any subsequent

federal,_stal§, or local governmental employer, provided that the retiree’s subsequent employer
partici in a government-sponsored retirement system, including without limitation any of
the wing:

0@ North Carolina State Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System;

North Carolina Local Government Employees’ Retirement System;
Federal Employees’ Retirement System;

d. Civil Service Retirement System;

e. Any other state or local governmental retirement system outside the State of North Carolina;
or

f. Foreign governmental retirement systems.

The sole exception to this policy shall be if the recipient returns to work for Watauga County as

a part-time, temporary law enforcement officer at the hourly pay rate established in the part-time
pay and classification system.

81

<

100




100124 BCC Meeting

After termination of special separation allowance payments under this Ordinance, such benefits shall
not reinitiate upon a change in circumstances of the retired employee. ,&

Q\

SECTION 6. OTHER FLEXIBLE BENEFITS

o

Py

*

Additional deductions and benefits may be allowed at the option of the employer. Such deductior@{j
benefits may include, but are not limited to: various supplemental medical insurance policies, (ﬁ){ ife
insurance, retirement death benefit, short and long-term disability, local government credit ymon; direct

deposit, payroll savings, deferred compensation plans, longevity compensation, and the Emp}o@ ssistance
Program.

NO*
ol

82

101




100124 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE XI. PERSONNEL RECORDS AND REPORTS

SECTION 1. PERSONNEL RECORDS MAINTENANCE | Q’\&

The Human Resources Office Persennel-effice will maintain such personnel records as are necessary for the Q
proper administration of the personnel system. Only information that is relevant for personnel admlnlstratl%

shall be maintained in County personnel records.
)
SECTION 2. INFORMATION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC N ~ |
\V
The following information on each County employee is public information: (19
A. Name; r\<9 °
B. Age; X
C. Date of original employment or appointment to County services; O()
D. Current position title; \O
E. Current salary; 6
F. Date and amount of most recent change in salary; QO\Q
G. Date of most recent promotion, demotion, transf% spension, separation, or other change in

position classification; and

H. Office to which the employee is currently assﬁ'.’
Q3
SECTION 3. ACCESS TO PERSONNEL RECQBBS |

As required by G.S. 153A-98, any pers Qay have access to the information listed in Section Two (2) of
this article, for the purpose of ins e@? examination, and copying, during the regular business hours,

subject only to such rules and ations for the safekeeping of public records as the Board of
Commissioners may adopt. UK@request records of disclosure shall be made available to the employee to
whom it pertains. Q

PG N

hed
| SECTION 4. CONFIIﬁ\ITIAL INFORMATION

o

All informatio? @tained in a County employee's personnel file, other than the information listed in Section

Two (2) of rticle, will be maintained as confidential in accordance with the requirement of G.S. 153A-
98 and s?)@) open to public inspection only in the following instances:

A (DQI' he employee or their duly authorized agent may examine all portions of their personnel file, except,

Q 1. letters of reference solicited prior to employment, and
0\3 2. information concerning a medical disability, mental or physical, that a prudent physician would
) not divulge to his patient.
-
B. A licensed physician designated in writing by the employee may examine the employee's medical
record.

83
102




X

@S’J

@ any portion of a confidential personnel file shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall

100124 BCC Meeting

C. A County employee having supervisory authority over another employee may examine all material
in the employee's personnel file. < §
<
D. By order of a court of competent jurisdiction, any person may examine all material in the employee's Q
personnel file.

E. An official of any agency of the State or Federal government, or any political subdivision <e(‘)
State, may inspect any portion of a personnel file when such information is deemed by the
Manager or his/her designee to be necessary and essential to the pursuance of a proper fupgtion of

the inspecting agency, but no information shall be divulged for the purpose of assistin riminal
prosecution of the employee or for the purpose of assisting in an investigation of th oyee's tax
liability.
)
F. Each individual requesting access to confidential information will be requireohb submit satisfactory
proof of identity.
ex
| SECTIONS5. RECORDS OF FORMER EMPLOYEES A
"
The provisions for access to records apply to former employees as t ply to present employees. It is the
County’s policy to give only name, salary and dates of employme reference checks.

| SECTION 6. REMEDIES OF EMPLOYEES OBJECTlNGchIIATERlAL INFILE

An employee who objects to material in their file @(aace in their file a statement relating to the material

they consider to be inaccurate or misleading. employee may seek the removal of such material in
accordance with established grievance proceduQ
.\
SECTION7. PENALTY FOR PERMITPING ACCESS TO CONFIDENTIAL FILE BY UNAUTHORIZED
PERSONS )
K hJ
G.S. 153A-98 provides that b|IC official or employee who knowingly and willfully permits any person

to have access to any co }@ll&ﬂ information contained in an employee personnel file, except as expressly
authorized by the desi ustodian, is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be fined an
amount not to exce%_ (5) hundred dollars ($500.00).

SECTION 8. LTY FOR EXAMINING AND/OR COPYING CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL WITHOUT
AN MXUTHORIZATION

G.S A-98 provides that any person, not specifically authorized to have access to a personnel file
sigrated as confidential, who shall knowingly and willfully examine in its official filing place, remove or

fined in the discretion of the court, but not in excess of five hundred dollars ($500.00).

| SECTION 9. DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS REGULATED

No public official may destroy, sell, loan, or otherwise dispose of any public record, except in accordance
with G.S. 121-5, without the consent of the State Department of Cultural Resources. Whoever unlawfully

84
103




100124 BCC Meeting

removes a public record from the office where it is usually kept, or whoever alters, defaces, mutilates or
destroys it, will be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be fined not less than ten dollars
($10.00), nor more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) as provided in G.S. 132-3.

85

104




100124 BCC Meeting

APPENDIX A: WATAUGA COUNTY POSITION CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN

(Include copy of most recent approved version of the Position Classification Pay Plan on q\&
record with any official copy of the Watauga County Personnel Ordinance requested) Q

86

105




100124 BCC Meeting

APPENDIX B: OBSERVED BEHAVIOR - REASONABLE SUSPICION

Employee:

Name: Q®

Observation:
‘bQ

Date: Time: Location:

1. PRESENCE OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE PAR@:@I’ZNALIA
(Specify): (l/

APPEARANCE: 0O Normal O Flushed O Puncture Marks ‘L
O Disheveled O Bloodshot Eyes O Tremors (0 N
O Profuse Sweating O Runny Nose/Sores O Dry Mouth Symptoms
O Pupils Dilated/Constricted O Inappropriate Wearing @Sunglasses
O Other

3. BEHAVIOR: =

Speech: 0 Normal O Incoherent O Slurred ’&,ilent

O Confused O Slowed O Whisperin%é
O Other: N ‘\\>

Awareness: 0 Normal O Confused O wings [ Euphoria
O Lethargic 0 Paranoid O [gdriented

O Lack of Coordination

O Other: Q~0

4. MOTOR SKILLS: \(\Q’
Balance: O Normal I:ISway@ O Falling [0 Staggering
O Other: N4
Walking & [ Normal - &ySwaying O Arms Raised for Balance
Turning: O Stumbling sQVSI Falling O Reaching for Support
O Other: s )
OTHER OBSERVED A%IONS or BEHAVIOR (Specify):
@\J
N
b4
Witnessed E}§
C) am/pm
@'gnature) (Title) (Date) (Time)
n@ am/pm
@~ (Signature) (Title) (Date) (Time)
@ This document must be prepared and signed by the witnesses within 24 hours of the observed behavior or before the results of the test are

released, whichever is earlier. - 49 CFR 391.99(d)

Return original to Human Resources Persennel Department

87
106



100124 BCC Meeting

APPENDIX C: AUTHORIZATION FOR USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

f'@ SIGNATURES
L ¥ TSN T ORED

N
i i ihle Parson: Date:
Hote+—efSeh: Hate-

mmar and-Print Name in Eull:
RefahRe+Httae-H =t

*® S
Ad@ Sianatura of Child or Parant if neaded:
+HoigRattre-o+HChRHG-oF—areRtH-heeaea:
LAmA~T TroTar -

107



100124 BCC Meeting

APPENDIX D: WATAUGA COUNTY REINSTATEMENT AGREEMENT

I acknowledge my history as a substance abuser. | recognize my obligation to meet the Q®
requirements of the County of Watauga to maintain eligibility for employment. Therefore, | agree Q

to abstain from further substance abuse. Further, | agree, when requested by County officials to .(b

submit to random drug tests for a period of at least five years from: {A-

the date of my reinstatement

I understand that refusal, failure to cooperate with the specimen collection, or a positive findi a
test shall be cause for immediate discharge from employment. Q

I understand and agree to the above terms and conditions of reinstatement ,and ¥ontinued
employment. ,\6 B

Employee: -~
(Please print)

Employee Signature:

Date: . (\Q

Return original to Human, \gr:es Personnel-Office

o

89

108



100124 BCC Meeting

90

109



100124 BCC Meeting

91

110



100124 BCC Meeting

ADOPTED this the day of October, 2024. @
&
by: @

Larry Turnbow, Chaieni?ﬁ

ATTEST: Q/Q
[SEAL] '\<O )

Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board Xo*

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE COUNTY OF WATAUGA

{\
&
’\\0
AS)
Q\‘r
N
D
N
0@
o’bo
5

86
111



100124 BCC Meeting

112



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 6:

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PRESENTATION Q®
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Holly Jones, NCDQOJ, will provide information regarding the North Carolina Departme, ?')
Justice. The presentation is for information only; therefore, no action is required at this tim

™
Qv

113



PROTECTING THE PEOPLE GF NORTH CAROLINA:
An Update for Watauga Cotinty

Holly Jones
Public Protection Section
NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE



100124 BCC Meeting

Attorney General

Josh Stein

115




NCDOJ Mission

The North Carolina Department of Justice protects the people of North Carolina
through its work

* To prevent crime and support law enforcement,
 To safeguard consumers, ang

* To defend the State, its-people, and their constitutional rights.




DOJ Delivers

The North Carolina Department of Justice (NCDOJ)
delivers for North Carolinians:in all 100 counties,

working every day to keep people safe, support law
enforcement, and protect consumers and families.




NCDOJ Update
Funds Won — Watauga County

Opioid settlement: $ 5.5 Miilion

Funds won for Consumer:$ 95,600
Medicaid fraud: $ 688,100

Taxpayer funds won and grants: $ 47,000
Total Funds returned: $ 6.3 Million




NCDOJ Update
L aw Enforcement — Watauga County

e Crime lab evidence submitted: 1690
e | aw enforcement certifications: 302




NCDOJ Update Sexual Assault Kit Backlog

Sexual Assault Kits Tested

Watauga Sheriff (25), ASU Police (11); Boone PD (9)
ncdo|.gov/testthekits




How DOJ Delivers for You

v
TOTAL FUNDS SEXUAL (19 LAW LAW
WON ASSAULT Kl@ﬂ ENFORCEMENT ENFORCEMENT

TESTED 7\ OFFICER TRAININGS
DOJ DELIVERS $6-3M

X, CERTIFICATIONS
4444 7,906

302
Watauga County ssoc TounsHrs g
| N

Bald Mountain, Beaverda ech Mountain, Blowing Rock, Blue Ridge, Boone, Brushy Fork, Cove Creek, Elk, Laurel Creek,
Meat Camp, New Ri@orth Fork, Seven Devils, Shawneehaw, Stony Fork, Watauga

o

MON& ETURNED

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS FUNDS WON FOR 1% MEDICAID FRAUD FUNDS TAXPAYER FUNDS WON &
CONSUMERS WON GRANTS

$5.5M \@%95.61( $688.1K $47K
N Sz A

6°d- KEEPING PEOPLE SAFE

SEXUAL ASSAULT KITS OF EVIDENCE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER CRIMINAL APPEALS CASES
TESTED S TTED CERTIFICATIONS WORKED

440faa b 1,690 302

W A,
. X é M
.




NCDOJ Wins

1. Juul
e $40 million for NC and commitments:to modify their practices
regarding young people
2. Dish Network
o $14 million settlement for itiegal robocalls in NC; money to public
schools
3. Duke Energy
e Coal Ash Clean.ip saving NC customers $1.1 billion




NCDQOJ at Work For Citlzens

e HCA
e Meta

e Duke Energy




Watauga County
*NC DOJ Dogwood Awards

e Funds for conservation, including South Fork
confluence




Opportunities to Work with NCDOJ

e Lethality Assessment Program

e Criminal Justice Fellows Program

 Educational Outreach to Public
o Internet Safety, Scams and Frauds
o Protecting the Next Generation of
North Carolinians Webinar Series
o Soclal Media Town Hall Series




™
Qv

DOJ Dl i%WDPS
SaEmmE) X3

LeiGH, / |

/FAVETTEVILLE
-

O

PP Attorney Generg N

_ N NGIo!
--' J osh gtei’n \ ! www.ncdoj.gov/doj-delivers




Contact Us

NCDOJ:
o ncdoj.gov
o Call: 919-716-6400

Medicaid Investigations Division:
o ncdoj.gov/MID
o To report Medicaid provider fraud or patient-abuse: 919-881-2320

Public Protection Section:

o ncdoj.gov/public-protection

o To request a presentation: ncgoj.gov/outreach
o Call: 919-716-6780

Consumer Protection Division:
o ncdoj.gov/protecting-consumers
o To file a Consumer Complaint: ncdoj.gov/complaint
o Call: 1-877-NO-SCAM (566-7226) ~En Espanol 919-716-0058




To Learn More

 NCDOJ Criminal Division:
o ncdoj.gov/responding-to-crime
 State Crime Laboratory:
o ncdoj.gov/crime-lab
 Sheriffs’ and Criminal Justice Education.& Training Standards Commissions:
o ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training
e Justice Academy:
o ncdoj.gov/ncja
e Civil Rights Unit:
o ncdoj.gov/cru
* Environmental Divisiok:
o ncdoj.gov/protecting-the-environment/
o To apply for an EEG: ncdoj.gov/eeg




100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:
VAYA UPDATE Q®
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: "bQ

Mr. Dustin Burleson, VAYA, will provide updates to the Board regarding VAYA. The rep ?')
for information only; therefore, no action is required at this time. bg

129



100124 BCC Meeting

VAYA L

VAYAHEALTH Commissioners

Dustin Burleson
Community Relations Regional Director

Summer 2024




g

Q
e
Child and Families Specialty Plan (CFSP) An@ﬁncement

100124 BCC Meeting

Vv
No*

On 8/15/2024 NC Department of Health & Human Services (DHHS) announced tha&&lue Cross Blue Shield of NC was awarded the
CFSP

This means there will be one statewide NC Medicaid Managed Care plan t;é&gill be responsible for the whole person care

of Medicaid-enrolled children, youth and their families in the child wel{ system.

The plan will also be available to the parents and family members o @hdren and youth served by the child welfare system,
including those receiving Child Protective Services (CPS) In-Hom vices.

Even though Vaya was not awarded the CFSP, the CFSP desi ased on Vaya’s own successful embedded care management
strategy that has benefitted many children and families & r catchment area.

We'll continue to partner with counties, DSS offices, other local stakeholders to support the child welfare population until the
transition to the Department’s selected entity is lete.

We'll remain true to our mission and values‘s&\gt\)rting members, families, and communities

\)
Timing: Earliest possible date is July 1, Z@Change likely.

Vaya will keep you updated Q

2 131



July 1 Launch

What i1s a Taillored Plan and
Vaya Total Care?




What is a Tailored Pian?

North Carolina must move NC Medicaid to mmanaged care.
The launch of Standard Plans was the first step. Tailored Plans began July 1, 2024.
Tailored Plans cover the same services that you g+t from NC Medicaid Direct.

Tailored Plans are All vour health needs
designed to put you first met in one plan
That means looking at you as \With a Tailored Plan, your physical,
a whole person, all of you! mental, severe substance use,

intellectual/developmental disability
or traumatic brain injury needs are
not separate.

Support from Tailored
Care Managers

Tailored Care Managers help you get
the medical or specialized care you
need. They can help schedule your
medical appointments, arrange

transportation, and more.



What is a Tailored Plan?

Tailored Plans are a new kind of NC
Medicaid Managed Care health plan.
They cover mental health, severe
substance use, |/DD, TBI and
prescriptions in one plan.

If NC Members had Medicaid Direct
services for these needs,

NC Medicaid plan may be moved to a
Tailored Plan. Tha name is changing,
but the services are not.

%,
Serious
Mental lliness (SMI)

Intellectual/
Developmental
Disabilities (I/DD)

X

Severe Substance
Use Disorders (SUD)

N

L

Traumatic Brain
Injuries (TBI)




=re ‘\gllegh
L ==

T WataugE-" Wilkas

LME/MCO Name
B alliance Health
[ cartners Health v anageme..
[ Trillium Health Resource

g Vaya Health 2

This map shows LME/MCO -:O“figldf“t%’e“e-:t"-.fe 21/

2

4.

T T [ T !
_ | !
Stokes %:kirghar‘ll Zzsweel Q 5 | Wzeren |
| | S
: "i . _F/- ./
I For,

=g Fraridir ,.-"
Eﬁ-umcé HL‘ dl -

e y 4 {
e _’/\Vr}?:i‘as'irgm?'

|\_r
. ,-'\
W | -
_J Wayne —— \,
&

D T
_ J\-‘_E—:llr rl-<_\\._ra.'=r
| = Vi ~ i‘]&'nli:ct
b |

u:h'norz . Jones
Sampson | Duplin T e,

b -
,5{ tIarE- 7 \ _
S \1 A i\/_ﬁ_ S
< Robeson ' Zladen \-\ i

Pender

=
Columbus

= /’_ "\.|E'|.'U Hafawer
/l Brunswick

.

r




Tailored Plan Management

How do people know which There is only one Tailored Plan
Tailored Plan they are in? e2r County.
A letter was mailed in mid-Agvil. The assigned Tailored Plan

It informed Members which
Tailored Plan they are ir. The
Plan is assighed based on the

county where one gets their
Medicaid benefits.

is based on the county that
manages the Medicaid benefits
for the Member. You cannot
choose a different Tailored Plan.



g

P

@ . 100124 BCC Meeting

What’s new? What’s stayi-[yg@the same?
Q

Providers must be in-network e Each plxﬁyovers the same
Providers (doctors and specialists) must services as before

be in the Tailored Plan’s network (also Thi@ udes I/DD, TBI, mental
called "in-network") to be covered. h@ﬂh, severe substance use, and

0 are management services.
a Members must choose a new

N
PCP if not in-network ‘{\é Waitlist members keep their spots

If Member’s don’t choose a PCP that's in (OC) Innovations and TBI Waiver members
Tailored Plan's network, one will be Qg) keep their slots. People who are
assigned. You can change it until January (\Q) waitlisted keep their spots, too.
31, 2025, o _
. Q‘Q e Same Tailored Care Manager as the
e More covered services X< one you have now
If Member to move from a Stand \\DIan Members have access to a Tailored
(Healthy Blue, AmeriHealth CaQ[as, Care Manager, who can help get the
Carolina Complete, Unite thcare or health services a Member needs. If
WellCare), they will get@re services they have one now, they won’t change.
covered than they dcc,géw.
Q’b

137

®



o
Here are son@)&amples:
&
. Vv
Services offered o

Child and adolescent day treziment services

by Tailored Plans -

Intensive in-home ser.ices

Multi-systemic therapy services

If a Member opts out of Peychosoc-habilitation
TaiIOred PlanS, these Residential treatment facility services
services are not paid for
by other NC Medicaid
Managed Care health
plans.

100124 BCC Meeting

Conununity living and supports (specific to I/DD & TBI)

Q] Supported employment (available to I/DD, TBI, and behavioral health)

Respite (specific to I/DD, TBI, serious emotional disturbance and severe SUD)

State-funded behavioral health, I/DD, and TBI services




Vaya Total Care: What’s Naw for
Members?

» New Vaya Total Care ID card with PCP listed on card

»How Members can get information:
**Behavioral Health Crisis line
*Member & Recipient Services {ine
**Pharmacy line
**Nurse line
**How to schedule ncivi-emergency Medicaid transportation

» Information in Hardbook and Welcome Packet on additional supports




h Vaya Total Care: Supports for
Members

»Vaya Total Care Perks for Plan Members- VTC Perks are designed to support
Members with a variety of health and welibeing outside of services they
receive. Perks for eligible Members mav include:

»Wellness Perks: Home deliverec meals for Members being discharged
from qualifying hospital care, Voucher for WW (Weight Watchers) mobile
app subscriptions and gift cards for Covid-19 and flu vaccines.

»Pregnancy Perks: Breast pumps and lactation support.

» GED Perks: Educaticn vouchers to offer guidance, tutoring, practice tests,
test passage guarantee, online community support and ability to earn
college credits.




Vaya Total Care: Supports for
Members

» Safety Perks: Discount vouchers on home safety and assistance
equipment not covered by Medicaid.

»Non-Medical Transportation Perks: Up to 24 trips per year from
Modivcare for going to grocery stores/markets, libraries, parks,
community activities, business offices and other places to support

Member.

» Non-Emergency Medicaid Transportation(NEMT) for Physical and Behavioral
Health appointmenis- VTC will be responsible for Member transportation
which can be sch:eduled by a Care Manager, Provider and/or Member.
Scheduling cari be done through mobile app, call in number, or on-line

scheduler. Transportation vendor is Modivcare. -



Vaya Total Care: Supports from
Tailored Care Managers

» Arrange your medical appointments

» Find medicine and medical supplies

» Provide support with chronic health issues

»Locate childcare, after school care

» Find housing options and financial help

»Help you join prevention programs

»Find resources for ilome maintenance and repairs
»Support transitions out of hospital or nursing facilities

» Arrange transportation




/\/

VAYAHEALTH

THANK
YOU

.



100124 BCC Meeting

144



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

WATAUGA COUNTY SCHOOLS LOTTERY AND CIP FUNDS REQUESTS Q®
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: ‘bQ

Dr. Chris Blanton, Watauga County Schools Assistant Superintendent/Director of H no')
Resources, will request the release of $1,305,000 and $725,000 from the State Education L

Fund and the County’s CIP reserve, respectively. The projects are attached. qlb&
Board approval is required to release the funds as requested. q,Q
Nl
OC}"
N
%)
N
SN
O

145



100124 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION

Margaret E. Gragg Education Center
175 Pioneer Trail Boone, NC 28607
(828) 264-7190

WATAUGA S

Re: Lottery and CIP Funds Request (]/b‘
Watauga County Schools respectfully requests the release of $825,000 from the NC Ifatfery
Repair and Renovation (R&R) Fund and $480,000 from the NC Lottery Fund. [%0 request
approval for the use of $725,000 from the county’s CIP funds reserved for thﬁ's‘chool district.
The list of projects for funding is as follows: OC)

Lottery Project A Amount
Carpet & Tile Replacements (R&R) \Q)u $ 45,000
Roof Renovations/Replacements (R&R) xé\ 80,000
Fire Alarm Replacements (R&R) o~ 140,000
Door Access Systems (R&R) ~ " 60,000
Parkway Addition (R&R) &~ 500,000
Cafeteria Equipment ()‘w 75,000
Gym Floors A 25,000
Doors/Windows Replacements .‘(\Q) 20,000
Pavement and Sidewalk Repairg)s\‘ 80,000
Softball/Baseball Field Lighti@¢” 180,000
Fencing Replacements 100,000
>
CIP Reserves Dt Amount
Bi-Directio lA&pliﬁers/Radios $ 250,000
Playground Wgdates/Renovations 30,000
HP, BRASQ‘ Classrooms, Bathrooms, Decking Renovations 15,000
Secu&‘éamems 25,000
HZAC/Sewer Pumps 25,000
N Devices 300,000
C) _lassroom Presentation Technology 80,000

O

\3 Thank you for your continued support of Watauga County Schools.
<

@@




100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

PARKING DECK FINAL CHANGE ORDER REQUEST Q®
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: ‘bQ

Mr. Bill Dixon, Appalachian Architecture, P.A., will request the Board approve the final Ch eo')
Order for the parking deck. The total amount of the change order is $52,063.24. Adequate @é
are available in the project budget to cover the expense. qlb&

Board action is required to approve the final Change Order for the parking deck in‘t Qolmount of

$52,063.24. ,\<O .
\0

OC)

147



100124 BCC Meeting

Watauga County Parking Beck - Change Order Request Summation 10/01/2024

(Updated 09/24/2024)
Add (2) 2x4 walls & insulation in sprinkler room (PCCO#15) $ 2,570.00 QQ
Add snow guards on metal roof(s) on stairs (PCC0O#18) $ 6,195.00 603
Add sealant covering to Upper Level deck (PCCO#17) $18,242.80 @
Add parge coat & gate to masonry screen wall {PCCO#18) $ 4,613.80 (l/b‘
Addition footings for light pole bases & site (PCCO#19) 3 8,024.6@9

retaining wall at steps in alley sidewallk '\(Os
Parking Deck signage & street address (PCCO#20) é)\fy,396.49
Additional light pole & fixture (PCCO#27) O$ 6,012.25
N
‘\'u‘
TOTAL CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 60 $52,063.24
%)
&
)

148



100124 BCC Meeting

PROCORE" PCCO #015

VPC Builders, LLC Project: 23-005 - Watauga County Parking Garage
2059 Tynecastle Highway 140 North Water Street
Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604 Boone, North Carolina 28604
Phone: (828) 295-0707 Phane: 828-295-0707

X

Prime Contract Change Order #015: CE #033 - Added 2x4 wall and f'bQ

insulation )
TO: Watauga County - Board of County FROM: VPC Builders, LLC @
Commissioners 2059 Tynecastle Highway
Banner Elk, North Caro%

DATE CREATED: 712612024 CREATED BY: Ethan Bean (VPCE@ , LLC)
CONTRACT STATUS: Pending - In Review REVISION: 0
DESIGNATED REVIEWER: REVIEWED BY: \@
DUE DATE: REVIEW DATE:

\0
INVOICED DATE: PAID DATE: QC)
SCHEDULE IMPACT: EXECUTED:
REVISED SUBSTANTIAL SIGNED CHANGE RB@
COMPLETION DATE: RECEIVED DATE:
CONTRACT FOR: 1:Watauga County Parking Garage TOTAL AMO 8 $2,570.00

DESCRIPTION: 6

CE #033 - Added 2x4 wall and insulation
Added 2x4 wall on North and East walls of sprinkler room labor and materials. Al ood for 2x4 wall and insulation R-15 in wall.

O

ATTACHMENTS:
Wall framing parking deck .msg, RE_ Watauga County parking qaraq%ﬁ@ﬂs in sprinkler room.msg

X

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDERS IN THIS CHANGE ORDER:

PCO # Title R Schedule Impact Amount
017 CE #033 - Added 2x4 wall and insulation m\ $2,570.00
\@" Total: $2,570.00
CHANGE ORDER LINE ITEMS: K\
PCO #017: CE #033 - Added 2x4 wall an&x\lallon
# Budget Cﬂg Description Amount
1 |[6-0203.L Rough Framing.Labﬁ( $1,000.00
2 |1-0312.0 General ConditQa,.Olher Insulation - add labor & materials $1,370.00
3 |6-0203.M Rough Frar@q.M'aterials Materials $200.00
O~ Grand Total: $2,570.00
) )
The original (Cogiat Sum) $4,992,202.00
Net change #\rit}usly authorized Change Orders $116,628.03
The cortra m prior to this Change Order was $5,108,830.03
The tract sum would be changed by this Change Order in the amount of $2,570.00

contract sum including this Change Order will be
contract time will not be changed by this Change Order,

*

$56,111,400.03

g

VPC Builders, LLC Page 1 of 2

Printed On: 9/4/2024 03:57 PM

149



PROCORE

08@:1 {Appalachian Architecture}

Q&

Watauga County - Board of County
Commisstoners

100124 BCC Meeting

PCCO #015

VPC Builders, LLG

2059 Tynecastle Highway
Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604

SIGNATURE

VPC Builders, LLC

DATE

SIGNATURE DATE

Page 2 of 2

SIGNATURE DATE

Printed On: 9/4/2024 03:.57 PM

150



100124 BCC Meeting

PROGCORE" PCCO #016

VPC Builders, LLC Project: 23-005 - Watauga County Parking Garage

2059 Tynecastle Highway 140 North Water Street @
Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604 Boone, North Carolina 28604

Phone: (828) 295-0707 Phone: 828-295-0707 Q

Prime Contract Change Order #016: CE #035 - Snow Guards for Standlrfg)Q
Seam metal roof

TO: Watauga County - Board of County FROM: VPC Builders, LLC @
Commissioners 2058 Tynecaslle Highway

Banner Elk, North Cam% 04
DATE CREATED: 9/04/2024 CREATED BY: Ethan Bean (VPC, rs, LLC)
CONTRACT STATUS: Pending - In Review REVISION: 0

)

DESIGNATED REVIEWER: REVIEWED BY: \@
DUE DATE: REVIEW DATE: \.
INVOICED DATE: PAID DATE: QC)
SCHEDULE IMPACT: 3 days EXECUTED:
REVISED SUBSTANTIAL SIGNED CHANGE RBQ
COMPLETION DATE: RECEIVED DATE:
CONTRACT FOR: 1:Watauga County Parking Garage TOTAL AMO $6,195.00

DESCRIPTION: 6

CE #035 - Snow Guards for Standing Seam metal roof
Quote to install the non-penetrating (clamped) bar style snow gquard/ice dam alon ottom edge of the metal roofing on parking deck stair roofs to
match the style on the County’s other buildings.

Approximately 16’ long x 4 locations = 64’ linear feet. C 0 match roofing. Supplier to provide shop

drawings for final approval Q‘
ATTACHMENTS:
Proposal - Snow Guards.pdf \(9
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDERS IN THIS CHANGE ow@'
PCO # Title \x’ Schedule Impact Amount
018 CE #035 - Snow Guards for Standin%Seam metal roof 3 days $6,195.00
N\ Total: $6,195.00

CHANGE ORDER LINE ITEMS: 20

PCO # 018: CE #035 - Snow Ggyrgs for Standing Seam metal roof

# B&dguode Description Amount

1 [7-0618.0 Metal Bo \ ther $4,100.00

2 |1-0302.L Proje\Mfrfager.Labor $500.00

3 |1-0303.L Sysdditendent.Labor $650.00

4 |1-0308.QWrkup.Other $945.00

~ O Grand Total: $6,195.00

T ¥nal (Contract Sum) $4,992,202.00
‘&ange by previously authorized Change Orders $116,628.03
x&e contract sum prior to this Change Order was $5,108,830.03
@ The contract sum would be changed by this Change Order in the amount of $6,195.00
@ The new contract sum including this Change Order will be $5,115,025.03

The contract time will be increased by this Change Order by 3 days.

VPC Builders, LLC Page 1 of 2 Printed On: 9/4/2024 03:59 PM
151



100124 BCC Meeting

PROGCORE PCCO #016

’B(@n {Appalachian Architacture} Watauga County - Board of County VPC Builders, LLC

,\} Commissioners
@ 2058 Tynecastle Highway

;@ Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

VPC Builders, LLC Page 2 of 2 Printed On: 9/4/2024 03:59 PM



@@

100124 BCC Meeting

PROGCORE PCCO #017

VPC Builders, LLC Project: 23-005 - Watauga County Parking Garage
2059 Tynecastle Highway 140 North Water Street
Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604 Boone, North Carolina 28604
Phone: (828) 295-0707 Phone: 828-295-0707

X

Prime Contract Change Order #017: CE #036 - Top Deck Cure & Sealf'bQ

install .
TO: Watauga County - Board of County FROM: VPC Builders, LLC @
Commissioners 2059 Tynecastle Highway
Banner Elk, North Cardfi 04
DATE CREATED: 9/04/2024 CREATED BY: Ethan Bean (VPC@I’S, LLC)
CONTRACT STATUS: Pending - In Review REVISION: 0
A
DESIGNATED REVIEWER: REVIEWED BY: \@
DUE DATE: REVIEW DATE: \
*
INVOICED DATE: PAID DATE: Q()
SCHEDULE IMPACT: 5 days EXECUTED:
REVISED SUBSTANTIAL SIGNED CHANGE RBQ
COMPLETION DATE: RECEIVED DATE:
CONTRACT FOR: 1:Watauga County Parking Garage TOTAL AMO . $18,242.80
DESCRIPTION: 6
CE #036 - Top Deck Cure & Seal install
Per OAC meeting on 8-15-24 VPC Builders is providing the coast to seal the up with super seal 30 approved cure & seal.
ATTACHMENTS: %
Watauga Parking COP - curing upper floor .xls, Super Seal 30 2018 TD%.;@
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDERS IN THIS CHANGE ORDER: ‘0\
PCO# Title }\ N Schedule Impact Amount
019 |CE #036 - Top Deck Cure & Seal install 0}‘ 5 days $18,242.80
N Total: $18,242.80
\(‘
CHANGE ORDER LINE ITEMS: . 0
PCO # 019: CE #036 - Top Deck Cure &@\stall
# Budget C}qov Description Amount
1 [3-0405.0 Slab On Grade.Othd $14,500.00
2 [1-0302.L Project Managdiedisor $520.00
3 [1-0303.L SUperintenc@N‘Labcr $440.00
4 [1-0308.0 Markgn&der $2,762.80
o Grand Total: $18,242.80
L
The origina tract Sum) $4,992,202.00
Net chaggepy previously authorized Change Orders $116,628.03
Theaptract sum prior to this Change Order was $5,108,830.03
. ract sum would be changed by this Change Order in the amount of $18,242.80
e new contract sum including this Change Order will be $5,127,072.83
The contract time will be increased by this Change Order by 5 days.
VPC Builders, LLC Page 1 of 2 Printed On: 9/16/2024 02:49 PM

153



100124 BCC Meeting

PROEORE PCCO #017

Bi {Appalachian Architecture) Watauga County - Board of County VPC Builders, LLC
° Commissioners

@ 2059 Tynecastie Highway

§ @ Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

VPC Builders, LLC Page 2 of 2 Printed On; 9/16/2024 02:49 PM

154



@@

PROCORE"

VP Builders, L1LC

2069 Tynecastie Highway

Banner Elk, Marth Carolina 28604
Phone: (828) 295-0707

100124 BCC Meeting

PCCO #018

Project: 23-005 - Watauga County Parking Garage
140 North Water Street

Beoane, North Carolina 28604

Phone: 828-295-0707

X

Prime Contract Change Order #018: CE #039 - CMU Wall parge rr:asc.:mr:ﬁ)Q

parge coat
TO: Watauga County - Board of County FROM: VPC Builders, LL.C @
Commissioners 2059 Tynecastla Highway E

8anner Elk, North Cam{T/ 04
DATE CREATED 9/04/2024 CREATED BY: Elhan Bean (VPCP@ s, LEC)
CONTRACT STATUS Pending - In Review REVISION: 1
DESIGNATED REVIEWER REVIEWED BY '\%
DUE DATE REVIEW DATE: \
INVOICED DATE PAID DATE CJ
SCHEDULE IMPACT days EXECUTED o

REVISED SU BSTANTEAL

COMPLETION DATE.
CONTRACT FOR 1:Walauga County Parking Garage

DESCRiPTiON

Per duectlon provided in emall from Bill Dixon at App. Architecture
Added gate aliowance for $750.00 material and labor pending final selection

ATTACHMENTS:

SIGNED CHANGE
RECEIVED DATE:

$4,613.80

é&wnen‘/\rchitecl

oY

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDERS IN THIS CHANGE ORDER;, (\Q

[ Pco# Title O\ Schedule Impact Amount
020 |CE #039 - CMU Wall parge masonry parge gadt(> 2 days $4,613.80
N7 Total: $4,613.80
N\
CHANGE ORDER LINE ITEMS: ‘\\()
PCO # 020:; CE #039% - CMU Wall parge |®nry parge coat
# Budget Desecription Amount
1 [4-0402.L Concrete Unit MasgnritLabor $2,200.00
2 |1-0302.L Project Man&er.g‘j-or $520.00
3 |1-0303.L SuperintepdhaM abor $440.00
4 [1-0308.0 Mark‘m er $703.80
. Gate installation - Allowance for labor and install based on approved
5 S"OZOS'L!.R\U raming.Labor gate spec product data, model etc, $750.00
- @ Grand Total: $4,613.80

The %nai (Contract Sum)
M ge by previcusly authorizad Change Orders

e contract sum prior to this Change Order was
The contract sum would be changed by this Change Crder in the amount of
The new contract sum including this Change Order will be
The confract time will be increased by this Change Order by 5 days.

VPC Builders, LLC

Page 1 of 2

$4,992,202.00
$116.628.03
$5,108,830.03
$4.613.80
$5,113,443.83

Printed On: 9/24/2024 11:26 AM

155



100124 BCC Meeting

PROCORE PCCO #018

’B@n {Appalachian Architecture} Watauga County - Board of County VPC Builders, LLC

,\} Commissioners
@ 2059 Tynecastle Highway

§ @ Banner Elk, Notth Carolina 28604

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SBIGNATURE DATE

VPC Buitders, LLC Page 2of 2 Printed On: 9/24/2024 11:26 AM

156



PROCORE

VPC Builders, LLC

2059 Tynecastle Highway

Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604
Phone; (828) 295-0707

100124 BCC Meeting

PCCO #019

Project: 23-005 - Watauga County Parking Garage
140 North Water Street

Boane, Narth Carolina 28604

Phone: 828-285-0707

Q@

Prime Contract Change Order #019: CE #040 - Additional footers for poma
base and knee wall

TO: Watauga County - Board of County FROM: VPC Builders, LLC @
Commissionars 2058 Tynecastle Highway
Banner Elk, North Caro{ﬂL 04
DATE. CREATED 9/04/2024 CREATED BY Ethan Bean (VPC L.LC)
CONTRACT STATUS: Pendmg In Rewew REVISION '
DES!GNATED REVEEWER REVIEWED BY
DUE DATE REVIEW DATE
INVOICED DATE PAED DATE
SCHEDU LE IMFACT EXECUTED
REVESED SUBSTANTIAL SIGNED CHANGE B@
COMPLETION DATE RECE]VED DATE
CONTRACT FOR 1:Watauga County Parking Garage TOTAL AMO $8,024.00
DESCRiPTION 6
CE #040 - {na titie) @
Addltlonal footers dsrectlon was prcwded for the light pole hase and knee wall at )
ATTACHMENTS @CJ
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDERS IN THIS CHANGE ORDER: Q
PCO # Title ‘0‘ Schedule Impact Amount
021 |CE #040 - (no title) S\ $8,024.00
N Total: $8,024.00
<"
CHANGE ORDER LINE ITEMS: \2\
PCO # 021: CE #0940 - (no title) \\C)
# Budget Code @‘ Description Amount
1 131-0102.0 Grading AQ" JW Hamptor: additional grading cost $4,200.00
2 [3-0405.0 Slab On Grade.Othe¥{ Footers $2,600.00
3 [1-0808.0 Markup.Other = $1,224.00
G Grand Total: $8,024.00
N
The original (Contra@m) $4,062,202.00
Nel change by idusly authorized Change Orders $116,628.03
The contrag prior to this Change Crder was $5,108,830.03
The corfrachsum would be changed by this Change Order in the amount of $8,024.00

The %comract sum including this Change Order will be
.T act time wili not be changed by this Change Order.

>

@@

VPC Builders, LLC

Page 1of2

$5,116,854.03

Printed On: §/4/2024 04:14 PM
157



100124 BCC Meeting

PROGCORE PCCO #019

’B@n {Appalachian Architecture) Watauga County - Board of County VPC Builders, LLC

,\} Commissioners
@ 2058 Tynecastle Highway

§ < Bariner Elk, North Carolina 28604

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

VPC Builders, LLC Page 2of 2 Printed On: 9/4/2024 04:14 PM 158




PROGCORE

VPC Builders, LLC

2059 Tynecastle Highway
Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604
Phone: (828) 295-0707

Project: 23-005 - Watauga County Parking Garage

100124 BCC Meeting

PCCO #020

140 North Water Street
Boone, North Carolina 28604
Phone: 828-295-0707

X

Prime Contract Change Order #020: CE #041 - Address Lettering 8" talfy

TO: Watauga County - Board of County FROM:
Commissioners
DATE CREATED: 9/04/2024 CREATED BY:
CONTRACT STATUS: Pending - In Review REVISION:
DESIGNATED REVIEWER: REVIEWED BY:
DUE DATE: REVIEW DATE:
INVOICED DATE: PAID DATE:
SCHEDULE IMPACT: 42 days EXECUTED:

REVISED SUBSTANTIAL
COMPLETION DATE:

CONTRACT FOR:

DESCRIPTION:
CE #041 - Address Lettering 8" tall

1:Watauga County Parking Garage

Additional Signage provided labor and material based on design provided by Bill Dixo,

“We would like to add the "140 NORTH WATER STREET” address below the "
facade of the new parking deck.

SIGNED CHANGE ORD
RECEIVED DATE:

TOTAL AMOUNT:

2
ékoA\pp. Arch.

O

*
VPC Builders, LLC VJ
2059 Tynecastle Highway

Banner Elk, North Carolin 28@

Ethan B
0 an Bean (VPC Builfv
>
Ne)
c}.

$6,396.49

GA COUNTY PARKING DECK" leftering on the Water Street

Street address would be 8" tall letters, Cast Aluminum, Times New Roman &ext. See attached revised drawing & notes.”

Lead times are 6 weeks from release

ATTACHMENTS:
20240819104614519.pdf

o
,\QQ

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDERS IN THIS CHANGEQ&

PCO # Title Schedule Impact Amount
022 | CE #041 - Address Lettering 8" tall C M 42 days $6,396.49
Total: $6,396.49
\‘r‘
CHANGE ORDER LINE ITEMS: Q
PCO # 022: CE #041 - Addresgﬁlerlng 8" tall
# g§'Code Description Amount
1 |1-0312.0 Gene@@‘ﬂtions.omer Address Letters $4,833.64
S
2 [1-0303.L Supps®hdent Labor $0.00
3 |1-0302.L P(Gjgel Manager.Labor $520.00
4 [1-03038Markup.Other $1,042.85
(' ,U' Grand Total: $6,396.49
N 4
P

. Wna[ (Contract Sum)
s%e change by previously authorized Change Orders
The contract sum prior to this Change Order was
The confract sum would be changed by this Change Order in the amount of
The new contract sum including this Change Order will be
The contract time will be increased by this Change Order by 42 days.

@@

VPC Builders, LLC Page 1 of 2

$4,992,202.00
$116,628.03
$5,108,830.03
$6,396.49
$5,116,226.52

Printed On: 9/4/2024 04:20 PM
159



100124 BCC Meeting

PROGCORE’ PCCO #020

’B' n {(Appalachian Architecture) Watauga County - Board of County VPC Builders, LLC
,\} Commissioners

2059 Tynecastie Highway

§ @ Banner Elk, Norlh Carolina 28604

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

VPC Builders, LLC Page 2 of 2 Printad On: 9/4/2024 04:20 PM
160



A @ N 100124 BCC Meeting
APPALACHIAN ARCHITECTURE, P A,

WILLIAM (BILL) DIXON, JR, AlA, NCARB

PARKING DECK IDENTIFICATION SIGNAGE Revised August 19", 2024 ‘(bg
Match existing Courthouse signage (@ intersection of Water & King Streets @ .

™
WATAUGA COUNTY PARKING CK

SIZE:10” high capital letters MATERIAL: Cast Aluminum STYLE: T@N ew Roman

140 NORTH WATER STRE

SIZE: 8” high capital letters MATERIAL: Cast Aluminum S

710: Times New Roman

Mounted between pilasters PC & PE on Water Street Elevati\&

Centered between Upper & Lower Level window open\i&@
O

)
METAL RoOF | Q~®
] / |

* 2
B ALUM. 51-0@1‘ FRAMED
si INCOW - INFILL. W/
5 LOR TO MATCH
g CONCRETE)
=

103 W. KIN& STREET, SUITE 201 -~ POST OFFICE BOX |14 ~ BOONE, NC 286071 .
PHONE: (B28) 265-2405 - FAX: (828) 265-2406
rinn.appalarch.com : 161

A & |



PROCORE

100124 BCC Meeting

PCCO #021

VPC Builders, LLC Project: 23-005 - Watauga County Parking Garage
140 North Water Street
Boone, North Carolina 28604
Phone: 828-295-0707

2059 Tynecastle Highway
Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604
Phone: (828) 295-0707

Prime Contract Change Order #021: CE #044 - Light Pole B de)

TO: Watauga County - Board of County FROM: VPC Builders, LLC '5
Commissioners 2059 Tynecastle Highway
Banner Elk, North Carolinaﬁﬁi
DATE CREATED: 9/24/2024 CREATED BY: Ethan Bean (VPC Builﬁb C)
CONTRACT STATUS: Pending - In Review REVISION: 0 (L
DESIGNATED REVIEWER: REVIEWED BY:
6 e
DUE DATE: REVIEW DATE: \
INVOICED DATE: PAID DATE: \.
SCHEDULE IMPACT: EXECUTED: @0
REVISED SUBSTANTIAL SIGNED CHANGE ORD%
COMPLETION DATE: RECEIVED DATE: \
CONTRACT FOR: 1:Watauga County Parking Garage TOTAL AMOUNT: $6,021.25
DESCRIPTION: \
CE #044 - Light Pole B
E-4 shows electrical fixture C that was revised 8-2-23 after the photometric plan was d on 7-26-23. VPC Builders provided a credit for the light
pole and an add for the wall pack along with other items included in the DOl Comm he light pole labor and material to add back is included in
pricing. 0
ATTACHMENTS: %
22345 E-4r.pdf, VPC-Watauga Co Parking Deck CO Type B light & pol
N\
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDERS IN THIS CHANGE ORDER: ,\O’
PCO # Title J\ i Schedule Impact Amount
023 |CE #044 - Light Pole B A@.\ 60 days $6,021.25
B\“ Total: $6,021.25
CHANGE ORDER LINE ITEMS: .\0

PCO # 023: CE #044 - Light Pole B @

# Budget m‘ Description Amount

1 [26-0101.0 Electrical .Other Labor & Material $3,918.86

2 [26-0101.0 Electrical .QthqC )" Freight Allowance $750.00

3 [1-0303L Superintep\@Labor $440.00

4 1-0308.0 Markad3Gbtr $912.39
AN R

@ Grand Total: $6,021.25

The origjgall tract Sum) $4,992,202.00

Net chm)y previously authorized Change Orders $116,628.03

The%ract sum prior to this Change Order was $5,108,830.03

@ ract sum would be changed by this Change Order in the amount of $6,021.25

e new contract sum including this Change Order will be $5,114,851.28

; The contract time will not be changed by this Change Order.

VPC Builders, LLC Page 1 of 2 Printed On: 9/24/2024 11:22 AM

X

162



100124 BCC Meeting

PROGCORE PCCO #021

Commissioners

é\ 2059 Tynecastle Highway
§® Banner Elk, North Carolina 28604

’B@ {Appalachian Architecture) Watauga County - Board of County VPC Builders, LLC

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

VPC Builders, LLC Page 2 of 2 Printed On: 9/24/2024 11:22 AM .



100124 BCC Meeting

164



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 10:

THE WATAUGA RIVER IN MEMORY OF K-9 DEPUTY LOGAN SHANE FOX

PROPOSED RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF NAMING THE HWY 105 BRIDGE OVER Q®
Q
2o

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: (,j

Major Redmon will present a resolution requesting the Board’s consideration to name the »—&g@@,&
105 Watauga River Bridge in memory of K-9 Deputy Logan Shane Fox. The procci( s for
naming roads/bridges/ferries by NCDOT have been included in your packet for revie e Board
would need to adopt the resolution and then staff would submit background infoﬁﬁ)n on the
nominee, description of what is requested to be named, and public input and s€ppart to NCDOT
staff. NCDOT staff would review the information to ensure the applicatioﬁ\meets policy and
confirm that there is not any local opposition. After review the NCDOT will forward to the
Transportation Road, Bridge, and Ferry Naming Committee for a@ﬁ'he Board member
representing the area where the requested bridge is located must endqrsethe request. If approved,
the Transportation Road, Bridge, and Ferry Naming Committe \hg@forward a resolution for the
Board of Transportation’s approval. The Board of Transportat@dll approve or deny the request.

In an effort to meet the public forum requirement by tf@)CDOT, staff would recommend the
Board schedule a public hearing for the October 15, Board Meeting. Upon completion of
the public hearing the Board may adopt the ution and forward to the NCDOT for
consideration. o

The Sheriff’s Office has been in contact '&eputy Fox’s father who recommends naming the
105 bridge in his son’s honor. Shoulg oard wish to proceed; staff recommends the Board
schedule a public hearing for the O oo 15, 2024 meeting and then adopt the resolution as is or
with changes. Approval by the rd would also include the $2,000 fee for the signs and
installation. \>\

Staff seeks direction fro@ Board.

Q\‘r
e

165



100124 BCC Meeting

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF WATAUGA Q®
PROPOSED RESOLUTION REQUESTING TO NAME Q
THE HWY 105 BRIDGE OVER THE WATAUGA RIVER o(:b
IN MEMORY OF K-9 DEPUTY LOGAN SHANE FOX. o.)

©

WHEREAS, Logan Shane Fox was born on February 8, 1996, in Wellington, Florida; alv‘
WHEREAS, at the age of 14 he was awarded the Community Service and Impx@/ard; and
WHEREAS, Deputy Fox moved to North Carolina and attended Wataugat\@ gchool; and

WHEREAS, Logan graduated from Basic Law Enforcement Train'@(}ﬁq Wilkes Community
College as the valedictorian, with the highest GPA of his class; and

WHEREAS, he was recruited by the Ashe County Sheriff’s }e in 2017; and

<

WHEREAS, in 2019 he was hired by the Watauga @ty Sheriff’s Office along with his K-9

partner Raven; and \QQ

WHEREAS, Logan was devoted to his famw friends; and

WHEREAS, K-9 Deputy Fox faithfully s&rved, protected, and preserved the peace and well-
being of the citizens and visitors of Wata@ounty; and

resulting in him giving the ulti acrifice for his community.

NOW, THEREFO \EE IT RESOLVED that the Watauga County Board of Commissioners
supports the namin & Highway 105 Bridge over the Watauga River in Memory of K-9 Deputy
Logan Shane Fox.

Y

ADOI&}@ this the 1st day of October, 2024.

WHEREAS, on April 28, Zg % Deputy Logan Shane Fox responded to a call for assistance

Larry Turnbow, Chairman
Watauga County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

166



Anita.Fogle

100124 BCC Meeting

Subject: FW: Letter of Support

From: Timothy Fox <tmthyfx@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 12:07 PM

To: Rebecca.Russell <Rebecca.Russell@watgov.org>
Subject: Letter of Support

Watauga County Commission
814 West King Street, Suite 205
Boone, North Carolina 28607

Dear Commissioners,

Please accept this Letter of Support to honor my request to have the bridge loca
Broadstone Road intersection named for my son, fallen K9 Deputy Logan Sh

2001.

It is with gratitude for your consideration and great sadness that | wrij %
to honor his memory and the ultimate sacrifice he made towar

Watauga County.

Respectfully yours,
Timothy A Fox

>

&

on Highway 105 near the
% , killed in the line of duty on April 28,

s letter to have this bridge named for my son,
d\%@rotection and safety of the good people of

167



100124 BCC Meeting

MEDIATION &
HOMESTEAD SN\ | RESTORATIVE JUSTICE

RECOVERY CENTER - SINCE 1993 . CENTER Q®

September 25th, 2024 b‘@

To Watauga County Manager Deron Geouque, (19
)

I am writing on behalf of The Mediation and Restorative Justice Center and Hdmestead

Recovery to offer our full and heartfelt support for the resolution to na \a bridge in Watauga

County in honor of fallen Officer Logan Fox. Officer Fox devoted him@o protecting and

serving our community, and his ultimate sacrifice is a profound tﬁument to the courage
and selflessness we ask of our law enforcement officers. 6

<

Dedicating this bridge in Officer Fox's memory would b eaningful and lasting tribute to
his life and legacy. It would not only honor his commi t to the safety and well-being of
our community but also represent a symbol of th \@mmunity’s respect and enduring
gratitude. His bravery and service should forev remembered, and this bridge would
ensure that his sacrifice is never forgotten.Q‘Q

Thank you for your thoughtful consider@& of this important resolution.

N
Sincerely, — @5(/
Mollie Bolick, MSW. Q&S

Center Director

Homestead RecoVgry Center
482 State Far odd. Boonhe, NC 28607
828-406 (mobile)

828-35 &43 (center)

2175 (fox)
homesteadrecoverync.or

.homesteadrecoverync.org
wered by The Mediation & Restorative Justice Center

N
o

s,

e (@ (00 (VR0 @
lnside 2 === A : U SA i

168




100124 BCC Meeting

Anita.Fogle

Subject: FW: Support Letter

From: tina watson <brdiner@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2024 3:28 PM (bQ
To: Kelly Redmon <Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org> 6 R
Subject: Re: Support Letter @

To Whom It May Concern, Qq/b‘

I am writing as the owner of Blue Ridge Diner to wholeheartedly support the proposal n;]ﬁe a bridge in
honor of Officer Logan Fox, who bravely served and gave his life for our community th Watauga County.
Officer Fox was not just a law enforcement officer; he was a part of our community, a familiar face who
exemplified dedication and service. He protected us and upheld the values of s%&yand justice that we hold
dear.

At Blue Ridge Diner, we had the privilege of serving Logan and many fﬁ@:olleagues. His friendly nature and
commitment to the people of this county left a lasting impression on % us. Naming a bridge in his honor

would be a fitting tribute to recognize his sacrifice and ensure that dNg¥egacy is never forgotten. It would serve
as a daily reminder to everyone crossing that bridge of the cour, nd dedication it takes to keep our
community safe. 2)

This gesture would mean so much to all of us who knewéﬂan and to the wider community that benefited from
his service. Thank you for considering this importawposal.

Sincerely, Q
Tina Watson {\(\
Owner, Blue Ridge Diner (b,
¥
.\0

169



100124 BCC Meeting

170



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 11:

PARKS AND RECREATION OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST Q®
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: ‘bQ

Mr. Craig Lands, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director, will request Board approval for h do')
Ms. Amber Worley to travel out-of-state to Hilton Head, SC for the 2024 Special Olympics V@
America Tennis & Pickleball Championships. No County funds will be spent with the ption
of employees’ time and fuel for the County vehicle. (19

Board action is required to approve the out-of-state travel. <Q .
N
Xe°
O
OO
b
S
N
%)
&
9

171



PARKS & RECREATION

231 Complex Drive * Boone, NC 28607
Phone : (828) 264-9511

Q’b

5

@@

WATAUGA COUNTY 100124 BCC Meeting

Fax : (828) 264-9523 P Q®
www. wataugacounty.org O_)Q
To: Mr. Deron Geouque, County Manager @
Watauga County Board of Commissioners (]/bg
From: Craig Lands, Assistant Director (l/
Subject: Out-of-State Travel y\o.) K
Date: September 19, 2024 X_-
O

| am requesting approval for Amber Worley and myself to tra I’&glilton Head, SC for the 2024
&ips. The travel dates are

Wednesday, October 16, 2024 through Saturday, Octo ,2024.

)

We will be coaching four athletes from Watauga é\nty during the event, which will be held at
two separate locations in Hilton Head, Ship:ﬁ@%antation and Palmetto Dunes.

Special Olympics North America Tennis & Pickleball Cham§i

Special Olympics Watauga County wijl r our housing, food, and registration fees. We are
simply requesting approval for staﬁgé\e, and usage of the parks and recreation van for

transportation. \2\@
. Q.
Thank you in advance @ur consideration.

Respectfully, Q

, Assistant Director
Wa@t a County Parks & Recreation

172



@Q)

%)

Tuesday, Oct 1
5:00 PM

Tuesday, Oct 15
5:45-7PM
Wednesday, Oct 16
1:00 PM-5:00 PM
Thursday, Oct 17
9-11AM

9-11 AM

11 AM-1PM

1PM

2-5PM

5:45 PM

7:00 PM

Friday Oct 18

8 AM-3 PM

1PM-6PM
11 AM-1PM
6:30 PM

7:30 PM

\\Q)

Saturday&é)m
8Aw:jzk

s.\},@—4:30 PM

11 AM-1PM

12 Noon

3PM-4PM

5PM

100124 BCC Meeting

SPECIAL OLYMPICS

NORTH AMERICA giéﬁg
TENNIS CHAMPIONSHIP . ﬁﬁ

SOUTH CAROLINA 2024 &

LZN
Presented by P T IR..

Coaches Call Zoom Link @
Volunteer Meeting, Shirt distribution Sonesta B(all/ogfl/

4

Setup Vag\er Meer Shipyard Courts
o

Practice Courts available O Van Der Meer Shipyard Courts

Athlete and Coach Registration 6,\'0 Porch

Lunch @ Delegation Tents

PTR Coaches Welcome 60 Sonesta Ballroom

Preliminary Rounds \Q@ Courts 1,2,3,4,7,8,13,14,15,17

Dinner %C) Port Royal Golf and Racquet Club

Opening Ceremony and Dance Q~ Port Royal Golf and Racquet Club

R
Singles Play- Lgv & 6 Van Der Meer Shipyard Courts
1,2,3,4,7,8,13,14,1517
2O
T SN Courts 12,34,7,8,13,14,15,17

Lqu Delegation Tents
@'n r Palmetto Dunes

Pro Exhibition Palmetto Dunes

Singles Van Der Meer Shipyard Courts
1,2,34,7,8,13,14,1517

Unified Doubles - Levels 4,5, 6 Courts 1,2,3,4,7,8,13,14,15,17

Lunch Delegation Tents

PTR Equipment Distribution Pro Shop Deck

Ice Cream Social Van Der Meer Shipyard

Awards Van Der Meer Shipyard Courts

173



Wednesday, Oct 2
5:00 PM

Thursday, Oct 17
7 AM

10:30 AM

11:30 AM - 12:30 PM
1-3PM

3:30 - 4:45 PM

5:45 PM

7:00 PM

Friday, Oct 18
11 AM-12 PM
12:30 PM

1 PM-3:00 PM
3:00 PM-4:30 PM
6:30 PM

7:30 pm
Saturday, Oct 19
11 AM-12 PM
1PM-3:15 PM
1PM-4:15PM

4:00 PM

O
a
5

@Q)

4:30 PM

SPECIAL OLYMPICS

NORTH AMERICA
PICKLEBALL CHAMPIONSHIP
SOUTH CAROLINA 2024

100124 BCC Meeting
A3,

N

Coaches Call

Set— UP
Registration

Lunch

Pro Clinics — Athlete
Unified Experience
Dinner

Opening Ceremony and Dance

Lunch
Check-in at PD 7g)
Divisioning Round Robin Unifigd Doubles
Divisioning Round Robin ‘Q%s

Dinner ®®

Pro Exhibition Q\

o

%In etition Round Robin Doubles Play

Lu

Competition Round Robin Unified Doubles

Q\\Q Ice Cream Social

Awards

Zoom Link

Palmetto Du%(l/b‘

Palmetto Dufies

PaN Bunes

0 metto Dunes PP Courts

Palmetto Dunes PP Courts
Port Royal Golf and Racquet Club

Port Royal Golf and Racquet Club

Palmetto Dunes
Palmetto Dunes
Palmetto Dunes PP Courts
Palmetto Dunes PP Courts
Palmetto Dunes PP Courts

Palmetto Dunes PP Courts

Palmetto Dunes
Palmetto Dunes PP Courts
Palmetto Dunes PP Courts
Palmetto Dunes

Palmetto Dunes

174



WATAUGA COUNTY TRAVEL EXPENSE REPORT

Sep 19, 2024

|1 OO1PﬁmM¢etin4

DATE BUDGET CODE F
NAME ICraig Lands TITLE |Assistant Director
. DEPARTURE
Hilton Head Island DATE: 10/16/24

DESTINATION

DEPARTMENT |[Parks & Recreation

TIME: '10:00

(& AM
CPM

RETURN DATE:{10/19/24

Q
’—— C A QQ
TIME: |11:00 @@%.

PURPOSE: |Special Olympics North America Tennis & Pickleball Championships gil;Fé'OVAL @
LN )%
TRANSPORTATION: ! |{'
DATE FROM TO BEGIN END MILES S TOTAL
y
PERSONAL VEHICLE :| % % " I 00
MILEAGE = '551 == :
.50 r .00
| N
OTHER: AIR, BUS, RAIL \%b I
MEALS: SUN MON TUES WED é HURS FRI SAT
BREAKFAST | I (%)Q
LUNCH | | I -~ I I
1 {;L
DINNER I | ‘
*LODGING I—— &\’\\O) I
* REGISTRATION I l 2 l I l
* TAXI/CARFARE . 0
AN
* GAS-COUNTY CAR 06 I
* TELEPHONE
TOTALS
.00
\5 L
Remarks: f®\ LESS: Travel Advance]
Q"’ LESS: Paid by County[ 00
Requesti u@e of staff time and countyivian usgéé for trg T ;
Balance Due to (choose one)lCounty I .00

A

l";’\@(e’matically correct [~ Approved as corrected

* Receipts Required for Reimbursement

Receipt l
Number

/)

EMPLOYEE/DATE

| certify that the above expenses were

‘/’/?fég/

incurred for County business.

FINANCE STAFF/DATE

DEPARTMENT HEAD/COUNTY MANAGER
DATE

175



WATAUGA COUNTY TRAVEL EXPENSE REPORT

DATE 9/19/24

{oo12tia€Eoveeting]

BUDGET CODE

NAME IAmber Worley

DESTINATION [Hilton Head, SC

TITLE IRecreation Specialist |

DEPARTMENT

DEPARTURE

DATE: 10/16/24

TIME: l] 0:00

RETURN DATE:

@ AM
CPM

Parks and Recreation

10/19/24

TIME: ‘11:00

Q
CA QQ

(‘@.

Special Olympics North America Tennis and Pickleball Invitational
PURPOSE: [ " Fmp ! /SPAP;_IE.OVAL @
SN )
TRANSPORTATION: ¢ k’
DATE FROM TO BEGIN END MILES q@ TOTAL
y4
PERSONAL VEHICLE il (ﬁ T = v
MILEAGE | - L
50 .00
r’.\‘
OTHER: AIR, BUS, RAIL I \ | I'—
MEALS: SUN MON TUES WED Q} HURS FRI SAT
BREAKFAST l I TN ;
; 0 0
LUNCH I I I o 0 I 0
DINNER l i I ] A O‘I d
* LODGING ] ‘ ‘
@ 0 0 0
* REGISTRATION ’ l 2 7 7 °§l 7
*TAXIJCAR FARE &\0 0 0 0 0
* GAS-COUNTY CAR ‘ 0\)
* TELEPHONE ’————Q 5 . d i
TOTALS
\@g
Remarks: - \ LESS: Travel Advance

Use of County ‘@m\’m(;j Employee Time

LESS: Paid by County

O

[_"(@vlfématically correct

.«

Q

[T Approved as corrected

* Receipts Required for Reimbursement

Balance Due to (choose one)

.00
] .00
00

Traveler I

Receipt \
Number

O
g MMM/ Q/M/ZH

EMPLOYEE/DATE

| certify that the above expenses were
incurred for County business.

FINANCE STAFF/DATE

DEPARTMENT HEAD/COUNTY MANAGER
DATE

176



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 12:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS Q®
A. November Meeting Schedule .ODQ

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 2)

The Commissioners Board Room will be used as a polling site for Election Day on Ng ers,

2024. Staff recommends cancelling the November 5, 2024 meeting. The secon ting is
scheduled for Tuesday, November 19, 2024. A special meeting could be called if ary.

4
Board action is required to cancel the November 5, 2024 meeting and selb@ne date for the
November meeting. (}'

177



100124 BCC Meeting

178



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 12:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS Q®
B. Announcements »‘bQ
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: -

October 4, 2024, from 6:00 to 9:00 P.M. in the Grandview Ballroom at The Northwe Zone,
Appalachian State University. q/

NO*

The High Country Council of Governments’ 49" Annual Banquet is scheduled fgw

o

,Q@\GENDA ITEM 13:
L)

@@Q BREAK

179



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 14:

CLOSED SESSION Q®
Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) Q)Q
<O .
©
‘],b‘
Q
YV
N
Xe°
OOO
b\
S
N
<
i)
<
Q.
O
g\
>
\2@
’\\0
N\
<
Koz
O
\\Q)
0@
Sa
O

180



100124 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 15:

PossiBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION Q®
o
<O R
©
q,b‘
Q
Vv
X '\<O ﬂ
OOO
@6\
N
%)
i)
<
Q.
O
g\
>
\2@
’\\0
P
<
Ny
O
\\Q)
0@
<
5

181



	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the October 1, 2024, Agenda
	Public Comment
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Amendments to the Personnel Ordinance
	North Carolina Department of Justice Presentation
	Vaya Update
	Watauga County Schools Lottery and CIP Funds Requests
	Parking Deck Final Change Order Request
	Proposed Resolution in Support of Naming the HWY 105 Bridge Over the Watauga River in Memory of K-9 Deputy Logan Shane Fox
	Parks and Recreation Out-of-State Travel Request
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  November Meeting Schedule
	B.  Announcements

	Break
	Closed Session
	Possible Action After Closed Session



